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The cover design and jllustrations reflect the new
“Welcome to the Age of Independence” marketing
campaign that made its debut in March 2003.




Financial Highlights § |

AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2002 2001
SELECTED OPERATING DATA FOR THE YEAR ENDED:
Net interest income $ 309,924 $ 246,179
Provision for loan losses 8,000 8,475
Net gain on sales of loans and securities 557 3,145
Other non-interest income 74,561 53,924
Other non-interest expenses 178,084 144,854
Amortization of goodwill — 3,594
Amortization of intangibles 6,971 7,481
Net income 122,402 86,065
Basic earnings per common share 2.37 1.64
Diluted earnings per common share 2.24 1.58
SELECTED FINANCIAL CONDITION DATA AT YEAR END:
Total assets $8,023,643 $7,624,798
Securities available-for-sale 1,263,650 1,027,994
Loans availabie-for-sale 114,379 3,696
Loans receivable, net 5,736,826 5,796,196
Deposit accounts 4,940,060 4,794,775
Borrowings 1,931,550 1,693,855
Total stockholders’ equity 920,268 880,533
PERFORMANCE RATIOS AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED:
Return on average assets 1.55% 1.19%
Return on average equity 13.54 10.32
Average equity to average assets 11.43 11.50
Net interest margin 4.23 3.69
Efficiency ratio 46.32 48.27
Book value per share $16.36 $ 15.08
Tangible book value per share $13.03 $11.76
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.50 $ 0.35
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» To Our Shareholders and Neighbors

A Letter from the President

The year 2002 was a banner period for
Independence Community Bank Corp. We
achieved exceptional operating results and
set new record earnings as we marked our
fifth year as a public company.

Detailed financial information and
commentary about the business of our
Company for the year 2002 is reported on
the foltowing pages of this annual report. 1
want to add some perspective to the figures
in this letter and remind everyone that our
performance is the result of the daily efforts
of the entire Independence Team as we serve
our clients and communities.

Financial Highlights of Qur Performance
Diluted earnings per share for the 12
months ending December 31, 2002, were
$2.24, an increase of 42% compared to
2001. Net income showed similar growth,
increasing to $122 million for 2002, up
42% over the previous year. Total assets on
December 31, 2002, were $8.02 billion, an
increase of $399 million compared to 2001.
It is extremely gratifying to see the results
of our work.

Independence officers and managers were joined by
U.S. Representative Nydia Velazquez in celebrating
the opening of the Bank’s new branch in Brooklyn’s
DUMBO area, the first bank in this exciting
waterfront neighborhood. Members of the
Independence Team included: President and CEQ
Alan Fishman, Consumer Banking President Terence
Mitchell, Senior Vice President Janice Schillig,
Senior Vice President Michael Raimoande, First Vice
President Laura Capra and Branch Manager Barrett
Stokes.

Key Factors Driving Our Performance
The 2002 operating performance for
Independence was the result of growth in
every major sector of our business. During
the year we continued the development of
our staff, opened new branches and
introduced a wide range of new products to
service our consumer and business clients.
The successful financial performance of
Independence was also the result of a
number of other key factors:

* Maintaining a strong net interest margin
in a challenging interest rate environment,
achieving a healthy net interest margin of

4.23% for the year.

¢ Generating substantial loan volume and
deposit growth through enhanced sales
initiatives.

* Producing a strong 14% or $410 million
increase in core deposit balances during
2002, as a result of increased emphasis
on expanding commercial and consumer
relationships. These desirable fow-cost
deposits now represent 68% of total
deposits, up from 61% on December 31,
2001.

* Expanding our secondary mortgage market
activity significantly in multi-family loans,
with $1.1 billion of multi-family loans sold
during the year, including a record $445
million originated and sold in the fourth
quarter.

* Improving fee-based income substantially,
increasing it to $75 million for the year, up
32% over 2001.

The current health of the Company was
affirmed by two major credit agencies,
Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investors
Service, which each assigned investment
grade ratings to the Bank. These ratings
further demaonstrate the Bank's ability to
provide quality services to our clients while
maintaining a strong credit culture.

The Independence Approach

Helping clients manage their money better is
the highest priority for us at Independence.
We focus on finding new and innovative
ways to assist them in leveraging and
expanding their financial resources. We
work at developing new products and
services. We seek to provide convenient
access to Independence with more branches
and ATMs, expanded hours and 24-hour
availability of accounts online.

New Products and Services

To make Independence Community Bank
more valuable to our clients and prospects,
we introduced a number of new consumer
and business products over the past year.

With the convenience of our new
Independence Online Bill Pay system it is
possible for checking customers to go online
and make electronic payment of their
personal and household bills. As an
enhancement to our Independence Freedom
Mortgage Program, we created the
Financial Advisor Resource Center to
provide borrowers with more flexible
products and concierge service from
dedicated loan consultants.

A year ago we brought Independence
BusinessAdvantage to the market, providing
business clients with instant access to a
range of sophisticated cash management
tools that are available through a secure
Internet connection. In 2002, we also
introduced Independence Business Custom
Capital, which provides business owners with
fast access to a line of credit that gives them
maximum financial flexibility.

Thanks to competitive new products like
these and a comprehensive sales effort, our
Consumer and Business Banking Divisions
showed significant growth in 2002 and are
poised for new gains in 2003.

Private Banking Group

Establishment of a Private Banking Group is
another way that Independence is meeting
the needs of clients and prospects. This
Group provides a personal-touch financial



relationship for professionals and
entrepreneurs who have been increasingly
disenfranchised by the more impersonal
New York banks.

There are now fully-staffed Independence
Private Banking teams serving customers in
Manhattan, New Jersey and Long Isiand.
We are excited about the reaction of clients
to this new activity. We think we have been
very helpful to those taking advantage of the
services it offers.

New Full-Service Offices

The Bank's exciting De Novo branch
expansion program is bringing Independence
service closer to more people and
communities throughout the metropolitan
area.

Independence has new offices in Brooklyn's
exciting DUMBO community as well as
Greenwich Village and Chelsea in
Manhattan. Over the coming months,
additional full-service banking offices will be
open on Eighth Avenue and Fifth Avenue in
Midtown Manhattan, Howard Beach in
Queens, and West Orange, Union and
Garwood, New Jersey. We will continue to
seek new opportunities to expand our
network.

Welcome to The Age of Independence
To showcase the growing range of
Independence products and services, we
created a new marketing campaign that
made its debut in March, 2003.

Our “Welcome to the Age of Independence”
campaign is designed to increase awareness
of our established brand with clients and
prospects. Great products and great service
are hallmarks of the Independence name
and this new marketing campaign will
communicate these principles as we expand
our impact in the region.

Elements of our new “look” are reflected in
the design of this report. As you see and
hear our new advertising, please think of the
great service and the outstanding
Independence Team that stands behind our

commitment to helping people meet their
financial needs.

Qur website, MyIndependence.com, is a
helpful tool for customers and prospects to
get information and access to Independence
Community Bank around the clock. Just as
we are expanding our branch network and
hours to provide better access to our
outstanding financial products and services,
we are also making important changes to
the website this spring. Visitors will have
instant access to the ever-growing number
of Independence products and services in

a convenient, fully integrated way that

will include some of the most user-friendly
features availahle anywhere in the banking
industry. The website will also include news
about our many community events and
activities.

Independence and Its Communities
Independence and its people are involved in
civic, educational and social programs in the
metropolitan area communities we serve.
We contribute to the improvement of the
guality of life of our neighbors by
philanthropic support for local activities
through the Independence Community
Foundation.

Marking its fifth anniversary in 2003, the
Foundation has had a strong, positive
impact on our communities and has set a
new standard for an effective corporate
foundation. All of us at Independence are
enormously proud to be associated with the
Independence Community Foundation.

The Independence Outlook for 2003

Our New York-New Jersey metropolitan area
is a huge, competitive marketplace. It is the
most open and dynamic place to do business
in the world. We thrive in this environment.
While market and economic conditions in
our region can be expected to be challenging
in 2003, we believe Independence
Community Bank is properly positioned to
progress and grow.

Over the coming years, we will continue to
work to achieve halanced growth in financial

results for the Company, and bring new
value-added products and services to an
expanding base of clients.

As we reflect on 2002 and look forward to
the year ahead, I want to thank the talented
women and men of the Independence Team.
They are the people who have helped build
our reputation for outstanding service that
makes us a leader in the regional market. [
also want to acknowledge the vital support
of our Board of Directors. They are tireless
in their guidance and in all their efforts on
behalf of Independence Community Bank.

LOVE YOUR INDEPENDENCE.

A

--- Alan Fishman,
President & Chief Executive Qfficer,
March 31, 2003

Volunteers from Independence Community Bank and
Foundation, cheered on by President and CEQ Alan
Fishman, turned out to help complete 60 new
Habitat for Humanity homes in Brookiyn as part of
the continuing commitment of Independence to this
dynamic home ownership program.




- Financial Overview

2002 Financial information

Improvement of Net Interest Margin

The Company’s net interest margin

improved for the year 2002, reaching 4.23%,
compared to 3.69% for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2001. This improvement
is attributable to the implementation of the
Company’s strategy of reducing the cost of
interest-bearing liabilities to offset the decline
in the yield earned on interest-earning assets
as a result of the current interest rate
environment.

For the year 2002, the weighted average rate
paid on interest-bearing liabilities declined
122 basis points, compared to a decline of 61
basis points in the weighted average yield
earned on interest-earning assets for 2001.

Based upon the current interest rate and
refinance environment, the Company expects
the compression in its net intarest margin

to continue. However, the Company continues
to rely on all of the components

of its business model to offset the reduction in
net interest income, as it continues to
implement the shift in its depaosits to lower
costing core deposits while continuing to build
non-interest rate sensitive revenue channels,
including in particular the expansion of its
mortgage-banking activities.

Growth of Balance Sheet

Average interest-earning assets of the
Company increased $653.3 million in 2002,
compared to 2001. This was primarily due to
growth in loans and securities available-for-
sale funded largely by increases in deposits
and borrowings. Excluding mortgage
warehouse lines of credit, the Company
originated loans totaling $2.71 billion during
the year 2002 of which $1.40 billion were
retained for portfolio, with the remainder being

sold in the secondary market.

The Independence Team was all smiles as
Greenwich Village Manager Stella Mayo cut the
ribbon to officially open the 8th Street Branch, the
first of three new De Novo branches in Manhattan.
She is joined by Senior Vice President Michael
Raimonde, First Vice President Laura Capra and
Vice President Mark Ravage as well as by Barrett
Stokes, Branch Manager at Eighth Avenue, Denney
Teets, Branch Manager in Chelsea, and Michael
Ippolito, Assistant Branch Manager at

8th Street.

Emphasizing the origination of higher yielding
commercial real estate and business loans is
an ongoing corporate initiative to diversify the
mix of the Company’s foan portfolio. As a
result of this initiative, the average aggregate
balance of such loans has increased $434.7
million to $1.81 billion for the year 2002,
comprising 32.8% of the total loan portfolio
as compared to 28.7% at December 31,
2001.

In addition to the growth in commercial

real estate and business loans, the average
balance of mortgage warehouse lines of credit
increased $134.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to 2001, as the
mortgage refinance market remained strong
during 2002.

The Company is also committed to remaining
a leader in the multi-family loan market and
has increased the average balance of these
loans by $69.8 million for the year 2002
compared to 2001.

Partially offsetting the increases in these four
loan portfolios were decreases during the
twelve months ended December 31, 2002 of
$271.0 million in the aggregate average
balance of single-family and cooperative
apartment loans, due to both increased
repayments as a result of the current interest
rate environment as well as decreased
emphasis on the origination of these types of
loans. The Company has de-emphasized the
origination of these types of loans for
portfolio in favor of higher yielding

commercial real estate and business loans.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the
Company sold from portfolio at par $258
million of fully performing multi-family loans
in a securitization transaction in exchange for
Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities
representing a 100% interest in these Ioéns.
This transaction had no impact on 2002
earnings but had a positive impact on the



Company’s risk-based capital ratios since the
risk weighting on the mortgage-backed
securities is lower than on the underlying
loans.

During the latter part of the fourth guarter of
2002, the Company increased its holdings in
Bank Ownred Life Insurance by $50 million to
$168.4 million at December 31, 2002.

Average deposits grew $216.2 million for the
year 2002 compared to the year 2001. The
average balance of core deposits increased
$640.2 million during the same time period
as the Company was able to continue the shift
in the composition of the deposit portfolio
from higher costing time deposits to core
deposits. Average borrowings increased
$397.7 million for the year 2002, compared
to 2001 as the Company utilized borrowings
as a partial funding source for asset
generation.

Generation of Core Deposits

The Company continues its successful

strategy of generating core deposits

through increased emphasis on expanding
commercial and consumer relationships.

As a result, lower costing core deposits

have grown by $409.7 million, or 14%,

to $3.35 billion at December 31, 2002
compared to $2.94 billion at the end of 2001.
These deposits represented approximately
68% of total deposits at December 31, 2002
compared to 61% at December 31, 2001.
Non-interest-bearing demand deposit balances
grew by $144.3 million, or 32%, to $593.8
million during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2002.

Expanded Non-interest Income

Emphasis on fee-based income continues to
gain momentum throughout the operations of
the Company. Non-interest income increased
$18.0 million, or 32%, to $75.1 million for
the year, compared to $57.1 million for 2001.

INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY
K} STOCK PERFORMANCE
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The Company had $0.6 mitlion of gains on
sales of securities for the year 2002 as
compared to $3.1 million in 2001.

Service fees increased $18.1 million or 56%
for the year 2002, compared to the same
period in 2001. Service fees associated with
the branch network grew by $2.9 million or
12% for year ended December 31, 2002,
compared to 2001. The increase during the
2002 periods was primarily due to increased
service fees on deposit accounts resulting
from the growth in core deposits, particularly
commercial demand deposits, and an increase
in per unit charges as well as increased
revenue from the Company's debit card
program. The increase in service fee income
also reflects increased fees on sales of annuity
funds as customers seek higher yielding
investment opportunities.

As a result of the current interest rate

cycle and resulting refinance environment, the
Company experienced significant increases in
mortgage prepayment fees and modification
and extension fees. These fees increased $12.1
million to $14.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to 2001.

The Company continues to originate multi-
family loans for sale in the secondary market
to Fannie Mae with the Company retaining
servicing on all loans sold. As part of these
transactions, the Company retains a portion of
the associated credit risk. Although all of the
loans in the existing portfolio are currently
fully performing, the Company has established
a liability related to the retained credit
exposure. The Bank serviced $2.23 billion of
loans sold to Fannie Mae in 2002 for which it
retained a maximum potential exposure of
$113.7 million. As a result, the Company
recorded provisions of $3.9 million related to
this potential exposure during 2002,
provisions that reduced gains on sale
recognized from the sale of such loans.




Financial Overview cont’d.

Secondary market sales, which are reflected
as mortgage-banking activities, resulted in
total net revenue of $13.8 million for the year
2002, compared to $12.9 million in 2001.
The increase was primarily attributable to
increased revenues recognized as a result of
the substantial increase of lcans sold in the
secondary market which was partially offset
by provisions with respect to the retained
credit exposure for loans sold in the secondary
market. The Company had a $6.4 million
capitalized servicing asset as of December 31,
2002. The Company sold multi-family loans
totaling $1.07 billion during 2002, compared
to $572.4 million in 2001.

Other non-interest income in 2002 was $4.0
million. This included $2.2 million from the
Company’s equity investment in Meridian
Capital Group, LLC, a New York-based
mortgage brokerage firm that is primarily
engaged in the origination of commercial real
estate and multi-family mortgage loans, and
gains of $1.3 million on the sale of two

bank facilities during the year which reflected
surplus properties sold in the normal course of
business.

In pursuit of our business strategy of
expanding the Company’s commercial real
estate and muiti-family (oan originations and
sales, in October 2002 the Company increased
its equity investment in Meridian Capital. As
consideration for such additional interest, the
Company paid a combination of cash and
shares of its common stock (the amount being
issued amounting to fess than 1% of its issued
and outstanding shares).

Strong Asset Quality

The Company continues to maintain strong
asset quality. Non-performing assets as a
percentage of total assets were .52% at
December 31, 2002 comparad to .61% at
December 31, 2001. Non-performing assets
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This bus shelter poster is part of the new “Welcome to
the Age of Independence” marketing campaign that is
designed to enhance awareness of our established
brand with clients and prospects.

decreased $4.5 million to $41.6 miliion
during the year ended December 31, 2002,
primarily due to a $15.6 million decrease in
loans past due 90 days or more as to principal
but still accruing interest partially offset by a
$11.2 million increase in non-accrual loans
consisting primarily of commercial business

loans.

The Company recorded an $8.0 million
provision for loan losses for the year 2002
and incurred $5.7 mitlion of net charge-offs,
resulting in an allowance for loan losses at
December 31, 2002, of $80.5 million. The
allowance for loan losses as a percent of total
loans in 2002 was 1.38% compared to 1.33%
in 2001. As of December 31, 2002,
Management believes the allowance was at a
level which covered all known and inherent
losses in the Company’s loan portfolio that
were both probable and reasonably estimable.
The Company does not participate in any
shared national credit loans.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense, excluding the
amortization of goodwill, increased by $32.7
million for the year 2002 as compared to
2001. The increase was primarily attributable
to increases of $22.3 million in compensation
and benefits, $0.7 million in data processing
costs, and $10.2 million in other non-interest

expense.

The increase in compensation and benefits
expense was primarily attributable to
expansion of the Company’s commercial

and retail banking operations during the past
year. This expansion included the geographic
extension of its Commercial Loan business to
Manhattan, Westchester and Long Island. In
addition, the Company established a Private
Banking/Wealth Management Group during
the first quarter of 2002 to broaden and
diversify its customer base. It also continued




its De Novo branch expansion strategy by
opening four new facilities in 2002, following
the opening of two new facilities during the
fourth quarter of 2001.

The Company experienced increased health
insurance costs and pension costs in 2002
and also incurred additional expenses due to
higher costs associated with stock benefit
plans, primarily its employee stock ownership
plan, due to increases in the market price of
the Company’s stock.

A $10.2 million increase in other non-
interest expense for 2002 was primarily

due to a $3.8 million ($2.4 million after tax)
provision for probable losses from
transactions in a commercial business deposit
account in the fourth quarter of 2002. The
Company is aggressively pursuing legal
remedies available to it to recover these
funds.

The remaining increase in other non-interest
expense was due to the corporate expansion
associated with a broader business banking
footprint, De Novo banking activities,
expanded retail sales force and the
introduction of new products and services.

At the end of the fourth quarter of 2002, the
Company made a cash contribution of
approximately $10.0 million to restore the
Company’s pension plan to fully funded
status. The contribution was recorded as a
prepaid asset, and therefore did not reduce
2002 earnings.

Provision for Taxes

The effective tax rate for reporting purposes
was reduced to approximately 36.2% for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from
approximately 38.0% for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2001 due to the early
adoption of SFAS No. 142 which
discontinued the amortization of non-tax-
deductible goodwill for book purposes.

Stock Repurchases

The Company repurchased approximately 3.5
million shares at an average price of $25.97
during the year ended December 31, 2002.
The Company is currently conducting its
tenth stock repurchase program covering a
total of 3.0 million shares and has
approximately 2.6 million shares remaining.

Expensing of Stock Options

Beginning in 2003, the Company will
recognize stock-based compensation expense,
on options granted in 2003 and in
subsequent years, in accordance with the fair
value-based method of accounting described
in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” Historically, the
Company has not recognized compensation
expense for employee stock options as
permitted under existing generally accepted
accounting principles. However, as required
by generally accepted accounting principles,
the Company has consistently disclosed on an
annual basis the impact that expensing the
fair value of stock options would have on its

net income and diluted earnings per share.

Investment Grade Ratings from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s

In January 2003, Independence Community Bank Corp and its subsidiary, Independence
Community Bank, received investment grade ratings from both Standard & Poor’s and
Moody’s Rating Services. The Company and Bank deemed it appropriate to obtain ratings
in order to facilitate future business opportunities that may arise.

Independence Community Bank Corp.
Independence Community Bank

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s
BBB Baa3
BBB+/A-2 Baa2/P-2
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Independence teamed up with local government and
non-profit organizations to provide free tax
preparation assistance to low- and moderate-income
taxpayers in New York and New Jersey. The goal was
to help qualified taxpayers get the millions of dollars
in refunds available through the Federa!l and State
Earned Income Tax Credits, putting money back into
the pockets of consumers and boosting the local economy.

Community leaders and State and Federal officials
joined Independence and its partners in hoisting the
banner to mark the Grand Opening of the Brooklyn
Taxpayer Assistance Center at the Bank’s home
branch at 130 Court Street in Downtown Brooklyn.
Among those joining Independence Community Bank
President and CEO Alan Fishman and Independence
Community Foundation Executive Director Marilyn
Gelber were: NY State Banking Superintendent
Elizabeth McCaul; Michael McCormick of the U.S.
internal Revenue Service; Christopher Spoth of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; Independence
First Vice President Laura Capra and Vice President
Nia Rock; and Amy Brown, Project Director of
Community Food Resource Center, the non-profit
organization that has partnered with Independence to
manage the center.

Independence Community Bank Vice Chairman Donald
Karp is joined by Newark Deputy Mayor Ron Rice and
community leaders at City Hall to kick off the taxpayer
assistance program in Newark, which Independence
supports through its Jackson Avenue office. A similar
project took ptace in Jersey City in cooperation with
Hudson County Community College.




: Independence Community Foundation

A Focus On Building Partnerships For Change

Independence Community Bank has had a
153-year tradition of charitable giving in the
communities it serves. In the spring of 1998,
as the Bank became a publicly traded corpo-
ration, it created and endowed a new charita-
ble institution, the Independence Community
Foundation. The Foundation has a current
asset value of more than $65 million.

In creating the Foundation, Independence
Community Bank gave expression to its long-
held philosophy that the success of the Bank
is tied to the well-being of the communities
where it does business and where its employ-
ees live and work. Thus, the Foundation fol-
lows the footprint of the Bank into the five
boroughs of New York City, Nassau and
Westchester Counties in New York, and
Essex, Union, Middlesex, Bergen and Hudson
Counties in New Jersey.

In its grant-making the Foundation has
focused on building partnerships for change
with community non-profits, as well as
cultural and educational institutions. Its
primary mission is to renew neighborhoods
by promoting economic growth, housing
development, educational achievement and
cultural enrichment.

One of the Foundation’s early partnerships,
with Habitat for Humanity—New York City,

is transforming vacant blighted land in
Bedford-Stuyvesant and the South Bronx into
affordable housing. A focused grant-making
strategy in Brooklyn’s Red Hook community
is addressing such needs as education, literacy,
job trairing, affordable housing, and services
to senior citizens. Partnering with the Red
Hook branch of the Bank, the Foundation has
launched an innovative matched-savings or
IDA (individua!l development accounts)
program to build the assets of graduates of
job training programs. Grants in Newark are
providing support for cultural institutions,
community organization and construction of
new affordable housing.

The Foundation has three funding categories.
Approximately half the Foundation's annual
grant-making is in the category of
Neighborhood Renewal, supporting develop-
ment of affordable housing, encouragement
of local economic development, creation of
new job opportunities, job readiness and
training, and construction of community
facilities. Grants in the Education, Culture
and the Arts Category include a broad range
of support for educational initiatives and cul-
tural activities in support of the Foundation’s
community renewal mission. Community
Quality of Life grants go to local neighbor-
hood and civic organizations for short-term
programs, projects and activities.

Some recent examples of organizations that
have received grants from the Foundation
include:

* A capital grant to rebuild the Bedford-
Stuyvesant YMCA in central Brooklyn;

¢ Operating support for an affordable
housing initiative by the New
Community Corporation in Newark;

Educational intervention for homeless
children by the Partnership for the
Homeless;

Staten Island Economic Development
Corporation’s Women and Minority
Business program;

Ironbound Business Improvement District
sanitation program in Newark;

New Jersey Performing Arts Center’s
music education programs;

* Newark Museum’s science education
program;

» Asian Americans for Equality affordable
housing development in Brooklyn and
Queens;

* Bronx Council on the Arts job training
program for art handlers.

Independence Community Foundation is supporting a
matched-saving program that establishes Individual
Development Accounts for newly-trained workers to
help pay for future advanced training. Participants in
this workforce development program, which prepares
workers for video, data and cable technology jobs,
are among those who benefit from this Fifth Avenue
Committee activity.

The Bedford-Stuyvesant YMCA has been an impor-
tant community institution in Central Brooklyn
since 1898. The Independence Community
Foundation is providing a leadership challenge
grant to help replace the organization’s outmoded
home, complete with a new youth/family center,
computer learning center, swimming pool and
health and wellness facilities.
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PART 1
ITEM 1.

Independence Community Bank Corp.

Business

Independence Community Bank Corp. (the
“Holding Company”) is a Delaware corporation
organized in June 1997 by Independence Commu-
nity Bank (the “Bank”), for the purpose of becom-
ing the parent savings and loan holding company of
the Bank. The Bank’s reorganization to the stock
form of organization and the concurrent offer and
sale of the Holding Company’s common stock was
completed on March 13, 1998 (the “Conversion™).
The assets of the Holding Company are primarily
the capital stock of the Bank, dividends receivable
from the Bank, certain cash and cash equivalents
and securities available-for-sale. The business and
management of the Holding Company consists pri-
marily of the business and management of the Bank
(the Holding Company and the Bank are collec-
tively referred to herein as the “Company”). The
Holding Company neither owns nor leases any prop-
erty, but instead uses the premises and equipment of
the Bank. At the present time, the Holding Com-
pany does not intend to employ any persons other
than officers of the Bank, and will continue to utilize
the support staff of the Bank from time to time.
Additional employees may be hired as appropriate
to the extent the Holding Company expands or
changes its business in the future.

The Company’s executive office is lo-
cated at 195 Montague Street, Brooklyn, New
York 11201, and its telephone number is
(718) 722-5300. The Company’s web address is
www.myindependence.com.

Independence Community Bank

The Bank’s principal business is gathering de-
posits from customers within its market area and
investing those deposits along with borrowed funds
primarily in multi-family residential mortgage loans,
commercial real estate loans, commercial business
loans, lines of credit to mortgage bankers, single-
family residential loans (including cooperative
apartment loans), consumer loans, mortgage-re-
lated securities, investment securities and interest-
bearing bank balances. The Bank’s revenues are
derived principally from interest on its loan and
securities portfolios while its primary sources of
funds are deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank of
New York (“FHLB”) borrowings, loan amortiza-

tion and prepayments and maturities of mortgage-
related securities and investment securities. The
Bank offers a variety of loan and deposit products to
its customers. The Bank aiso makes available other
financial instruments, such as annuity products and
mutual funds, through arrangements with a third

party.

The Bank has continued to broaden its banking
strategy by emphasizing commercial bank-like
products, primarily commercial real estate and busi-
ness loans, mortgage warchouse lines of credit and
commercial deposits. This strategy focuses on in-
creasing both net interest income and fee based
revenue while concurrently diversifying the Bank’s
customer base.

Change in Fiscal Year End

The Company announced in October 2001 that
it changed its fiscal year end from March 31, to
December 31, effective December 31, 2001. This
change provides internal efficiencies as well as
aligns the Company’s reporting cycle with regula-
tors, taxing authorities and the investor community.
Due to the change in the Company’s fiscal year end,
the comparison of annual operating performance is
based upon the audited 12 month calendar year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to the
12 month calendar year ended December 31, 2001
and the audited 12 month fiscal year ended
March 31, 2001.

Market Area and Competition

The Company is a community-oriented finan-
cial institution providing financial services and loans
for housing and commercial businesses within its
market area. The Company has sought to set itself
apart from its many competitors by tailoring its
products and services to meet the diverse needs of
its customers, by emphasizing customer service and
convenience and by being actively involved in com-
munity affairs in the neighborhoods and communi-
ties it serves. The Company oversees its 73 branch
office network from its headquarters located in
downtown Brooklyn. The Company operates 19
branch offices in the borough of Brooklyn, another
nine in the borough of Queens and eleven more
branches dispersed among Manhattan, the Bronx,
Staten Island, Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester
Counties of New York. As a result of the acquisi-
tions of Broad National Bancorporation (“Broad”),
Newark, New Jersey and Statewide Financial Corp.
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(“Statewide”), Jersey City, New Jersey during fis-
cal 2000, the Company also operates 34 branches in
the northern New Jersey counties of Bergen, Essex,
Hudson, Middlesex and Union. The Company gath-
ers deposits primarily from the communities and
neighborhoods in close proximity to its branches,
which deposits constitute the primary funding
source of the Bank’s operations. The Company
currently expects to expand its branch network
through the opening of approximately twelve branch
locations over the next twelve to eighteen months.
During the first quarter of 2003, the Company
opened two branches in Manhattan which brings
the total to 75 banking offices.

Although the Company generally lends
throughout the New York City metropolitan area,
the substantial majority of its real estate loans are
secured by properties located in the boroughs of
Brooklyn, Queens and Manhattan, Nassau County,
Long Island, and the counties in northern and
central New Jersey. The Company’s customer base,
like that of the urban neighborhoods which it serves,
is racially and ethnically diverse and is comprised of
mostly middle-income households and, to a lesser
degree, low to moderate income households. Most
of the businesses the Company lends to are small
and medium sized and are primarily dependent
upon the regional economy, which economy, due to
its connections to the national economy, may be
adversely affected not only by conditions within the
local market but also by conditions existing else-
where. At December 31, 2002, over 75% of the loan
portfolio consisted of commercial real estate, com-
mercial business and multi-family residential loans.
Such loans may be more sensitive to adverse
changes in the local economy than single-family
residential loans. Increased delinquencies or other
problems with such loans could affect the Com-
pany’s financial condition and profitability.

Over the past few years there has been a
national and local economic slowdown, which has
resulted in New York City currently being in a
recession. New York City, and to a lesser degree,
the New York City metropolitan area, has been
impacted by a reduction in employment and profit-
ability experienced by national securities and invest-
ment banking firms, many of which are domiciled in
Manhattan, as well as the lack of growth and
reduced profitability of other financial service com-
panies. In spite of its size and diversity, the New
York City metropolitan area economy is signifi-
cantly affected by the level of business activity and
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profitability within the securities and financial ser-
vices industries. New York City has lost approxi-
mately ' 220,000 jobs in two years, of which
approximately 23,000 are attributable to investment
banking firms. The reduction of jobs is a prime
reason for the current fiscalcrisis in New York City.
The elimination of these positions resulted in less
taxes collected by New York City on salaries and
bonuses and has strained its social services depart-
ments as an increased number of people are seeking
public assistance.

Historically, the New York City metropolitan
area has benefited from being the corporate head-
quarters of many large industrial and commercial
national companies which have, in turn, attracted
many smaller companies, particularly within the
service industry. However, as a consequence of
being the home of many national companies and to
a large number of national securities and investment
banking firms, as well as being a popular travel
destination, the New York City metropolitan area is
sensitive to the economic health of the United
States. As a result, continued economic deteriora-
tion in other parts of the United States could have
an adverse impact on the economic climate of New
York City. In addition, the events of September 11,
2001 and the resultant effect on the local economy
has lead to uncertainty as to the impact, both long
and short-term, on businesses and real estate values
in Manhattan. The decline in tourism also resulted
in reduced profitability and job losses in New York
City. Commercial real estate values have declined
during this period due to significant vacancies in
commercial properties and high end residential
properties.

Furthermore, the rate of population growth of
the New York City and Newark metropolitan statis-
tical areas, which are the primary market areas of
the Company, has been at a much slower rate than
the nation as a whole during the past 12 years. At
June 30, 2002, the Company’s deposit market share
was 0.99% of the New York City metropolitan
statistical area and 1.99% of the Newark metropoli-
tan statistical area. These two areas account for 55
of the Company’s branch locations. In addition, the
boroughs of Brooklyn and Queens, in which the
Company maintains its largest market presence,
have experienced relatively stagnant population
growth in recent periods. Such stagnant population
growth also has been a factor in the increasing
competition among financial institutions operating
in the Company’s market area. Such slower growth




may challenge the Company’s ability to meet its full
business plan.

The Company faces significant competition
both in making loans and in attracting deposits. The
New York City metropolitan area has a significant
concentration of financial institutions, many of
which are branches of significantly larger institu-
tions which have greater financial resources than the
Company. Over the past 10 years, consolidation of
the banking industry in the New York City metro-
politan area has continued, resulting in the Com-
pany facing larger and increasingly efficient
competitors. It is also reflected in the low deposit
growth experienced in the Company’s existing
branch offices, with deposit growth being primarily
the result of acquisitions. The Company’s competi-
tion for loans comes principally from commercial
banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations,
credit unions, mortgage-banking companies, com-
mercial finance companies and insurance compa-
nies. The Company’s most direct competition for
deposits has historically come from commercial
banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations,
credit unions and commercial finance companies.
The Company faces additional competition for de-
posits from short-term money market funds and
other corporate and government securities funds
and from other financial institutions such as broker-
age firms and insurance companies.

Forward Looking Information

In addition to historical information, this An-
nual Report on Form 10-K includes certain “for-
ward-looking statements” based on current
management expectations. The Company’s actual
results could differ materially, as defined in the
Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, from management’s expectations.
Such forward-looking statements include state-
ments regarding management’s current intentions,
beliefs or expectations as well as the assumptions on
which such statements are based. These forward-
looking statements are subject to significant busi-
ness, economic and competitive uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are not subject to the
Company’s control. Stockholders and potential
stockholders are cautioned that any such forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve risks and uncertainties,
and that actual results may differ materially from
those contemplated by such forward-looking state-

ments. Factors that could cause future results to
vary from current management expectations in-
clude, but are not limited to, general economic
conditions, legislative and regulatory changes, mon-
etary and fiscal policies of the federal government,
changes in tax policies, rates and regulations of
federal, state and local tax authorities, changes in
interest rates, deposit flows, the cost of funds, de-
mand for loan products, demand for financial ser-
vices, competition, changes in the quality or
composition of the Company’s loan and investment
portfolios, changes in accounting principles, policies
or guidelines, availability and cost of energy re-
sources and other economic, competitive, govern-
mental and technological factors affecting the
Company’s operations, markets, products, services
and fees.

The Company undertakes no obligation to up-
date or revise any forward-looking statements to
reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of un-
anticipated events or changes to future operating
results over time.

Available Information

The Company is a public company and files
annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy state-
ments and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Members of
the public may read and copy any document the
Company files at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.
20549. Members of the public can request copies of
these documents by writing to the SEC and paying
a fee for the copying cost. Please call the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330 for more information about the
operation of the public reference room. The Com-
pany’s SEC filings are also available to the public at
the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov. In addi-
tion to the foregoing, the Company maintains a web
site at www.myindependence.com. The Company’s
website content is made available for informational
purposes only. It should neither be relied upon for
investment purposes nor is it incorporated by refer-
ence into this Form 10-K. The Company makes
available on its internet web site copies of its An-
nual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any
amendments to such documents as soon as reasona-
ble practicable after it files such material with or
furnishes such documents to the SEC.




Lending Activities

General. At December 31, 2002, the Com-
pany’s net loan portfolio totaled $5.74 billion (not
including $114.4 million loans available-for-sale),
which represented 71.5% of the Company’s total
assets of $8.02 billion at such date. A key corporate
objective is over time to change the mix of the
Company’s loan portfolio by reducing the emphasis
on the origination of one-to-four family residential
mortgage loans and cooperative apartment loans,
and expanding the origination of higher yielding
and/or variable rate commercial real estate and
commercial business loans and mortgage warehouse
lines of credit. However, the largest category of
loans in the Company’s portfolio continues to be
multi-family residential mortgage loans, which to-
taled $2.44 billion or 41.9% of the Company’s total
loan portfolio at December 31, 2002, although such
loans have materially declined as a percentage of
the total loan portfolio over the past three years.
Such loans are secured primarily by apartment
buildings located in the Company’s market area.
Reflecting the shift in the Company’s lending strat-
egy, the second and third largest loan categories are
commercial real estate loans and mortgage ware-
house lines of credit loans which totaled $1.31 bil-
lion or 22.6% and $692.4 million or 11.9%,
respectively, of the total loan portfolio at Decem-
ber 31, 2002. Commercial business loans accounted
for $598.3 million or 10.3% of the total loan portfo-
lio at December 31, 2002. Thése four categories
collectively accounted for 86.7% of the Company’s
total loan portfolio at December 31, 2002, The
remainder of the loan portfolio was comprised of
$348.6 million of single-family residential mortgage

loans, $207.7 million of cooperative apartment
loans, $202.0 million of home equity loans and lines
of credit and $27.0 million of consumer and other
loans. ‘

The types of loans that the Company may
originate are subject to federal and state laws and
regulations. Interest rates charged by the Company
on loans are affected principally by the demand for
such loans and the supply of money available for
lending purposes, the rates offered by its competi-
tors and the term and credit risk associated with the
loan. These factors in turn, are affected by general
and economic conditions, the monetary policy of the
federal government, including the Board of Gover-
nors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal
Reserve Board”), legislative tax policies and gov-
ernmental budgetary matters.

As part of the Company’s continuing enhance-
ment of its credit administration process, in 2002
the Company redefined its criteria for classifying
loans as either commercial real estate or commer-
cial business loans. As a result of the application of
the new criteria and the Company’s conversion to a
new commercial loan servicing system completed
during the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company
reviewed all of its commercial loan relationships and
redesignated as of September 30, 2002 approxi-
mately $238.0 million of commercial business loans
as commercial real estate or multi-family residential
loans. The Company has not revised any other
current or prior period information related to this
redesignation since it did not affect the amount of
the Company’s net loan portfolio, total assets, re-
sults of operations or earnings per share.
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Contractual Principal Repayments and Interest Rates.

The following table sets forth scheduled

contractual amortization of the Company’s loans at December 31, 2002, as well as the dollar amount of such
loans which are scheduled to mature after one year and which have fixed or adjustable interest rates. Demand
loans, overdraft loans and loans having no schedule of repayments and no stated maturity are reported as due
in one year or less. In addition, does not include loans available-for-sale.

Principal Repayments Contractually Due in Year(s) Ended December 31,

Total at
December 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007-2012  2013-2018 Thereafter
Mortgage loans:
Single-family residential and
cooperative apartment‘® ... .. $ 547,790 $ 2530 $ 4378 $ 1,715 $ 6,085 $ 69,262 §$ 66,646 $397,174
Multi-family residential'®® ... 2,435,875 149,072 92,964 182,568 355349 1,338,321 295,761 21,840
Commercial real estate® .. ... ... 1,312,757 169,531 76,030 97,701 158,672 568,494 160,676 81,653
Commercial business loans ........ 603,519 117,876 59232 46,094 71,236 156,133 86,001 66,927
Other loans:
Mortgage warchouse lines of credit 692,434 692,434 — —_ — — — —
Consumer and other loans'® .. ... 228,923 5,492 7,784 13919 11,761 89,787 93,782 6,398
Total® . ... $5,821,298  $1,136,935 $240,388 $341,997 $603,123 $2,221,997 $702,866 $573,992

(1) Does not include $8.5 million of single-family residential loans serviced by others.

(2) Does not include $0.8 million of multi-family residential loans serviced by others.

(3) Multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans are generally originated with a term to repricing of five to seven years and
may be extended by the borrower for an additional five year period.

(4) Includes home equity loans and lines of credit, FHA and conventional home improvement loans, automobile loans, passbook loans

and secured and unsecured personal loans.

(5) Of the $4.68 billion of loan principal repayments contractually due after December 31, 2003, $3.43 billion have fixed rates of interest

and $1.25 billion have adjustable rates of interest.

Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales and Ser-
vicing. The Company originates multi-family resi-
dential loans (primarily for sale), commercial real
estate and business loans, advances under mortgage
warehouse lines of credit, single-family residential
mortgage loans, cooperative apartment loans, home
equity, loans and lines of credit, and consumer and
other loans. The relative volume of originations is
dependent upon customer demand and current and
expected future levels of interest rates.

During 2002, the Company continued its focus
on expanding its higher yielding and/or variable rate
portfolios of commercial real estate and commercial
business loans as well as expanding its mortgage
warehouse lines of credit portfolio as part of its
business plan. As part of such effort, the Company
purchased in April 2001 the assets of Summit
Bank’s Mortgage Banking Finance Group
(“MBFG”) from FleetBoston Financial Corpora-
tion (Summit Bank was acquired by FleetBoston).
MBFG provided mortgage warehouse lines of credit
to mortgage bankers in the New York, New Jersey,
Connecticut area. The acquisition increased the
Company’s existing mortgage warehouse line of
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credit portfolio by $130 million in lines with approx-
imately $83.5 million in outstanding advances.
Mortgage warchouse lines of credit are short-term
secured advances extended to mortgage-banking
companies primarily to fund the origination of one-
to-four family mortgages.

In addition to continuing to generate multi-
family residential mortgage loans for portfolio, the
Company originates and sells multi-family residen-
tial mortgage loans in the secondary market to
Fannie Mae while retaining servicing. This relation-
ship supports the Company’s ongoing strategic ob-
jective of increasing non-interest income related to
lending and servicing revenue. The Company un-
derwrites these loans using its customary underwrit-
ing standards, funds the loans, and sells the loans to
Fannie Mae at agreed upon pricing thereby elimi-
nating rate and basis exposure to the Company. The
Company can originate and sell loans to Fannie
Mae for not more than $20.0 million per loan.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, the
Company originated for sale $1.17 billion and sold
$1.07 billion of fixed-rate multi-family loans in the
secondary market with servicing retained by the



Company. Under the terms of the sales program,
the Company retains a portion of the associated
credit risk. The Company has a 100% first loss
position on each multi-family residential loan sold
to Fannie Mae under such program until the earlier
to occur of (i) the losses on the multi-family
residential loans sold to Fannie Mae reaching the
maximum loss exposure for the portfolio or
(i1) until all of the loans sold to Fannie Mae under
this program are fully paid off. The maximum loss
exposure is available to satisfy any losses on loans
sold in the program subject to the foregoing limita-
tions. Substantially all the loans sold to Fannie Mae
under this program are newly originated using the
Company’s underwriting guidelines. At Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the Company serviced $1.97 billion of
loans for Fannie Mae sold to it pursuant to this
program with a maximum potential exposure of
$113.7 million.

The maximum loss exposure of the associated
credit risk related to the loans sold to Fannie Mae
under this program is calculated pursuant to a
review of each loan sold to Fannie Mae. A risk level
is assigned to each such loan based upon the loan
product, debt service coverage ratio and loan to
value ratio of the loan. Each risk level has a corre-
sponding sizing factor which, when applied to the
original principal balance of the loan sold, equates
to a recourse balance for the loan. The sizing factors
are periodically reviewed by Fannie Mae based
upon its continuing review of loan performance and
are subject to adjustment. The total of the recourse
balance per loan is aggregated to create a maximum
loss exposure for the entire portfolio at any given
point in time. The Company’s maximum loss expo-
sure for the entire portfolio of sold loans is periodi-
cally reviewed and, based upon factors such as
amount, size, types of loans and loan performance,
may be adjusted downward. Fannie Mae is re-
stricted from increasing the maximum exposure on
loans previously sold to it under this program as
long as (i) the total borrower concentration (i.c.,
the total amount of loans extended to a particular
borrower or a group of related borrowers) as applied
to all mortgage loans delivered to Fannie Mae since
the effective date of the sales program does not
exceed 10% and (ii) the average principal balance
per loan of all mortgage loans delivered to Fannie
Mae since the effective date of the sales program
continues to be $4.0 million or less.

During 2002, the Company sold from portfolio
at par, $257.6 million of fully performing multi-

family loans in exchange for Fannie Mae mortgage-
backed securities representing a 100% interest in
these loans. Such loans were sold with full recourse
with the Company retaining servicing. This transac-
tion supported the Company’s efforts to continue to
build and strengthen its relationship with Fannie
Mae, had no impact on 2002 earnings and had a
positive impact on the Company’s risk-based capital
ratios since the risk weighting on the mortgage-
backed securities is lower than would be applied to
the underlying loans.

The Company has not sold multi-family resi-
dential loans to any other entities besides Fannie
Mae during the last three years.

Although all of the loans serviced for Fannie
Mae (both loans originated for sale and loans sold
from portfolio) are currently fully performing, the
Company has established a liability related to the
fair value of the retained credit exposure. This
liability represents the amount that the Company
would have to pay a third party to assume the
retained recourse obligation. The estimated liability
represents the present value of the estimated losses
that the portfolio is projected to incur based upon a
standard Department of Housing and Urban Devel-
opment default curve with a range of estimated
losses. At December 31, 2002 the Company had a
$4.5 million liability related to the fair value of the
retained credit exposure for loans sold to Fannie
Mae.

As a result of retaining servicing on $2.23 bil-
lion of loans sold to Fannie Mae, the Company had
a $6.4 million servicing asset at December 31, 2002.
Loan servicing assets increased $2.1 million to
$6.4 million at December 31, 2002 compared to
$4.3 million at December 31, 2001. During 2002,
the Company sold $1.33 billion of multi-family
loans to Fannie Mae and recorded a $5.5 million
servicing asset which was partially offset by
$3.4 million of amortization of the servicing asset.

Over the past few years, the Company has de-
emphasized the origination for portfolio of single-
family residential mortgage loans in favor of higher
yielding loan products. In November 2001, the
Company entered into a private label program for
the origination of single-family residential mortgage
loans through its branch network under a mortgage
origination assistance agreement with Cendant
Mortgage Corporation, doing business as PHH
Mortgage Services (“Cendant”). Under this pro-
gram, the Company utilizes Cendant’s mortgage
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loan origination platforms (including telephone and
Internet platforms) to originate loans that close in
the Company’s name. The Company funds the
loans directly, and, under a separate loan and servic-
ing rights purchase and sale agreement, sells the
loans and related servicing to Cendant on a non-
recourse basis at agreed upon pricing. During the
year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
originated for sale $140.2 million of single-family
residential mortgage loans through the program.
The Company is using this program as a means of
increasing non-interest income while efficiently
serving its client base. In the future, the Company
may continue to originate certain adjustable and
fixed-rate residential mortgage loans for portfolio
retention, but at significantly reduced levels.

Mortgage loan commitments to borrowers re-
lated to loans originated for sale are considered a
derivative instrument under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Ac-
counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”) implementation is-
sue C13. In addition, forward loan sale agreements
with Fannie Mae and Cendant also meet the defini-
tion of a derivative instrument under SFAS
No. 133. For more information regarding the Com-
pany’s derivative instruments, see Note 17 of the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ set
forth in Item 8 hereof.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Com-
pany entered into a private label program for the
origination and servicing of small business lines of
credit through an origination assistance agreement
with Wells Fargo & Company (“Wells Fargo”).
This program is referred to as “Business Custom
Capital”, which are unsecured lines of credit, up to
$100,000, to small business customers in the Com-
pany’s market area with over $50,000 in annual

sales. These lines are underwritten, funded and
serviced by Wells Fargo for their own portfolio and
have no impact on the Company’s Statement of
Financial Condition. The Company is using this
program as a means of increasing non-interest in-
come as the Company receives an upfront fee for
lines originated and a fee on the outstanding balance
of the line for a period of three years.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company ser-
viced $98.5 million of single-family residential
mortgage loans and $2.26 billion of multi-family
residential loans for others.

In December 1998, Broad entered into an
agreement with New Jersey Citizen Action
(“NJCA”), a community group, pursuant to which
Broad agreed to use its best efforts to lend a total of
$20.0 million in the state of New Jersey over a five
year period beginning on January 1, 1999. Subse-
quent to the merger of Broad and the Company in
July 1999 and the merger of Statewide and the
Company in January 2000, the Bank entered into a
modified agreement with NJCA pursuant to which
a revised target goal of extending $33.0 million in
loans was established for the five-year term of the
agreement ending December 31, 2004. Such loans
are to consist primarily of affordable home mort-
gage products in the form of one-to-four family
mortgage loans to qualified low and moderate in-
come borrowers, community development financing
consisting primarily of loans for the purpose of
purchasing, constructing and rehabilitating housing
affordable to low and moderate income families and
economic development financing to facilitate small
business startup and expansion and job develop-
ment. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had
extended approximately $42.8 million of loans in
connection with the NJCA agreement.



available-for sale portfolio during the periods indicated.

Loan Aectivity. The following table shows the activity in the Company’s loan portfolio and loans

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Total principal balance of loans and loans available-for-sale held
at the beginning of period ........ ... . ... ... $5,890,006  $5,273,220  $4,961,040
Originations of loans for portfolio:

Single-family residential................ ... .. ... ... .... 11,237 18,430 14,663

CoOperative apartment . .. .....ooovteneeunnneriaeennn.. 423 4,827 5,507

Multi-family residential ................. ... ... . ... .. .... 505,678 323,617 288,328

Commercial real estate ........... ... ... 325,715 196,730 332,860

Commercial business loans .......... .. ..., 406,197 405,409 345,702

Mortgage warchouse lines of credit™ Lo 7,016,355 3,883,054 1,821,622

Consumer® .. 153,642 77,717 57,167
Total originations for portfolio. ......................... 8,419,247 4,909,784 2,865,849

Originations of loans for sale:

Single-family residential. . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... 140,203 4,121 —

Multi-family residential .. ........... ... ... .. ... .. ..... 1,165,779 441,870 253,031

COMSUIMIET . .ttt e ettt e e e 947 2,032 —_
Total originations of loans forsale ...................... 1,306,929 448,023 253,031

Purchases of loans:

Mortgage warehouse lines of credit ....................... — 83,520 —
Total purchases . ... — 83,520 —
Total originations and purchases...... e 9,726,176 5,441,327 3,118,880

Loans sold:

Single-family residential. .. ........ ... . ... . ... .. ... 133,543 425 —

Multi-family residential ............... ... .. ... ... ... .. 1,326,905 419,315 509,930

Consumer'® 2,216 1,521 35,710
Total sold. . ... ... 1,462,664 421,261 545,640

Repayments™ . .. 8,208,557 4,403,280 2,261,060
Net loan activity ... ...t i e 54,955 616,786 312,180
Total principal balance of loans and loans available-for-sale
held attheend of period . ..................... . 5,944,961 5,890,006 5,273,220
Less:

Discounts on loans purchased and net deferred fees at end of
PETIOd . . o . 13,209 11,875 11,779
Total loans and loans available-for-sale receivable at end of

period . ... $5,931,752  $5,878,131  $5,261,441

(1) Represents advances on the lines of credit.

(2) Includes home equity loans and lines of credit, FHA and conventional home improvement loans, student loans, automobile loans,

passbook loans and secured and unsecured personal loans.

(3) Includes repayment of line advances ($6.77 billion for mortgage warchouse lines of credit during the year ended December 31, 2002)

and loans charged-off or transferred to other real estate owned.




Multi-Family Residential Lending, The
Company originates multi-family (five or more
units) residential mortgage loans which are secured
primarily by apartment buildings, cooperative apart-
ment buildings and mixed-use (combined residen-
tial and commercial) properties located primarily in
the Company’s market areca. These loans are com-
prised primarily of middle-income housing located
in the boroughs of Brooklyn, Queens, Manhattan,
the Bronx and Northern New Jersey. The main
competitors for loans in the Company’s market area
tend to be commercial banks, savings banks, savings
and loan associations, credit unions, mortgage-
banking companies and insurance companies. His-
torically, the Company has been an active lender of
multi-family residential mortgage loans for portfolio
retention. More recently, in order to further its
commitment to remain a leader in the multi-family
market, the Company continues to build on its
relationship with Fannie Mae to originate and sell
multi-family residential mortgage loans in the sec-
ondary market while retaining servicing. The Com-
pany determines whether to originate a loan for
portfolio retention or for sale based upon the yield
and terms of the loan. Due to the current low
interest rate environment, a larger portion of the
Company’s multi-family residential loan origina-
tions have been for sale as opposed to portfolio
retention. See “Business-Lending Activities-Loan
Originations, Purchases, Sales and Servicing”.

At December 31, 2002, multi-family residen-
tial mortgage loans totaled $2.44 billion, or 41.9% of
the Company’s total loan portfolio. The Company
originated multi-family residential loans for portfo-
lio of $505.7 million during the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and $323.6 million for the nine months
ended December 31, 2001. Multi-family residential
mortgage loans in the Company’s portfolio generally
range in amount from $500,000 to $4.0 million and
have an average size of approximately $1.1 million.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had
$106.8 million of multi-family loans available-for-
sale. During the year ended December 31, 2002 the
Company originated for sale $1.17 billion and sold
$1.33 billion (of which $1.07 billion was originated
for sale and $257.6 million was sold from portfolio)
of multi-family residential loans to Fannie Mae with
servicing retained by the Bank. During the nine
months ended December 31, 2001, the Company
sold $419.3 million of multi-family residential loans
to Fannie Mae.
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The Company has developed during the past
several years working relationships with several
mortgage brokers. Under the terms of the arrange-
ments with such brokers, the brokers refer potential
loans to the Company. The loans are appraised and
underwritten by the Company utilizing its under-
writing policies and standards. The mortgage bro-
kers receive a fee from the borrower upon the
funding of the loans by the Company. In recent
years, morigage brokers have been the source of a
substantial majority of the multi-family residential
and commercial real estate loans originated by the
Company. In October 2002, in furtherance of its
business strategy regarding commercial real estate
and multi-family loan originations and sales, the
Company increased from 20% to 35% its minority
investment in Meridian Capital Group, LLC (“Me-
ridian”), a New York-based mortgage brokerage
firm. Meridian is primarily engaged in the origina-
tion of commercial real estate and multi-family
mortgage loans. The loans originated by the Com-
pany resulting from referrals by Meridian account
for a significant portion of the Company’s total loan
originations. For the year ended December 31,
2002, such loans accounted for approximately 17.8%
of the aggregate amount of loans originated for
portfolio and for sale. With respect to the loans
which were originated for portfolio in 2002 (exclud-
ing mortgage warehouse lines of credit), loans re-
sulting from referrals from Meridian amounted to
approximately 39.9% of such loans. In addition,
referrals from Meridian accounted for the majority
of the loans originated for sale in 2002. All loans
resulting from referrals from Meridian are under-
written by the Company using its loan underwriting
standards and procedures. The Company generally
has not paid any referral fees to Meridian. In the
future, the Company may consider paying such fees
if it is deemed necessary for competitive reasons.
The ability of the Company to continue to originate
multi-family residential and commercial real estate
loans at the levels experienced in the past may be a
function of, among other things, maintaining the
mortgage broker relationships discussed above. See
Note 19 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” set forth in Item 8 hereof.

When approving new multi-family residential
mortgage loans, the Company follows a set of un-
derwriting standards which generally permit a maxi-
mum loan-to-value ratio of 75% based on an
appraisal performed by either one of the Company’s
in-house licensed and certified appraisers or by a




Company-approved licensed and certified indepen-
dent appraiser (whose appraisal is reviewed by a
Company licensed and certified appraiser), and suf-
ficient cash flow from the underlying property to
adequately service the debt. A minimum debt ser-
vice ratio of 1.3 generally is required on multi-
family residential mortgage loans. The Company
also considers the financial resources of the bor-
rower, the borrower’s experience in owning or man-
aging similar properties, the market value of the
property and the Company’s lending experience
with the borrower. For loans sold in the secondary
market to Fannie Mae, the maximum loan-to-value
ratio is 80% and the minimum debt service ratio is
1.25. The Company’s current lending policy for
loans originated for portfolio and for sale requires
that loans in excess of $2.0 million be approved by
at least two members of the Credit Committee of
the Board of Directors, the composition of which is
changed periodically.

It is the Company’s policy to require appropri-
ate insurance protection, including title and hazard
insurance, on all mortgage loans prior to closing.
Other than cooperative apartment loans, mortgage
loan borrowers generally are required to advance
funds for certain items such as recal estate taxes,
flood insurance and private mortgage insurance,
when applicable.

The Company’s multi-family residential mort-
gage loans include loans secured by cooperative
apartment buildings. In underwriting these loans,
the Company applies the normal underwriting crite-
ria used with other multi-family properties. In addi-
tion, the Company generally will not make a loan on
a cooperative apartment building unless at least 50%
of the total units in the building are owner-occu-
pied. However, the Company will consider making a
loan secured by a cooperative apartment building if
it has a large positive rental income which signifi-
cantly exceeds maintenance expense. At Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the Company had $535.8 million of
loans secured by cooperative apartment buildings
located primarily in Manhattan.

The Company’s typical multi-family residential
mortgage loan is originated with a term to repricing
or maturity of 5 to 7 years. These loans have a fixed-
rate of interest and may be extended by the bor-
rower, upon payment of an additional fee, for an
additional five year period at an interest rate based
on the 5-year FHLB advance rate plus a margin at
the time of extension. Under the terms of the

Company’s multi-family residential mortgage loans,
the principal balance generally is amortized at the
rate of 1% per year with the remaining principal due
in full at maturity. Prepayment penalties are gener-
ally part of the terms on these loans.

Commercial Real Estate Lending. In addi-
tion to multi-family residential mortgage loans, the
Company originates commercial real estate loans.
This growing portfolio is comprised primarily of
loans secured by commercial and industrial proper-
ties, office buildings and small shopping centers
located primarily within the Company’s market
area.

At December 31, 2002, commercial real estate
loans amounted to $1.31 billion or 22.6% of total
loans. This portfolio increased $293.4 million, or
28.8%, during the year ended December 31, 2002
due to the Company’s increased emphasis on
originating higher vielding commercial real estate
and business loans in line with its business strategy
and the redesignation of $178.5 million of commer-
cial business loans as commercial real estate loans.
See “Lending Activities-General”. The Company
originated $325.7 million of commercial real estate
loans during the year ended December 31, 2002 and
$196.7 million for the nine months ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The Company intends to continue to
emphasize these higher yielding loan products.

The Company’s commercial real estate loans
generally range in amount from $50,000 to $5.0 mil-
lion, and have an average size of approximately
$1.5 million. The Company originates commercial
real estate loans using similar underwriting stan-
dards as applied to multi-family residential mort-
gage loans. The Company reviews rent or lease
income, rent rolls, business receipts, the borrower’s
credit history and business experience, and compa-
rable values of similar properties when underwriting
commercial real estate loans.

Loans secured by apartment buildings and
other multi-family residential and commercial
properties generally are larger and considered to
involve a higher inherent risk of loss than single-
family residential mortgage or cooperative apart-
ment loans. Payments on loans secured by multi-
family residential and commercial properties are
often dependent on the successful operation or man-
agement of the properties and are subject, to a
greater extent, to adverse conditions in the real
estate market or the local economy. The Company
seeks to minimize these risks through its underwrit-
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ing policies, which generally limit the origination of
such loans to loans secured by properties located in
the Company’s market area and require such loans
to be qualified on, among other things, the basis of
the property’s income and debt service ratio.

Single-Family Residential and Cooperative
Apartment Lending. The Company, through its
private label program with Cendant, offers both
fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgage loans se-
cured by single-family residential properties located
in the Company’s primary market area. Under its
agreement with Cendant, the Company offers a
range of single-family residential loan products
through various delivery channels, supported by
direct consumer advertising, including telemarket-
ing, branch referrals and the Company’s Internet
website. At December 31, 2002, the Company had
$7.6 million of loans available-for-sale to Cendant.
During 2002, the Company originated for sale
$140.2 million and sold $133.5 million of loans to
Cendant. The Company will continue to emphasize
this program as a means of increasing non-interest
income.

Over the past few years, the Company has de-
emphasized the origination of single-family residen-
tial mortgages, for portfolio, in favor of higher
yielding loan products. At December 31, 2002,
$348.6 million, or 6.0% of the Company’s total loan
portfolio consisted of single-family residential mort-
gage loans (of which $149.4 million were adjusta-
ble-rate mortgage loans (“ARMs”)) as compared
to $492.6 million or 8.5% of the total loan portfolio
at December 31, 2001.

The interest rates on the Company’s ARMs
fluctuate based upon a spread above the average
yield on United States Treasury securities, adjusted
to a constant maturity which corresponds to the
adjustment period of the loan (the “U.S. Treasury
constant maturity index”) as published weekly by
the Federal Reserve Board. In addition, ARMs
generally are subject to limitations on interest in-
creases or decreases of 2% per adjustment period
and an interest rate cap during the life of the loan
established at the time of origination. Certain of the
Company’s ARMs can be converted at certain
times to fixed-rate loans upon payment of a fee.
Interest rates charged on fixed-rate loans are com-
petitively priced based on market conditions. In-
cluded in single-family residential loans is a modest
amount of loans partially or fully guaranteed by the
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Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”) or the
Department of Veterans’ Affairs (“VA”).

Under the Company’s underwriting guidelines,
ARMS can be originated with loan-to-value ratios
of up to 80%. Fixed-rate, single-family residential
mortgage loans can be originated with loan-to-value
ratios of up to 95%; provided, however, that private
mortgage insurance is required for loans with loan-
to-value ratios in excess of 80%. Substantially all of
the Company’s mortgage loans include due-on-sale
clauses which provide the Company with the con-
tractual right to deem the loan immediately due and
payable in the event the borrower transfers owner-
ship of the property without the Company’s consent.
It is the Company’s policy to enforce due-on-sale
provisions within the applicable regulations and
guidelines imposed by New York law.,

The Company continues to originate coopera-
tive apartment loans although at a substantially
reduced level of activity. At December 31, 2002,
such loans amounted to $207.7 million or 3.5% of
the Company’s total loan portfolio as compared to
$356.5 million or 6.1% at December 31, 2001. At
December 31, 2002, ARMs represented $194.3 mil-
lion of cooperative apartment loans. Although the
Company’s cooperative apartment loans in the past
have related to properties located in the boroughs of
Manhattan, Brooklyn and Queens, in recent periods
substantially all of such loans originated or pur-
chased have related to properties located in Man-
hattan, with a significant number of such loans
having original loan balances in excess of $300,000.

In order to provide financing for low and mod-
erate-income home buyers, the Company partici-
pates in residential mortgage programs and products
sponsored by, among others, the State of New York
Mortgage Authority, the Community Preservation
Corporation and Neighborhood Housing Services.
Various programs sponsored by these groups pro-
vide low and moderate income households with
fixed-rate mortgage loans which are generally below
prevailing fixed market rates and which allow be-
low-market down payments for the construction of
affordable rental housing.

Commercial Business Lending Activities.
Part of the Company’s strategy to shift its portfolio
mix is expanding its commercial business loan port-
folio. The Company makes commercial business
loans directly to businesses located primarily in its
market area and targets small- and medium-sized
businesses with annual revenue up to $125.0 mil-




lion. Commercial business loans are obtained pri-
marily from existing customers, branch referrals,
accountants, attorneys and direct inquiries. As of
December 31, 2002, commercial business loans to-
taled $598.3 million, or 10.3%, of the Company’s
total loan portfolio. The Company originated
$406.2 million of commercial business loans during
the year ended December 31, 2002 and $405.4 mil-
lion for the nine months ended December 31, 2001.

As of September 30, 2002, the Company
redesignated approximately $238.0 million of com-
mercial business loans as commercial real estate
loans or multi-family residential loans. See “-Lend-
ing Activities-General”.

Commercial business loans originated by the
Company generally range in amount from $50,000
to $5.0 million and have an average size of approxi-
mately $410,000. These loans have terms of five
years or less, or when secured by related real estate,
generally have terms of ten years or less, and have
floating interest rates tied to the prime rate or the
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus
a margin. Such loans are generally secured by real
estate, receivables, inventory, equipment, machinery
and vehicles and are further enhanced by the per-
sonal guarantees of the principals of the borrower.
Commercial business loans generally have shorter
terms to maturity and provide higher yields than
single-family residential mortgage loans. The Com-
pany’s current lending policy for loans originated for
portfolio and for sale requires that loans in excess of
$2.0 million be approved by two non-officer direc-
tors of the Credit Committee of the Board of
Directors. Although commercial business loans gen-
erally are considered to involve greater credit risk,
and generally a corresponding higher yield, than
certain other types of loans, management intends to
continue emphasizing the origination of commercial
business loans to small- and medium-sized busi-
nesses in its market area.

Included in commercial business loans is small
business lending activities. Small business lending
activities are targeted to customers within the Com-
pany’s market area with over $50,000 in annual
sales. The Company offers various products to small
business customers in its market area which include
(i) originating secured loans for its own portfolio,
(i) originating secured loans in amounts up to
$2.0 million using the Company’s underwriting
standards and guidelines from the Small Business
Administration (“SBA”), and selling, at a gain, the

guaranteed portion (75%) of each loan, with servic-
ing retained, and (iii) offering access to unsecured
lines of credit up to $100,000 through its private
label program with Wells Fargo. (See “— Loan
Origination, Purchases, Sales and Servicing”). The
Company offers these activities to better serve its
small business customers as well as a means o

increasing non-interest income. '

Mortgage Warehouse Lines of Credit. Mort-
gage warehouse lines of credit are revolving lines of
credit to small- and medium-sized mortgage-bank-
ing companies at interest rates indexed at a spread
to the prime rate. The lines are drawn upon by such
companies to fund the origination of mortgages,
primarily one-to-four family loans, where the
amount of the draw is generally no higher than 99%
of the loan amount, which, in turn, in most cases, is
no higher than 80% of the appraised value of the
property. In most cases, where the amount of the
draw is in excess of 80%, the mortgage is covered by
private mortgage insurance or government insur-
ance through the FHA. In substantially all cases,
prior to funding the advance, the mortgage broker
has received an approved commitment for the sale
of the loan which in turn reduces credit exposure
associated with the line. The lines are repaid upon
completion of the sale of the mortgage loan to third
parties which usually occurs within 90 days of
origination of the loan. During the period between
the origination and sale of the loan, the Company
maintains possession of the original mortgage note.
These loans are of short duration and are made to
customers located primarily in New Jersey and
surrounding states whose primary business is mort-
gage refinancing. In the event of rising interest rates,
the Company expects that utilization of these lines
of credit would be substantially reduced and re-
placed only to the extent of strength in the general
housing market.

Mortgage warehouse lines of credits to brokers
generally range in amount from $1.0 million to
$25.0 million, and have an average size of approxi-
mately $7.5 million. The Company establishes lim-
its on mortgage warehouse lines of credit using its
normal underwriting standards. The Company re-
views credit history, business experience, process
controls and procedures and requires personal guar-
antees of the principals of the borrower.

As of December 31, 2002, advances under
mortgage warehouse lines of credit totaled
$692.4 million, or 11.9% of the Company’s total
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loan portfolio compared to $446.5 million at De-
cember 31, 2001. The increase during 2002 was
attributable to the current refinance market. During
2002, advances on mortgage warchouse lines of
credit totaled $7.02 billion and repayments totaled
$6.77 billion, Unused mortgage warehouse lines of
credit totaled $219.1 million at December 31, 2002.
Utilization of the borrowers lines of credit approxi-
mated 77% and 75% of the total line approved at
December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
respectively.

Consumer Lending Activities. The Company
offers a variety of consumer loans including home
equity loans and lines of credit, automobile loans,
student loans and passbook loans in order to provide
a full range of financial services to its customers.
Such loans are obtained primarily through existing
and walk-in customers and direct advertising. At
December 31, 2002, $228.9 million or 3.9% of the
Company’s total loan portfolioc was comprised of
consumer loans.

The largest component of the Company’s con-
sumer loan portfolio is home equity loans and lines
of credit. Home equity lines of credit are a form of
revolving credit and are secured by the underlying
equity in the borrower’s primary or secondary resi-
dence. The loans are underwritten in a manner such
that they result in a risk of loss which is similar to
that of single-family residential mortgage loans. The
Company’s home equity lines of credit have interest
rates that adjust or float based on the prime rate,
have loan-to-value ratios of 80% or less, and are
generally for amounts of less than $100,000 but can
be as high as $300,000. The loan repayment is
generally based on a 15 year term consisting of
principal amortization plus accrued interest. At De-
cember 31, 2002, home equity loans and lines of
credit amounted to $202.0 million, or 3.5%, of the
Company’s total loan portfolio. The Company had
an additional $77.1 million of unused commitments
pursuant to such equity lines of credit at Decem-
ber 31, 2002.

The second largest component of the Com-
pany’s consumer loan portfolio at December 31,
2002 is passbook loans which totaled $10.0 million
and are secured by the borrowers’ deposits at the
Bank. At December 31, 2002, the remaining
$16.9 million of the Company’s consumer loan
portfolio was comprised primarily of miscellaneous
unsecured loans.
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Loan Approval Authority and Underwriting.
The Board of Directors of the Bank has established
lending authorities for individual officers as to its
various types of loan products. For multi-family
residential mortgage loans, commercial real estate
and commercial business loans, an Executive Vice
President and a Senior Vice President have the
authority to approve loans in amounts up to
$500,000 and for the private banking group within
the Company’s retail banking area, two Senior Vice
Presidents acting jointly have such authority.
Amounts up to $2.0 million may be approved by
cither the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief
Credit Officer. For single-family residential mort-
gage loans and cooperative apartment loans, two
senior officers acting jointly have the authority to
approve loans in amounts up to $500,000. Any
mortgage loan, cooperative apartment and commer-
cial business loan in excess of $2.0 million must be
approved by at least two members of the Credit
Committee of the Board of Directors, which con-
sists of various directors, the composition of which
is changed periodically. Consumer loans of less than
$100,000 can be approved by an individual loan
officer, while loans between $100,000 and $300,000
must be approved by two loan officers.

With certain limited exceptions, the Com-
pany’s credit administration policy limits the
amount of credit related to mortgage loans and
commercial loans that can be extended to any one
borrower to $20.0 million, substantially less than the
limits imposed by applicable law and regulation.
With certain exceptions, the Company’s policy also
limits the amount of commercial business or com-
mercial real estate loans that can be extended to any
affiliated borrowing group to $40.0 million. Excep-
tions to the above policy limits must have the
approval of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Credit Officer and Credit Committee of the Board
of Directors. With certain limited exceptions, a
New York-chartered savings bank may not make
loans or extend credit for commercial, corporate or
business purposes (including lease financing) to a
single borrower, the aggregate amount of which
would exceed (i) 15% of the Bank’s net worth if the
loan is unsecured, or (ii) 25% of net worth if the
loan is secured. Pursuant to such provisions, the
Company could lend at December 31, 2002 up to
$219.5 million to any one borrower and related
entities.

Appraisals for multi-family residential and
commercial real estate loans are generally con-




ducted either by licensed and certified internal ap-
praisers or qualified external appraisers. In addition,
the Company generally internally reviews all ap-
praisals conducted by independent appraisers on
multi-family residential and commercial real estate
properties.

Loan Origination and Loan Fees. In addition
to interest earned on loans, the Company receives
loan origination fees or “points” for many of the
loans it originates. Loan points are a percentage of
the principal amount of the mortgage loan and are
charged to the borrower in connection with the
origination of the loan. The Company also offers a
number of residential loan products on which no
points were charged.

The Company’s loan origination fees and cer-
tain related direct loan origination costs are offset,
and the resulting net amount is deferred and amor-
tized over the contractual life of the related loans as
an adjustment to the yield of such loans. At Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the Company had $13.2 million of net
deferred loan fees.

Asset Quality

The Company generally places loans on non-
accrual status when principal or interest payments
become 90 days past due, except those loans re-
ported as 90 days past maturity within the overall
total of non-performing loans. However, student,
FHA or VA loans continue to accrue interest be-
cause their interest payments are guaranteed by
various government programs and agencies. Loans
may be placed on non-accrual status earlier if man-
agement believes that collection of interest or prin-
cipal is doubtful or when such loans have such well
defined weaknesses that collection in full of princi-
pal or interest may not be probable. When a loan is
placed on non-accrual status, previously accrued but
unpaid interest is deducted from interest income.

Real estate acquired by the Company as a
result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclo-
sure is classified as other real estate owned
(“OREQO”) until sold. Such assets are carried at the
lower of fair value minus estimated costs to sell the
property, or cost (generally the balance of the loan
on the property at the date of acquisition). All costs
incurred in acquiring or maintaining the property
are expensed and costs incurred for the improve-
ment or development of such property are capital-
ized up to the extent of their net realizable value.
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Non-Performing Assets.

The following table sets forth information with respect to non-performing
assets identified by the Company, including non-performing loans and OREO at the dates indicated.

At December 31, At March 31,
{Dollars in Thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000 1999
Non-accrual loans:
Mortgage loans:
Single-family residential . . .................. $3005 $ 398 $503 §3,712 §$ 2809
Cooperative apartment . .................... 36 204 211 243 381
Multi-family residential .................... 1,136 2,312 524 1,128 830
Commercial real estate..................... 11,738 6,780 3,477 3,281 2,687
Commercial business loans . .................. 22,495 13,313 6,795 3,821 367
Other loans™ ............. ... ..l 568 1,225 1,534 33 33
Total non-accrual loans .................... 38,978 27,802 17,576 12,218 7,107
Loans past due 90 days or more as to:
Interest and accruing ...... ... ..o 152 130 322 2,616 1,197
Principal and accruing® ... ... .. ... 2,482 18,089 17,750 11,516 30,805
Total past due accruing loans ............... 2,634 18,219 18,072 14,132 32,002
Total non-performing loans ..................... 41,612 46,021 35,648 26,350 39,109
Other real estate owned, net™ .. ...... e 7 130 235 68 273
Total non-performing assets'® .. .. ............... $41,619  $46,151  $35883  $26,418  $39,382
Restructured loans . ........ ... .. ... .ooin.... $4674 $4717 $ 888 $ 897 § 2,750
Non-performing loans as a percent of total loans . .. 0.72% 0.78% 0.68% 0.53% 1.12%
Non-performing assets as a percent of total assets . . 0.52% 0.61% 0.51% 0.40% 0.71%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans . . 1.38% 1.33% 1.36% 1.42% 1.34%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of '
non-performing loans ........................ 193.57% 170.01% 201.18% 266.74% 119.72%

(1) Consists primarily of FHA home improvement loans and home equity loans and lines of credit.

(2) Reflects loans that are 90 days or more past maturity which continue to make payments on a basis consistent with the original

repayment schedule.
(3) Net of related valuation allowances.

(4) Non-performing assets consist of non-performing loans and OREO. Non-performing loans consist of (i) non-accrual loans and

(ii) loans 90 days or more past due as to interest or principal.
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Non-performing assets decreased 9.8% to
$41.6 million at December 31, 2002, compared to
$46.2 million at December 31, 2001. The decrease
of $4.5 million primarily reflects a $15.6 million
decrease in loans past due 90 days or more as to
principal but still accruing, which loans continued to
make payments on a basis consistent with the origi-
nal repayment schedule, partially offset by an
$11.2 million increase in non-accrual loans. The
increase in non-accrual loans was primarily due to
increases of $9.2 million in non-accrual commercial
business loans and $5.0 million in non-accrual com-
mercial real estate loans.

Loans 90 days or more past maturity which
continued to make payments on a basis consistent
with the original repayment schedule amounted to
$2.5 million at December 31, 2002. The Company’s
multi-family residential and commercial real estate
loans are generally structured as a five or ten year
balloon loan with the ability of the borrower to
extend the term of the loan for an additional five
years. At the contractual maturity date of these
particular loans, the borrowers failed to repay in full
the principal due or negotiate a new borrowing
agreement. The borrowers, however, have continued
to make payments on the loans consistent with the
loans’ payment terms based on the original amorti-
zation schedule. Although the Company has con-
tacted the borrowers requesting that they refinance
their loans, the borrowers have not yet taken such
step. The majority of such loans bear interest rates
that are above those being charged currently on
newly originated multi-family residential and com-
mercial real estate loans. Furthermore, the Com-
pany inspects each of such properties at least
annually. These loans decreased by $15.6 million
during 2002 and the Company is continuing its
efforts to have the remaining borrowers refinance or
extend the term of such loans.

The interest income that would have been
recorded during the year ended December 31, 2002,
the nine months ended December 31, 2001 and year
ended March 31, 2001 if all of the Bank’s non-
accrual loans at the end of such period had been
current in accordance with their terms during such
periods was $1.3 million, $1.0 million and $942,000,
respectively.

A New York-chartered savings institution’s de-
termination as to the classification of its assets and
the amount of its valuation allowances is subject to
review by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-
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tion (“FDIC”) and the New York State Banking
Department (“Department™), which can order the
establishment of additional general or specific loss
allowances. The FDIC, in conjunction with the
other federal banking agencies, has adopted an
interagency policy statement on the allowance for
loan and lease losses. The policy statement provides
guidance for financial institutions on both the re-
sponsibilities of management for the assessment and
establishment of adequate allowances and guidance
for banking agency examiners to use in determining
the adequacy of general valuation guidelines. Gen-
erally the policy statement recommends that institu-
tions have effective systems and controls to identify,
monitor and address asset quality problems; that
management has analyzed all significant factors that
affect the collectibility of the portfolio in a reasona-
ble manner, and that management has established
acceptable allowance evaluation processes that meet
the objectives set forth in the policy statement.
Although the Company believes that its allowance
for loan losses was at a level to cover all known and
inherent losses in its loan portfolio at December 31,
2002 that were both probable and reasonable to
estimate, there can be no assurance that the regula-
tors, in reviewing the Company’s loan portfolio, will
not request the Company to materially adjust its
allowance for possible loan losses, thereby affecting
the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations at that time.

Criticized and Classified Assets. Federal reg-
ulations require that each insured institution classify
its assets on a regular basis. Furthermore, in con-
nection with examinations of insured institutions,
federal and state examiners have authority to iden-
tify problem assets and, if appropriate, classify
them. There are three classifications for problem
assets: “‘substandard,” “doubtful” and “loss.” Sub-
standard assets have one or more defined weak-
nesses and are characterized by the distinct
possibility that the insured institution will sustain
some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Doubtful assets have the same weaknesses of sub-
standard assets with the additional characteristic
that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation
in full on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions and values questionable, resulting in a
high probability of loss. An asset classified as loss is
considered uncollectible and of such little value that
continuance as an asset of the institution is not
warranted. The Company also categorizes assets as
“special mention”. These are generally defined as




assets that have potential weaknesses that deserve
management’s close attention. If left uncorrected,
these potential weaknesses may result in deteriora-
tion of the repayment prospects for the asset. How-
ever, they do not currently expose an insured
institution to a sufficient degree of risk to warrant
classification as substandard, doubtful or loss.

The Company’s senior management reviews
and classifies loans continually and reports the re-
sults of its reviews to the Board of Directors on a
monthly basis. At December 31, 2002, the Com-
pany had classified an aggregate of $130.3 million of
assets (a portion of which consisted of non-accrual
loans). In addition, at such date the Company had
$58.4 million of assets that were designated by the
Company as special mention.

Allowance for Loan Losses., The determina-
tion of the level of the allowance for loan losses and
the periodic provisions to the allowance charged to
income is the responsibility of management. In
assessing the level of the allowance for loan losses,
the Company considers the composition of its loan
portfolio, the growth of loan balances within various
segments of the overall portfolio, the state of the
local (and to a certain degree, the national) econ-
omy as it may impact the performance of loans
within different segments of the portfolio, the loss
experience related to different segments or classes
of loans, the type, size and geographic concentration
of loans held by the Company, the level of past due
and non-performing loans, the value of collateral
securing the loan, the level of classified loans and
the number of loans requiring heightened manage-
ment oversight. The continued shifting of the com-
position of the loan portfolio to be more
commercial-bank like by increasing the balance of
commercial real estate and business loans and mort-
gage warehouse lines of credit may increase the
level of known and inherent losses in the Company’s
loan portfolio.

The formalized process for assessing the level
of the allowance for loan losses is performed on a
quarterly basis. Individual loans are specifically
identified by loan officers as meeting the criteria of
pass, criticized or classified loans. Such criteria
include, but are not limited to, non-accrual loans,
past maturity loans, impaired loans, chronic delin-
quencies and loans requiring heightened manage-
ment oversight. Each loan is assigned to a risk level
of special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss.
Loans that do not meet the criteria of criticized or

classified are categorized as pass loans. Each risk
level, including pass loans, has an associated reserve
factor that increases as the risk level category in-
creases. The reserve factor for criticized and classi-
fied loans becomes larger as the risk level increases
but is the same factor regardless of the loan type.
The reserve factor for pass loans differs based upon
the loan and collateral type. Commercial business
loans have a larger loss factor applied to pass loans
since these loans are deemed to have higher levels
of known and inherent loss than commercial real
estate and multi-family residential loans. The re-
serve factor is applied to the aggregate balance of
loans designated to each risk level to compute the
aggregate reserve requirement. This method of anal-
ysis is performed on the entire loan portfolio.

The reserve factors that are applied to pass,
criticized and classified loans are generally reviewed
by management on a quarterly basis unless circum-
stances require a more f{requent assessment. In
assessing the reserve factors, the Company takes
into consideration, among other things, the state of
the national or local economies which could affect
the Company’s customers or underlying collateral
values, the loss experience related to different seg-
ments or classes of loans, changes in risk categories,
the acceleration or decline in loan portfolio growth
rates and underwriting or servicing weaknesses. To
the extent that such assessment results in an in-
crease or decrease to the reserve factors that are
applied to each risk level, the Company may need to
adjust its provision for loan losses which -could
impact earnings in the period in which such provi-
sions are taken.

The Company considers a loan impaired when,
based upon current information and events, it is
probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts
due for both principal and interest, according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. The mea-
surement value of the Company’s impaired loans is
based on either the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest
rate, the observable market prices of the loan, or the
fair value of the underlying collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. The Company identifies and
measures impaired loans in conjunction with its
assessment of the level of the allowance for loan
losses. Specific factors used in the identification of
impaired loans include, but are not limited to,
delinquency status, loan-to-value ratio, the condi-
tion of the underlying collateral, credit history and
debt coverage. Impaired loans totaled $39.9 million
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at December 31, 2002 with a related allowance
allocated of $7.1 million applicable to $39.9 million
of such loans.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses
amounted to $80.5 million at December 31, 2002 as
compared to $78.2 million at December 31, 2001.
The Company’s allowance amounted to 1.38% of
total loans at December 31, 2002 and 1.33% at
December 31, 2001. The allowance for loan losses
as a percent of non-performing loans was 193.6% at
December 31, 2002 compared to 170.0% at Decem-
ber 31, 2001.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses in-
creased $2.3 million from December 31, 2001 to
December 31, 2002 due to provisions totaling
$8.0 million and charge-offs, net of recoveries, of
$5.7 million. The provision recorded reflected the
Company’s increase in non-accrual loans, the in-
crease in classified loans, the increase in delinquen-
cies and charge-offs, the substantial increase in
mortgage warehouse advances, the continued em-
phasis on commercial real estate and business loan
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originations as well as the recognition of current
economic conditions. Included in the $8.0 million of
provisions are adjustments to the allowance for loan
losses by loan category to reflect changes in the
Company’s loan mix and risk characteristics.

The Company will continue to monitor and
modify its allowance for loan losses as conditions
dictate. Management believes that, based on infor-
mation currently available, the Company’s allow-
ance for loan losses at December 31, 2002 was at a
level to cover all known and inherent losses in its
loan portfolio at such date that were both probable
and reasonable to estimate. In the future, manage-
ment may adjust the level of its allowance for loan
losses as economic and other conditions dictate. In
addition, the FDIC and the Department as an
integral part of their examination process periodi-
cally review the Company’s allowance for possible
loan losses. Such agencies may require the Com-
pany to adjust the allowance based upon their
judgment.




The following table sets forth the activity in the Company’s allowance for loan losses during the periods

indicated.
Nine Months
December 31, Decemmber 31, Year Ended March 31,

{Dollars in Thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000 1999
Allowance at beginning of period .......... $78,239 $71,716 $70,286  $46,823  $36,347
Allowances of acquired institutions'” . ... ... — — — 9,452 —
Provision:

Mortgage loans . ...................... 3,733 4,200 625 7,648 9,450

Commercial business and other loans® ... 4,267 3,675 767 2,169 1,248

Total provisions . ...............coooonn. 8,000 7,875 1,392 9,817 10,698
Charge-offs:

Mortgage loans . ............ ... . ..... 1,159 850 120 40 194

Commercial business and other loans® . .. 7,202 1,756 2,489 199 403

Total charge-offs ...................... 8,361 2,606 2,609 239 597
Recoveries:

Mortgage loans .............. ... ..., 1,170 83 1,071 1,020 241

Commercial business and other loans® . .. 1,499 1,171 1,576 3,413 134

Total recoveries ....................... 2,669 1,254 2,647 4,433 375
Net loans (charged-off) /recovered ......... (5,692) (1,352) 38 4,194 (222)
Allowance at end of period ............... $80,547 $78,239 $71,716  $70,286  $46,823
Net loans charged off to allowance for loan

OSSES . v et 7.07% 1.73% N/A N/A 0.47%
Allowance for possible loan losses as a

percent of total loans .................. 1.38% 1.33% 1.36% 1.42% 1.34%
Allowance for possible loan losses as a

percent of total non-performing loans® ... 193.57% 170.01%  201.18% 266.74% 119.72%

(1) Reflects allowance for loan losses acquired in connection with the acquisitions of Broad and Statewide during fiscal 2000 of

$6.7 million and $2.8 million, respectively.

{2) Includes commercial business loans, mortgage warehouse lines of credit, home equity loans and lines of credit, student loans,
automobile loans and secured and unsecured personal loans.

(3) Non-performing loans consist of (i) non-accrual loans and (ii) loans 90 days or more past due as to interest or principal.
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The followirg table sets forth information concerning the allocation of the Company’s allowance for loan
losses by loan category at the dates indicated.

At December 31, At March 31,
2002 2001 2001 2000 1999
Amount of Amount of Amount of Amount of Amount of

{Dollars in Thousands) Allowance  Percent”  Allowance Percent Allowance Percent Allowance Percent Allowance  Percent
Mortgage Loans .... $52,087 73.9% $53,094 78.1% $56,769 84.9% $54,743 90.0% $40,128 96.5%
Commercial Business

Loans ........... 22,927 10.3 18,595 11.3 8,899 8.3 6,729 5.1 4,163 1.1
Mortgage Warehouse

Lines of Credit ... 3,516 11.9 4,349 7.6 2,600 39 — 1.0 - —
Other Loans? ... ... 2,017 3.9 2,201 3.0 3,448 2.9 8,814 3.9 2,532 2.4
Total .............. $80,547 100.0% $78,23% 100.0% $71,716 100.0% $70,286 100.0% $46,823 100.0%

(1) Percent of loans in each category to total loans.

(2) Includes home equity loans and lines of credit, student loans, automobile loans, passbook loans and secured and unsecured personal

loans.

Environmental Issues

The Company encounters certain environmen-
tal risks in its lending activities. Under federal and
state environmental laws, lenders may become lia-
ble under certain circumstances for costs of cleaning
up hazardous materials found on property securing
their loans. In addition, the existence of hazardous
materials may make it uneconomic for a lender to
foreclose on such properties. Although environmen-
tal risks are usually associated with loans secured by
commercial real estate, risks also may be substantial
for loans secured by residential real estate if envi-
ronmental contamination makes security property
unsuitable for use. This could also have a negative
effect on nearby property values. The Company
attempts to control its risk by requiring a Phase One
environmental assessment be completed as part of
its underwriting review for all non-residential mort-
gage applications.

The Company believes its procedures regarding
the assessment of environmental risk are adequate
and the Company is unaware of any environmental
issues which would subject it to any material liabil-
ity at this time. However, no assurance can be given
that the values of properties securing loans in the
Company’s portfolio will not be adversely affected
by unforeseen environmental risks.

Investment Activities

Investment Policies. The investment policy of
the Company, which is established by the Board of
Directors, is designed to help the Company achieve
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its fundamental asset/liability management objec-
tives. Generally, the policy calls for the Company to
emphasize principal preservation, liquidity, diversifi-
cation, short maturities and/or repricing terms, and
a favorable return on investment when selecting new
investments for the Company’s investment and
mortgage-related securities portfolios. In addition,
the policy sets forth objectives which are designed
to limit new investments to those which further the
Company’s goals with respect to interest rate risk
management. The Company’s current securities in-
vestment policy permits investments in various
types of liquid assets including obligations of the
U.S. Treasury and federal agencies, investment-
grade corporate and trust obligations, preferred se-
curities, various types of mortgage-related securi-
ties, including collateralized mortgage obligations
(“CMOs”), commercial paper and insured certifi-
cates of deposit. The Bank, as a New York-
chartered savings bank, is permitted to make certain
investments in equity securities and stock mutual
funds. At December. 31, 2002, these equity invest-
ments totaled $118.0 million. See “-Regulation-
Activities and Investments of FDIC-Insured State-
Chartered Banks”,

The Company also received Board of Director
approval to enter into various derivative contracts
for hedging purposes to facilitate its ongoing asset/
liability management process. The Company’s
hedging activities are limited to interest rate swaps,
caps and floors with outstanding notional amounts
not to exceed in the aggregate 10% of total assets.
The objective of any hedging activities is to reduce




the Company’s interest rate risk. Similarly, the
Company does not invest in mortgage-related secu-
rities which are deemed by rating agencies to be
“high risk,” or purchase bonds which are not rated
investment grade. At December 31, 2002, the Com-
pany had forward starting interest rate swap agree-
ments outstanding with aggregate notional values of
$200.0 million. These agreements qualify as cash
flow hedges of anticipated interest payments relat-
ing to $200.0 million of variable-rate FHLB borrow-
ings that the Company intends to use during 2003 to
replace existing borrowings that will mature during
2003. The swaps require the Company at a future
date to make periodic-fixed rate payments to the
swap counterparties, while receiving periodic varia-
ble-rate payments indexed to the three month LI-
BOR rate from the swap counterparties based on a
common notional amount and maturity date. As a
result, the net impact of the swaps will be to convert
the variable interest payments on the $200.0 million
FHLB borrowings to fixed interest payments the
Company will make to the swap counterparties. The
swaps had a $2.9 million unrealized loss at Decem-
ber 31, 2002. See Note 17 of the “Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8
hereof.

Mortgage-Related Securities. Mortgage-re-
lated securities represent a participation interest in a
pool of single-family or multi-family mortgages, the
principal and interest payments on which are passed
from the mortgage originators, through in-
termediaries (generally U.S. Government agencies
and government sponsored enterprises) that pool
and repackage the participation interests in the form
of securities, to investors such as the Company.
Such U.S. Government agencies and government
sponsored enterprises, which guarantee the payment
of principal and interest to investors, primarily in-
clude the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corpora-
tion (“FHLMC”), the Fannie Mae and the
Government National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA”). The Company primarily invests in
CMO private issuances, which are principally AAA
rated and are current pay sequentials or planned
amortization class structures and CMOs backed by
U.S. Government agency securities.

Mortgage-related securities generally increase
the quality of the Company’s assets by virtue of the
insurance or guarantees that back them, are more
liquid than individual mortgage loans and may be
used to collateralize borrowings or other obligations
of the Company. However, the existence of the

guarantees or insurance generally results in such
securities bearing yields which are less than the
loans underlying such securities.

The FHLMC is a publicly traded corporation
chartered by the U.S. Government. The FHLMC
issues participation certificates backed principally
by conventional mortgage loans. FHLMC guaran-
tees the timely payment of interest and the ultimate
return of principal on participation certificates. The
Fannie Mae is a private corporation chartered by
the U.S. Congress with a mandate to establish a
secondary market for mortgage loans. The Fannie
Mae guarantees the timely payment of principal and
interest on Fannie Mae securities. The FHLMC
and Fannie Mae securities are not backed by the
full faith and credit of the United States, but be-
cause the FHLMC and the Fannie Mae are
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises, these se-
curities are considered to be among the highest
quality investments with minimal credit risks. The
GNMA is a government agency within the Depart-
ment of Housing and Urban Development which is
intended to help finance government-assisted hous-
ing programs. GNMA securities are backed by
FHA-insured and VA-guaranteed loans, and the
timely payment of principal and interest on GNMA
securities are guaranteed by the GNMA and
backed by the full faith and credit of the
U.S. Government. Because the FHLMC, the Fan-
nie Mae and the GNMA were established to pro-
vide support for low-and middle-income housing,
there are limits to the maximum size of one-to-four
family loans that qualify for these programs.

At December 31, 2002, the Company’s
$1.04 billion of mortgage-related securities, which
represented 12.9% of the Company’s total assets,
were comprised of $654.4 million of AAA rated
CMOs and $81.0 of CMOs which were issued or
guaranteed by the FHLMC, the Fannie Mae or the
GNMA (“Agency CMOs”) and $303.3 million of
pass through certificates, which were also issued or
guaranteed by the FHLMC, the Fannie Mae or the
GNMA. The portfolio increased by $136.6 million
during the year ended December 31, 2002 primarily
due to $1.1 billion of purchases partially offset by
proceeds totaling approximately $940.2 million re-
ceived from normal and accelerated principal repay-
ments and a $14.7 million sale of an Agency CMO
at a loss of $0.2 million. The purchases during the
year ended December 31, 2002 consisted of
$783.3 million of AAA rated CMOs with an aver-
age yield of 6.02%, $58.3 million of Agency CMOs
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with a weighted average vyield of 5.65% and
$257.6 million of Fannie Mae pass through certifi-
cates at a weighted average yield of 6.60%.

At December 31, 2002, the contractual matur-
ity of approximately 86.0% of the Company’s mort-
gage-related securities was in excess of ten years.
The actual maturity of a mortgage-related security
is generally less than its stated maturity due to
repayments of the underlying mortgages. Prepay-
ments at a rate different than that anticipated will
affect the yield to maturity. The yield is based upon
the interest income and the amortization of any
premium or discount related to the mortgage-
backed security. In accordance with generally ac-
cepted accounting principles used in the United
States (“GAAP”), premiums and discounts are
amortized over the estimated lives of the securities,
which decrease and increase interest income, re-
spectively. The repayment assumptions used to de-
termine the amortization period for premiums and
discounts can significantly effect the yield of mort-
gage-related securities, and these assumptions are
reviewed periodically to reflect actual prepayments.
If prepayments are faster than anticipated, the life
of the security may be shortened and may result in
the acceleration of any unamortized premium. Al-
though repayments of underlying mortgages depend

on many factors, including the type of mortgages,
the coupon rate, the age of mortgages, the geo-
graphical location of the underlying real estate col-
lateralizing the mortgages and general levels of
market interest rates, the difference between the
interest rates on the underlying mortgages and the
prevailing mortgage interest rates generally is the
most significant determinant of the rate of repay-
ments. During periods of falling mortgage interest
rates, if the coupon rate of the underlying mortgages
exceeds the prevailing market interest rates offered
for mortgage loans, refinancing generally increases
and accelerates the repayment of the underlying
mortgages and the related security. The Company
experienced this condition during the past twelve
months as mortgage rates declined and repayments,
prepayments and maturities increased significantly
to $940.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to $221.4 million for the nine
months ended December 31, 2001. Under this cir-
cumstance, the Company may be subject to rein-
vestment risk to the extent that the Company’s
mortgage-related securities amortize or repay faster
than anticipated, the Company may not be able to
reinvest the proceeds of such repayments and pre-
payments at comparable rates.

The following table sets forth the activity in the Company’s mortgage-related securities portfolio during

the periods indicated, all of which are available-for-sale.

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Mortgage-related securities at beginning of period ............. $ 902,191 § 720,549 § 773,031
Purchases . ... . i 1,099,160 433,944 25,751
Sales . (14,748) (40,248) (4,302)
Repayments, prepayments and maturities. .................... (940,246) (221,413) (118,595)
Amortization of premiums . ....... ... .. (5,592) (665) (348)
Accretion of discounts ........ ... ... .. . 1,271 439 402
Unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale mortgage-related

SECUITEIES L o v o vttt et ettt e e e e e (3,294) 9,585 44,610

Mortgage-related securities at end of period ............... ... $1,038,742 $ 902,191 $ 720,549

Investment Securities. The Company has the
authority to invest in various types of liquid assets,
including U.S. Treasury obligations, securities of
various federal agencies and of state and municipal
governments, preferred securities, mutual funds, eq-
uity securities and corporate and trust obligations.
The Company’s investment securities portfolio in-
creased $99.1 million to $224.9 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to $125.8 million at
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December 31, 2001. The increase was due to
purchases of $226.1 million consisting in large part
of preferred securities and corporate bonds, which
purchases were partially offset by the proceeds re-
ceived from maturities and repayments of
$38.1 million and from sales of $90.3 million of
securities. The sales consisted primarily of preferred
securities, with a weighted average yield of 3.16% at
a $0.6 million gain.




The following table sets forth the activity in the Company’s investment securities portfolio, all of which
are available-for-sale during the periods indicated.

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 December 31, 2001 2001
Investment securities at beginning of period ............ $125,803 $ 201,198 $212,768
Purchases . ... . 226,071 289,355 54,888
SAlES . . ... (90,334) (319,201)" (67,814)
Maturities and repayments. ....... .. ..o L. (38,104) (51,332) (11,028)
Amortization of premium ........... .. .. e (70) 47 (33)
Accretion of discounts ........... ... .. . ... ... 89 136 509
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investment

SECUTIHES ... . i i e 1,453 5,694 11,908

Investment securities at end of period ................. $224,908 $ 125,803 $201,198

(1) The Company recognized a net gain of $0.6 million and $2.8 million on the sale of investment securities during the year ended
December 31, 2002 and the nine months ended December 31, 2001, respectively.

The following table sets forth information regarding the amortized cost and fair value of the Company’s
investment and mortgage-related securities at the dates indicated.

At December 31,

2002 2001 At March 31, 2001.
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
(In Thousands) Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Available-for-sale:
Investment securities:
U.S. Government and
federal agency
obligations . ....... $ 14578 $ 14,634 $ 27617 $§ 27,620 $145,837 $140,152
Corporate securities . . 154,680 155,292 — — — —
Municipal securities . . 5,413 5,735 4,904 5,017 2,772 2,837
Stocks:
Preferred .. .. ... .. 47,435 48,084 91,365 91,322 56,365 56,317
Common ......... 386 1,163 953 1,844 953 1,892
Total investment
securities . ...... 222,492 224,908 124,839 125,803 205,927 201,198
Mortgage-related
securities:
Fannie Mae......... 274,911 278,516 19,417 19,519 21,182 21,111
GNMA ............ 14,807 15,931 21,170 22,387 26,711 27,588
FHLMC ........... 8,422 8,899 10,694 10,776 12,705 12,705
CMOs ...... PR 731,126 735,396 838,142 849,509 656,768 659,145

Total mortgage-
related securities... 1,029,266 1,038,742 889,423 902,191 717,366 720,549

Total securities available-
.............. $1,251,758

$1,263,650 $1,014,262  $1,027,994  $923,293  $921,747
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the contractual maturities of the Company’s
investment and mortgage-related securitics at December 31, 2002, all of which were classified as available-for-
sale.

At December 31, 2002, Contractually Maturing

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Under 1  Average 1-5 Average 6-10 Average  Over 10 Average
(Dollars in Thousands) Year Yield Years Yield Years Yield Years Yield Total
Investment securities:
U.S. Government and
federal agency
obligations. ... ...... $4986  1.15% §$ 9,648 2.08% $ — —% $ — —% § 14,634
Corporate securities ... — — 42272 5.87 7,058  7.32 105,962  4.08 155,292
Municipal securities ... 3,557  4.83 78 1.15 2,100  7.18 — — 5,735
Mortgage-related
securities:
Fannie Mae .......... 33 7.48 9,706  7.07 129,293  6.51 139,484  6.55 278,516
GNMA ............. 13 7.99 577 .66 3,184  8.50 12,157 7.62 15,931
FHLMC............. 38 9.18 456  7.01 273 7.54 8,132  5.89 8,899
CMOs .............. - = 536 6.24 980  6.10 733,880  5.97 735,396
Total.............. $8,627 274% 863,273  5.51% $142,888  6.60% $999,615  5.87% $1,214,403

Sources of Funds

General. Deposits are the primary source of
the Company’s funds for lending and other invest-
ment purposes. In addition to deposits, the Com-
pany derives funds from loan principal and interest
payments, maturitics and sales of securities, interest
on securities, advances from the FHLB of New
York and other borrowings. Loan payments are a
relatively stable source of funds, while deposit in-
flows and outflows are influenced by general interest
rates and money market conditions. Borrowings
may be used on a short-term basis to compensate
for reductions in the availability of funds from other
sources. They may also be used on a longer term
basis for general business purposes.

Deposits. The Company’s product line is
structured to attract both consumer and business
prospects. The current product line includes negoti-
able order of withdrawal (“NOW?”) accounts (in-
cluding the ‘“Active Management” NOW
accounts), money market accounts, non-interest-
bearing checking accounts, passbook and statement
savings accounts, business checking accounts, cash
management services, New Jersey municipal depos-
its, Interest on Lawyers Trust Accounts
(“IOLTA”) and Interest on Lawyers Accounts
(“IOLA”) and term certificate accounts.
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During 2002, the Company’s product line was
expanded to attract middle market business and
larger corporate customers by offering a full suite of
non-credit cash management services. The current
product line includes lockbox services, sweep ac-
counts, automated clearing house (ACH) services,
account reconciliation services, escrow services,
zero balance accounts, cash concentration, wire
transfer services, and a cash management suite of
services business customers can access via the in-
ternet. Business customers benefit from these ser-
vices through reduced operational costs, accelerated
funds availability, and increased interest income.
The primary goal in development of these services
was to increase core deposits from business custom-
ers by offering additional products and services
where fees are offset with compensating balances on
deposit. Accounting for these service dollars and
compensating balances are calculated through the
Company’s account analysis system which provides
its customers with earnings credits applied against
equivalent balances for services.

Development of these products and services
was designed to penetrate new markets by obtaining
larger deposit relationships from business customers
as well as offering borrowing customers additional
business banking products in order to increase their
deposit relationships. Approximately 400 business



customers are using some form of cash management
services as of December 31, 2002.

The Company’s deposits are obtained primarily
from the areas in which its branch offices are
located. The Company neither pays fees to brokers
to solicit funds for deposit nor does it actively solicit
negotiable-rate certificates of deposit with balances
of $100,000 or more.

The Company attracts deposits through a
network of convenient office locations offering a
variety of accounts and services, competitive
interest rates and convenient customer hours. The
Company’s branch network consists of 71
traditional full-service offices and two limited
service offices. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2002 the Company opened four
branches: two full-service branches, one of which is
in Staten Island, New York and the other in
Brooklyn, New York, and two limited service
branches, one of which is in Elmsford, New York
and the other in Melville, New York. The Company
currently expects to expand its branch network
through the opening of approximately twelve
additional branch offices over the next twelve to
eighteen months. During the first quarter of 2003
the Company opened two additional full-service
branches in Manhattan, New York.

During 2002, the Company also expanded its
retail banking services to include a private bank-
ing/wealth management group. This group was ad-
ded to broaden and diversify the Company’s
customer base and offers personalized and special-
ized services, including a carefully selected range of
managed investment alternatives through a third
party, to meet the needs of the Company’s clients.
As of December 31, 2002, the private bank-
ing/wealth management group had $61.2 million in
deposits of which $55.8 million or 91% were core
deposits. In addition, this group generated
$24.2 million of multi-family and commercial busi-
ness loans during the year ended December 31,
2002.

In addition to its branch network, the Com-
pany currently maintains 94 ATMs in or at its
branch offices and 22 ATMs at remote sites. The
Company currently plans to install 12 additional
ATMs in its offices and four ATMs at remote sites
by the end of calendar 2003.

Supplementing the Company’s branch and
ATM network, are its call center, the Interactive
Voice Response unit and its Internet banking ser-
vices. On an average monthly basis, the Company’s
call center responds and processes over 40,000 cus-
tomer transactional requests and informational in-
quiries. The call center also provides account-
opening services and can accept loan applications
related to the Company’s consumer loan product
line. The Interactive Voice Response unit provides
automated voice and touch-tone information to over
200,000 telephoned inquiries per month. The Com-
pany’s Internet banking site currently has approxi-
mately 38,000 users and provides a wide range of
product and account information to both existing
and new customers. Services on this site are being
expanded to include account-opening capabilities,
on-line bill paying and other products and services.

Deposit accounts offered by the Company vary
according to the minimum balance required, the
time periods the funds must remain on deposit and
the interest rate, among other factors. The Com-
pany is not limited with respect to the rates it may
offer on deposit accounts. In determining the char-
acteristics of its deposit accounts, consideration is
given to the profitability to the Company, matching
terms of the deposits with loan products, the attrac-
tiveness to customers and the rates offered by the
Company’s competitors.

The Company’s focus on customer service has
facilitated its growth and retention of lower-costing
NOW accounts, money market accounts, non-inter-
est bearing checking accounts, business checking
accounts and savings accounts, which generally bear
rates substantially less than certificates of deposit.
At December 31, 2002, these types of deposits
amounted to $3.35 billion or 67.8% of the Com-
pany’s total deposits. During the year ended De-
cember 31, 2002, the weighted average rate paid on
the Company’s deposits, excluding certificates of
deposit was 1.01%, as compared to a weighted
average rate of 2.85% paid on the Company’s certifi-
cates of deposit during this period. At December 31,
2002, approximately 69.5% of the Company’s certif-
icate of deposit portfolio was scheduled to mature
within one year, reflecting customer preference to
maintain their deposits with relatively short terms
during the current economic environment.
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The Company’s deposits increased $145.3 million or 3.0% to $4.94 billion at December 31, 2002 from
$4.79 billion at December 31, 2001 as a result of deposit inflows of $63.6 million combined with interest
credited of $81.6 million. For further information regarding the Company’s deposit liabilities see Note 10 of
the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8 hereof.

The following table sets forth the activity in the Company’s deposits during the periods indicated.

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, March 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Deposits at beginning of period ........... .. ... ... ... $4,794,775  $4,666,057  $4,412,032
Other net increase before interest credited .. ................. 63,648 19,293 85,797
Interest credited ... ... ... . . 81,637 109,425 168,228
Net increase in deposits. . ..., 145,285 128,718 254,025
Deposits at end of period. . ........ ... ... ... . L $4,940,060 $4,794,775  $4,666,057

The following table sets forth by various interest rate categories the certificates of deposit with the

Company at the dates indicated.

At December 31, At March 31,

(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
0.01% to 1.49% . ... i $ 381,635 § — —
1.50% 10 1.99% . . oo vt 612,088 — —
200% 10 2.99% . .. 71,626 681,896 19,209
300% 10 3.99% .o it e 253,431 643,879 11,734
4.00% t0 4.99% . ... 97,350 209,596 350,878
5.00% 10 5.99% ..t 144,224 248,040 1,217,202
6.00% t0 6.99% .. 25,648 66,192 667,385
7.00% t0 8.99% . .ot 3,250 4,034 9,868
$1,589,252  $1,853,637  $2,276,276

The following table sets forth the amount and remaining contractual maturities of the Company’s

certificates of deposit at December 31, 2002.

Over Six Over One Over Two
Six Months Year Years Over
Months Through Through Through Three
(In Thousands) Or Less One Year Two Years Three Years Years Total
001% to149%............. $323,687 § 37,701 $ 247 $ — $ — $ 381,635
1.50% t0 1.99% . . ........... 440,944 142,408 19,258 2,266 7,212 612,088
200% t0299% . ............ 19,614 19,903 19,049 12,978 82 71,626
3.00% t0 3.99%. . ........... 17,071 8,381 191,690 3,745 32,544 253,431
4.00% 104.9%% . ............ 7,321 8,545 35,490 543 45,451 97,350
500% t0 5.99%. ............ 37,299 14,145 13,053 7,931 71,796 144,224
6.00% t0 6.99% . ............ 6,240 1,039 1,132 12,068 5,169 25,648
7.00% to 8.99%............. 91 64 457 2,638 — 3,250
Total ........ ... L. $852,267  $252,186  $280,376 $42,169 $162,254  $1,589,252
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As of December 31, 2002, the aggregate
amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in
amounts greater than or equal to $100,000 was
approximately $315.4 million. The following table
presents the maturity of these certificates of deposit
at such date.

(In Thousands) Amount
3monthsorless............... $ 59,717
Over 3 months through 6 months 31,270
Over 6 months through
12months . ................. 90,472
Over 12 months . .............. 133,943
$ 315,402

Borrowings. The Company may obtain ad-
vances from the FHLB of New York based upon
the security of the common stock it owns in that
bank and certain of its residential mortgage loans,
provided certain standards related to creditworthi-
ness have been met. Such advances are made pursu-
ant to several credit programs, each of which has its
own interest rate and range of maturities. Such
advances are generally available to meet seasonal
and other withdrawals of deposit accounts, to fund
increased lending or for investment purchases. The
Company, at December 31, 2002, had $1.23 billion
of FHLB advances outstanding with maturities of
ten years or less with the majority having a maturity
of less than four years. During 2002, the Company
took advantage of the steepness in the yield curve by
securing $350.0 million of adjustable-rate three and
four year borrowings from the FHLB of New York.
These borrowings have interest rate caps that pre-
vent the rates from exceeding 5.25% to 5.70%.
These borrowings have a weighted average interest
rate of 2.46% and are indexed to LIBOR. The
Company also replaced $100.0 million of borrow-
ings that matured in 2002 with fixed-rate ten-year
borrowings, callable in five years, at a weighted
average interest rate of 4.12% and paid off $50.0
million of borrowings that matured with a weighted
average interest rate of 5.21%. At December 31,
2002 the Company had the ability to borrow, from
the FHLB, an additional $1.0 billion on a secured
basis, utilizing mortgage related loans and securities
as collateral. Another funding source available to
the Company is repurchase agreements with the
FHLB. These repurchase agreements are generally
collateralized by CMOs or U.S. Government and
agency securities held by the Company. At Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the Company had $705.0 million of

FHLB repurchase agreements outstanding with ma-
turities ranging up through ten years with the ma-
jority having a maturity of between five and ten
years. For further discussion see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation-Business Strategy-Controlled
Growth” set forth in Item 7 hereof and Note 11 of
the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
set forth in Item 8§ hereof.

Employees

The Company had 1,293 full-time employees
and 266 part-time employees at December 31, 2002.
None of these employees are represented by a
collective bargaining agreement or agent and the
Company considers its relationship with its employ-
ees to be good.

Subsidiaries

At December 31, 2002, the Holding Com-
pany’s two active subsidiaries were the Bank and
Mitchamm Corp. (“Mitchamm”).

Mitchamm Corp. Mitchamm was established
in September 1997 primarily to operate Mail Boxes
Etc. (“MBE”) franchises, which provides mail ser-
vices, packaging and shipping services primarily to
individuals and small businesses. Mitchamm is the
area franchisee for MBE in Brooklyn, Queens and
Staten Island and currently operates one facility.

BNB Capital Trust. BNB Capital Trust (the
“Issuer Trust”) (assumed by the Holding Company
as part of the acquisition of Broad) is a statutory
business trust formed under Delaware law in June
1997. As a result of the Broad acquisition, the Issuer
Trust is wholly owned by the Holding Company. In
accordance with the terms of the trust indenture,
the Trust redeemed all of its outstanding 9.5%
Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities (the “Trust
Preferred Securities”) totaling $11.5 million, at
$10.00 per share, effective June 30, 2002. Accord-
ingly, the Issuer Trust is now considered to be an
inactive subsidiary. See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” set forth in Item 7 hereof and “Finan-
cial Statements and Supplementary Data” set forth
in Ttem 8 hereof for additional information.

The following are the subsidiaries of the Bank:

Independence Community Investment Corp.
(“ICIC”). ICIC was established in December
1998, and is the Delaware-chartered holding com-
pany for Independence Community Realty Corp.
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(“ICRC”) and the Renaissance Asset Corporation
(“RAC”). On December 18, 1998 the Bank trans-
ferred 1,000 shares of ICRC’s common stock, par
value $.01 per share, and 9,889 shares of junior
preferred stock, stated value $1,000 per share, to
ICIC in return for all 1,000 shares of ICIC’s com-
mon stock, par value $.01 per share.

Independence Community Realty Corp.
ICRC was established in September 1996 as a real
estate investment trust. On October 1, 1996, the
Bank transferred to ICRC real estate loans with a
fair market value of approximately $334.0 million in
return for all 1,000 shares of ICRC’s common stock
and all 10,000 shares of ICRC’s 8% junior preferred
stock. In January 1997, 111 officers and employees
of the Bank each received one share of 8% junior
preferred stock with a stated value of $1,000 per
share of ICRC. At December 31, 2002, ICRC held
$1.19 billion of loans and $453.1 million of
short-term investments.

Renaissance Asset Corporation. RAC, which
was acquired from Broad, was established by Broad
National Bank (“Broad National”) in November
1997 as a New Jersey real estate investment trust.
At December 31, 2002, RAC held $312.0 million of
loans and $61.8 million of short-term investments.
Effective January 1, 2003, RAC was merged into a
newly formed Delaware corporation, also called
Renaissance Asset Corporation, with the Delaware
company the surviving entity. Pursuant to the terms
of the merger, each share of common and preferred
stock of the New Jersey corporation was converted
into an identical share of the Delaware company.

Independence Community Insurance Agency,
Inc. (“ICIA”). ICIA was established in 1984.
ICIA was formed as a licensed life insurance
agency to sell the products of the new mutual
insurance company formed by the Savings Bank
Life Insurance Department of New York.

Wiljo Development Corp. (“Wiljo”’). The as-
sets of Wiljo consist primarily of the office space in
the building in which the Company’s executive
offices are located and its limited partnership inter-
est in the partnership which owns the remaining
portion of the building. At December 31, 2002,
Wiljo had total assets of $9.4 million and the
Company’s equity investment in Wiljo amounted to
$8.7 million.

Broad National Realty Corp. (“BNRC”).
BNRC was established by Broad National in July
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1987. The assets of BNRC consist primarily of an
office building located at 909 Broad Street, Newark,
New Jersey. BNRC is also the holding company for
BNB Horizons Inc. (“Horizon). BNRC had total
assets of $3.0 million at December 31, 2002.

Broad Horizons Inc. Horizon was established
by Broad National in May 1998 to manage vacant
land located at 901 Broad Street, Newark, New
Jersey. Horizon’s assets totaled $202,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 2002.

BNB Investment Corp. (“Investment Corp”).
Investment Corp. was established by Broad Na-
tional in February 1987 to hold various investment
securities. Investment Corp. had total assets of
$61.9 million at December 31, 2002.

Bronatoreo, Inc. (“Bronatoreo”). Bronatoreo
was established by Broad National in August 1992
to maintain parking lots located behind 905 Broad
Street, Newark New Jersey. Bronatoreo had total
assets of $1.9 million at December 31, 2002.

Statewide Financial Services (“SFS”’). SFS
was established by Statewide Savings Bank; S.L.A.
in July 1985 to sell annuity products. SFS is cur-
rently inactive with no assets.

Regulation

Set forth below is a brief description of certain
laws and regulations which are applicable to the
Company and the Bank. The description of the laws
and regulations hereunder, as well as descriptions of
laws and regulations contained elsewhere herein,
does not purport to be complete and is qualified in
its entirety by reference to applicable laws and
regulations.

The Holding Company

General. Upon consummation of the Conver-
sion, the Holding Company became subject to regu-
lation as a savings and loan holding company under
the Home Owners’ Loan Act, as amended
(“HOLA”), instead of being subject to regulation
as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956 because the Bank made an
election under Section 10(1) of HOLA to be treated
as a “savings association” for purposes of Sec-
tion 10(e) of HOLA. As a result, the Holding
Company was required to register with the Office of
Thrift Supervision (“OTS”) and is subject to OTS
regulations, examinations, supervision and reporting
requirements relating to savings and loan holding




companies. The Holding Company is also required
to file certain reports with, and otherwise comply
with the rules and regulations of, the Department
and the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). As a subsidiary of a savings and loan
holding company, the Bank is subject to certain
restrictions in its dealings with the Holding Com-
pany and affiliates thereof.

Activities Restrictions. The Holding Com-
pany operates as a umnitary savings and-loan holding
company. Generally, there are only limited restric-
tions on the activities of a unitary savings and loan
holding company which applied to become or was a
unitary savings and loan holding company prior to
May 4, 1999 and its non-savings institution subsidi-
aries. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999
(the “GLBA”), companies which applied to the
OTS to become unitary savings and loan holding
companies after May 4, 1999 will be restricted to
engaging in those activities traditionally permitted
to multiple savings and loan holding companies. If
the Director of the OTS determines that there is
reasonable cause to believe that the continuation by
a savings and loan holding company of an activity
constitutes a serious risk to the financial safety,
soundness or stability of its subsidiary savings insti-
tution, the Director may impose such restrictions as
deemed necessary to address such risk, including
limiting (i) payment of dividends by the savings
institution; (ii) transactions between the savings
institution and its affiliates; and (iii) any activities
of the savings institution that might create a serious
risk that the liabilities of the holding company and
its affiliates may be imposed on the savings institu-
tion. Notwithstanding the above rules as to permis-
sible business activities of grandfathered unitary
savings and loan holding companies under the
GLBA, if the savings institution subsidiary of such a
holding company fails to meet the Qualified Thrift
Lender (“QTL”) test, as discussed under
“— Qualified Thrift Lender Test,” then such uni-
tary holding company also shall become subject to
the activities restrictions applicable to multiple sav-
ings and loan holding companies and, unless the
savings institution requalifies as a QTL within one
year thereafter, shall register as, and become subject
to the restrictions applicable to, a bank holding
company. See “— Qualified Thrift Lender Test.”

The GLBA also imposed new financial privacy
obligations and reporting requirements on all finan-
cial institutions. The privacy regulations require,
among other things, that financial institutions estab-

lish privacy policies and disclose such policies to its
customers at the commencement of a customer
relationship and annually thereafter. In addition,
financial institutions are required to permit custom-
ers to opt out of the financial institution’s disclosure
of the customer’s financial information to non-affili-
ated third parties. Such regulations become
mandatory as of July 1, 2001.

If the Holding Company were to acquire con-
trol of another savings institution, other than
through merger or other business combination with
the Bank, the Holding Company would thereupon
become a multiple savings and loan holding com-
pany. Except where such acquisition is pursuant to
the authority to approve emergency thrift acquisi-
tions and where each subsidiary savings institution
meets the QTL test, as set forth below, the activities
of the Holding Company and any of its subsidiaries
(other than the Bank or other subsidiary savings
institutions) would thereafter be subject to further
restrictions. Among other things, no multiple sav-
ings and loan holding company or subsidiary thereof
which is not a savings institution shall commence or
continue for a limited period of time after becoming
a multiple savings and loan holding company or
subsidiary thereof any business activity other than:
(1) furnishing or performing management services
for a subsidiary savings institution; (ii) conducting
an insurance agency or escrow business;
(iii) holding, managing, or liquidating assets owned
by or acquired from a subsidiary savings institution;
(iv) holding or managing properties used or occu-
pied by a subsidiary savings institution; (v) acting
as trustee under deeds of trust; (vi) those activities
authorized by regulation as of March 5, 1987 to be
engaged in by multiple savings and loan holding
companies; or (vii) unless the Director of the OTS
by regulation prohibits or limits such activities for
savings and loan holding companies, those activities
authorized by the Federal Reserve Board as permis-
sible for bank holding companies. Those activities
described in clause (vii) above also must be ap-
proved by the Director of the OTS prior to being
engaged in by a multiple savings and loan holding
company.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. Under Sec-
tion 2303 of the Economic Growth and Regulatory
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1996, a savings associ-
ation can comply with the QTL test by either
meeting the QTL test set forth in the HOLA and
implementing regulations or qualifying as a domes-
tic building and loan association as defined in Sec-
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tion 7701 (a) (19) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”). A savings bank
subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company
that does not comply with the QTL test must
comply with the following restrictions on its opera-
tions: (i) the institution may not engage in any new
activity or make any new investment, directly or
indirectly, unless such activity or investment is per-
missible for a national bank; (ii) the branching
powers of the institution shall be restricted to those
of a national bank; and (iii) payment of dividends
by the institution shall be subject to the rules
regarding payment of dividends by a national bank.
Upon the expiration of three years from the date the
savings institution ceases to meet the QTL test, it
must cease any activity and not retain any invest-
ment not permissible for a national bank (subject to
safety and soundness considerations).

The QTL test set forth in the HOLA requires
that qualified thrift investments (“QTIs”") represent
65% of portfolio assets of the savings institution and
its consolidated subsidiaries. Portfolio assets are
defined as total assets less intangibles, property used
by a savings association in its business and liquidity
investments in an amount not exceeding 20% of
assets. Generally, QTIs are residential housing re-
lated assets. The 1996 amendments allow small
business loans, credit card loans, student loans and
loans for personal, family and household purpose to
be included without limitation as qualified invest-
ments. At December 31, 2002, approximately 88.1%
of the Bank’s assets were invested in QTIs, which
was in excess of the percentage required to qualify
the Bank under the QTL test in effect at that time.

Limitations on Transactions with Affiliates.
Transactions between savings institutions and any
affiliate are governed by Sections 23A and 23B of
the Federal Reserve Act. An affiliate of a savings
institution is any company or entity which controls,
is controlled by or is under common control with the
savings institution. In a holding company context,
the parent holding company of a savings institution
(such as the Company) and any companies which
are controlled by such parent holding company are
affiliates of the savings institution. Generally, Sec-
tions 23A and 23B (i) limit the extent to which the
savings institution or its subsidiaries may engage in
“covered transactions” with any one affiliate to an
amount equal to 10% of such institution’s capital
stock and surplus, and contain an aggregate limit on
all such transactions with all affiliates to an amount
equal to 20% of such capital stock and surplus and
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(ii) require that all such transactions be on terms
substantially the same, or at least as favorable, to
the institution or subsidiary as those provided to a
non-affiliate. The term “covered transaction” in-
cludes the making of loans, purchase of assets,
issuance of a guarantee and other similar
transactions.

In addition, Sections 22(g) and (h) of the
Federal Reserve Act place restrictions on loans to
executive officers, directors and principal stockhold-
ers. Under Section 22(h), loans to a director, an
executive officer and to a greater than 10% stock-
holder of a savings institution, and certain affiliated
interests of either, may not exceed, together with all
other outstanding loans to such person and affiliated
interests, the savings institution’s loans to one bor-
rower limit {generally equal to 15% of the institu-
tion’s unimpaired capital and surplus).
Section 22(h) also requires that loans to directors,
executive officers and principal stockholders be
made on terms substantially the same as offered in
comparable transactions to other persons unless the
loans are made pursuant to a benefit or compensa-
tion program that (i) is widely available to employ-
ees of the institution and (ii) does not give
preference to any director, executive officer or prin-
cipal stockholder, or certain affiliated interests of
either, over other employees of the savings institu-
tion. Section 22(h) also requires prior board ap-
proval for certain loans. In addition, the aggregate
amount of extensions of credit by a savings institu-
tion to all insiders cannot exceed the institution’s
unimpaired capital and surplus. Furthermore, Sec-
tion 22(g) places additional restrictions on loans to
executive officers. At December 31, 2002, the Bank
was in compliance with the above restrictions.

Restrictions on Acquisitions. Except under
limited circumstances, savings and loan holding
companies are prohibited from acquiring, without
prior approval of the Director of the OTS,
(i) control of any other savings institution or savings
and loan holding company or substantially all the
assets thereof or (ii) more than 5% of the voting
shares of a savings institution or holding company
thereof which is not a subsidiary. Except with the
prior approval of the Director, no director or officer
of a savings and loan holding company or person
owning or controlling by proxy or otherwise more
than 25% of such company’s stock, may acquire
control of any savings institution, other than a
subsidiary savings institution, or of any other savings
and loan holding company.



The Director of the OTS may only approve
acquisitions resulting in the formation of a multiple
savings and loan holding company which controls
savings institutions in more than one state if (i) the
multiple savings and loan holding company involved
controls a savings institution which operated a home
or branch office located in the state of the institution
to be acquired as of March 3, 1987; (ii) the acquiror
is authorized to acquire control of the savings insti-
tution pursuant to the emergency acquisition provi-
sions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act
(“FDIA”); or (iii) the statutes of the state in which
the institution to be acquired is located specifically
permit institutions to be acquired by the state-
chartered institutions or savings and loan holding
companies located in the state where the acquiring
entity is located (or by a holding company that
controls such state-chartered savings institutions).

Federal Securities Laws. The Holding Com-
pany’s common stock is registered with the SEC
under Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
The Holding Company is subject to the proxy and
tender offer rules, insider trading reporting require-
ments and restrictions, and certain other require-
ments under the Exchange Act.

The Bank

General. The Bank is subject to extensive
regulation and examination by the Department, as
its chartering authority, and by the. FDIC, as the
insurer of its deposits, and is subject to certain
requirements established by the OTS as a result of
the Holding Company’s savings and loan holding
company status. The federal and state laws and
regulations which are applicable to banks regulate,
among other things, the scope of their business,
their investments, their reserves against deposits,
the timing of the availability of deposited funds and
the nature and amount of and collateral for certain
loans. The Bank must file reports with the Depart-
ment and the FDIC concerning its activities and
financial condition, in addition to obtaining regula-
tory approvals prior to entering into certain transac-
tions such as establishing branches and mergers
with, or acquisitions of, other depository institutions.
There are periodic examinations by the Department
and the FDIC to test the Bank’s compliance with
various regulatory requirements. This regulation and
supervision establishes a comprehensive framework
of activities in which an institution can engage and
is intended primarily for the protection of the insur-

ance fund and depositors. The regulatory structure
also gives the regulatory authorities extensive dis-
cretion in connection with their supervisory and
enforcement activities and examination policies, in-
cluding policies with respect to the classification of
assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss
reserves for regulatory purposes. Any change in
such regulation, whether by the Department, the
FDIC or as a result of the enactment of legislation,
could have a material adverse impact on the Com-
pany, the Bank and their operations.

Capital Requirements. The FDIC has
promulgated regulations and adopted a statement of
policy regarding the capital adequacy of state-
chartered banks which, like the Bank, are not mem-
bers of the Federal Reserve System.

The FDIC’s capital regulations establish a
minimum 3.0% Tier 1 leverage capital requirement
for the most highly-rated state-chartered, non-
member banks, with an additional cushion of at
least 100 to 200 basis points for all other state-
chartered, non-member banks, which effectively in-
creases the minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio for such
other banks to 4.0% to 5.0% or more. Under the
FDIC’s regulation, the highest-rated banks are
those that the FDIC determines are not anticipating
or experiencing significant growth and have well
diversified risk, including no undue interest rate risk
exposure, excellent asset quality, high liquidity,
good earnings and, in general, which are considered
a strong banking organization and are rated compos-
ite 1 under the Uniform Financial Institutions Rat-
ing System. Leverage or core capital is defined as
the sum of common stockholders’ equity (including
retained earnings), noncumulative perpetual pre-
ferred stock and related surplus, and minority inter-
ests in consolidated subsidiaries, minus all
intangible assets other than certain qualifying super-
visory goodwill and certain mortgage servicing
rights.

The FDIC also requires that savings banks
meet a risk-based capital standard. The risk-based
capital standard for savings banks requires the
maintenance of total capital (which is defined as
Tier 1 capital and supplementary (Tier 2) capital)
to risk-weighted assets of 8%. In determining the
amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, plus cer-
tain off-balance sheet assets, are multiplied by a
risk-weight of 0% to 100%, based on the risks the
FDIC believes are inherent in the type of asset or
item. The components of Tier 1 capital are
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equivalent to those discussed above under the 3%
leverage capital standard. The components of sup-
plementary capital include certain perpetual pre-
ferred stock, certain mandatory convertible
securities, certain subordinated debt and intermedi-
ate preferred stock and general allowances for loan
and lease losses. Allowance for loan and lease losses
includable in supplementary capital is limited to a
maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets. Overall,
the amount of capital counted toward supplemen-
tary capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital. At
December 31, 2002, the Bank exceeded each of its
capital requirements. See Note 21 of the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in
Item 8 hereof.

In August 1995, the FDIC, along with the
other federal banking agencies, adopted a regulation
providing that the agencies will take account of the
exposure of a bank’s capital and economic value to
changes in interest rate risk in assessing a bank’s
capital adequacy. According to the agencies, appli-
cable considerations include the quality of the
bank’s interest rate risk management process, the
overall financial condition of the bank and the level
of other risks at the bank for which capital is
needed. Institutions with significant interest rate
risk may be required to hold additional capital. The
agencies issued a joint policy statement providing
guidance on interest rate risk management, includ-
ing a discussion of the critical factors affecting the
agencies’ evaluation of interest rate risk in connec-
tion with capital adequacy. However, the agencies
have determined not to proceed with the previously
issued proposal to develop a supervisory framework
for measuring interest rate risk and an explicit
capital component for interest rate risk.

Activities and Investments of New York-
Chartered Savings Banks. The Bank derives its
lending, investment and other authority primarily
from the applicable provisions of New York Bank-
ing Law and the regulations of the Department, as
limited by FDIC regulations and other federal laws
and regulations. See “— Activities and Investments
of FDIC Insured State — Chartered Banks.” These
New York laws and regulations authorize savings
banks, including the Bank, to invest in real estate
mortgages, consumer and commercial loans, certain
types of debt securities, including certain corporate
debt securities and obligations of federal, state and
local governments and agencies, certain types of
corporate equity securities and certain other assets.
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Under the statutory authority for investing in equity
securities, a savings bank may directly invest up to
7.5% of its assets in certain corporate stock and may
also invest up to 7.5% of its assets in certain mutual
fund securities. Investment in stock of a single
corporation is limited to the lesser of 2% of the
outstanding stock of such corporation or 1% of the
savings bank’s assets, except as set forth below.
Such equity securities must meet certain tests of
financial performance. A savings bank’s lending
powers are not subject to percentage of asset limita-
tions, although there are limits applicable to single
borrowers. A savings bank may also, pursuant to the
“leeway”” authority, make investments not otherwise
permitted under the New York Banking Law. This
authority permits investments in otherwise imper-
missible investments of up to 1% of the savings
bank’s assets in any single investment, subject to
certain restrictions and to an aggregate limit for all
such investments of up to 5% of assets. Additionally,
in lieu of investing in such securities in accordance
with the reliance upon the specific investment au-
thority set forth in the New York Banking Law,
savings banks are authorized to elect to invest under
a “prudent person” standard in a wider range of
debt and equity securities as compared to the types
of investments permissible under such specific in-
vestment authority. However, in the event a savings
bank elects to utilize the “prudent person” standard,
it will be unable to avail itself of the other provisions
of the New York Banking Law and regulations
which set forth specific investment authority. A
New York-chartered stock savings bank may also
exercise trust powers upon approval of the
Department.

Under recently enacted legislation, the Depart-
ment has been granted the authority to maintain the
power of state-chartered banks reciprocal with those
of a national bank.

New York-chartered savings banks may also
invest in subsidiaries under their service corporation
investment power. A savings bank may use this
power to invest in corporations that engage in vari-
ous activities authorized for savings banks, plus any
additional activities which may be authorized by the
Department. Investment by a savings bank in the
stock, capital notes and debentures of its service
corporations is limited to 3% of the savings bank’s
assets, and such investments, together with the
savings bank’s loans to its service corporations, may
not exceed 10% of the savings bank’s assets.




With certain limited exceptions, a New York-
chartered savings bank may not make loans or
extend credit for commercial, corporate or business
purposes (including lease financing) to a single
borrower, the aggregate amount of which would be
in excess of 15% of the bank’s net worth. The Bank
currently complies with all applicable loans-to-one-
borrower limitations.

Activities and Investments of FDIC-Insured
State-Chartered Banks. The activities and equity
investments of FDIC-insured, state-chartered banks
are generally limited to those that are permissible
for national banks. Under regulations dealing with
equity investments, an insured state bank generally
may not directly or indirectly acquire or retain any
equity investment of a type, or in an amount, that is
not permissible for a national bank. An insured state
bank is not prohibited from, among other things,
(i) acquiring or retaining a majority interest in a
subsidiary,(ii) investing as a limited partner in a
partnership the sole purpose of which is direct or
indirect investment in the acquisition, rehabilitation
or new construction of a qualified housing project,
provided that such limited partnership investments
may not exceed 2% of the bank’s total assets,
(iii) acquiring up to 10% of the voting stock of a
company that solely provides or reinsures directors’,
trustees’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage or
bankers’ blanket bond group insurance coverage for
insured depository institutions, and (iv) acquiring or
retaining the voting shares of a depository institution
if certain requirements are met. In addition, an
FDIC-insured state-chartered bank may not di-
rectly, or indirectly through a subsidiary, engage as
“principal” in any activity that is not permissible for
a national bank unless the FDIC has determined
that such activities would pose no risk to the insur-
ance fund of which it is a member and the bank is in
compliance with applicable regulatory capital
requirements.

Also excluded from the foregoing proscription
is the investment by a state-chartered, FDIC-
insured bank in common and preferred stock listed
on a national securities exchange and in shares of an
investment company registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940. In order to
qualify for the exception, a state-chartered FDIC-
insured bank must (i) have held such types of
investments during the 14-month period from
September 30, 1990 through November 26, 1991,
(ii) be chartered in a state that authorized such
investments as of September 30, 1991 and (iii) file

a one-time notice with the FDIC in the required
form and receive FDIC approval of such notice. In
addition, the total investment permitted under the
exception may not exceed 100% of the bank’s tier
one capital as calculated under FDIC regulations.
The Bank received FDIC approval of its notice to
engage in this investment activity on February 26,
1993. As of December 31, 2002, the book value of
the Bank’s investments under this exception was
$118.0 million, which equaled 17.21% of its Tier 1
capital. Such grandfathering authority is subject to
termination upon the FDIC’s determination that
such investments pose a safety and soundness risk to
the Bank or in the event the Bank converts its
charter or undergoes a change in control.

Regulatory Enforcement Authority. Applica-
ble banking laws include substantial enforcement
powers available to federal banking regulators. This
enforcement authority includes, among other things,
the ability to assess civil money penalties, to issue
cease-and-desist or removal orders and to initiate
injunctive actions against banking organizations and
institution-affiliated parties, as defined. In general,
these enforcement actions may be initiated for vio-
lations of laws and regulations and unsafe or un-
sound practices. Other actions or inactions may
provide the basis for enforcement action, including
misleading or untimely reports filed with regulatory
authorities.

Under the New York Banking Law, the De-
partment may issue an order to a New York-
chartered banking institution to appear and explain
an apparent violation of law, to discontinue unau-
thorized or unsafe practices and to keep prescribed
books and accounts. Upon a finding by the Depart-
ment that any director, trustee or officer of any
banking organization has violated any law, or has
continued unauthorized or unsafe practices in con-
ducting the business of the banking organization
after having been notified by the Department to
discontinue such practices, such director, trustee or
officer may be removed from office by the Depart-
ment after notice and an opportunity to be heard.
The Bank does not know of any past or current
practice, condition or violation that might lead to
any proceeding by the Department against the Bank
or any of its directors or officers. The Department
also may take possession of a banking organization
under specified statutory criteria.

Prompt Corrective Action. Section 38 of the
FDIA provides the federal banking regulators with
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broad power to take “prompt corrective action” to
resolve the problems of undercapitalized institutions.
The extent of the regulators’ powers depends on
whether the institution in question is “well capital-
ized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,”
“significantly undercapitalized” or “critically under-
capitalized.” Under regulations adopted by the federal
banking regulators, an institution shall be deemed to
be (i) “well capitalized” if it has total risk-based
capital ratio of 10.0% or more, has a Tier I risk-based
capital ratio of 6.0% or more, has a Tier I leverage
capital ratio of 5.0% or more and is not subject to
specified requirements to meet and maintain a specific
capital level for any capital measure, (ii) “adequately
capitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of
8.0% or more, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 4.0%
or more and a Tier I leverage capital ratio of 4.0% or
more (3.0% under certain circumstances) and does
not meet the definition of “well capitalized,”
(iii) “undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based
capital ratio that is less than 8.0%, a Tier I risk-based
capital ratio that is less than 4.0% or a Tier I leverage
capital ratio that is less than 4.0% (3.0% under certain
circumstances), (iv) “significantly undercapitalized”
if it has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than
6.0%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than
3.0% or a Tier I leverage capital ratio that is less than
3.0% and (v) “critically undercapitalized” if it has a
ratio of tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or
less than 2.0%. The regulations also provide that a
federal banking regulator may, after notice and an
opportunity for a hearing, reclassify a “well capital-
ized” institution as “adequately capitalized” and may
require an “‘adequately capitalized” institution or an
“undercapitalized” institution to comply with super-
visory actions as if it were in the next lower category
if the institution is in an unsafe or unsound condi-
tion or engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice.
The federal banking regulator may not, however,
reclassify a “significantly undercapitalized” institu-
tion as “critically undercapitalized.”

An institution generally must file a written
capital restoration plan which meets specified re-
quirements, as well as a performance guaranty by
each company that controls the institution, with an
appropriate federal banking regulator within 45 days
of the date that the institution receives notice or is
deemed to have notice that it is “undercapitalized,”
“significantly undercapitalized” or “critically under-
capitalized.” Immediately upon becoming under-
capitalized, an institution becomes subject to
statutory provisions which, among other things, set
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forth various mandatory and discretionary restric-
tions on the operations of such an institution.

As December 31, 2002, the Bank had capital
levels which qualified it as a “well-capitalized”
institution. See Note 21 of the “Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8
hereof.

FDIC Insurance Premiums. The Bank is a
member of the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”)
administered by the FDIC but has deposit accounts
insured by both the BIF and the Savings Associa-
tion Insurance Fund (“SAIF”). The SAIF-insured
accounts are held by the Bank as a result of certain
acquisitions and branch purchases involving SAIF-
insured deposits. Such SAIF-insured deposits
amounted to $2.32 billion as of December 31, 2002.
As insurer, the FDIC is authorized to conduct
examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-
insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-
insured institution from engaging in any activity that
the FDIC determines by regulation or order poses a
serious threat to the FDIC.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insur-
ance of any insured depository institution, including
the Bank, if it determines after a hearing that the
institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or
unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condi-
tion to continue operations, or has violated any
applicable law, regulation, order or any condition
imposed by an agreement with the FDIC. It also
may suspend deposit insurance temporarily during
the hearing process for the permanent termination
of insurance, if the institution has no tangible capi-
tal. If insurance of accounts is terminated, the
accounts at the institution at the time of the termi-
nation, less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue
to be insured for a period of six months to two years,
as determined by the FDIC. Management is aware
of no existing circumstances which would result in
termination of the Bank’s deposit insurance.

Beginning October 1, 1996, effective SAIF
rates ranged from zero basis points to 27 basis
points which was the same range of premiums as
the BIF rates. From 1997 through 1999, almost all
FDIC-insured institutions paid 6.4 basis points of
their SAIF-assessable deposits and approximately
1.3 basis points of their BIF-assessable deposits to

- fund the Financing Corporation. Since January 1,

2000, all FDIC insured institutions are assessed the
same rate for their BIF and SATF assessable depos-
its to fund the Financing Corporation. Based upon




the $2.94 billion of BIF-assessable deposits and
$2.32 billion of SAIF-assessable deposits at Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the Bank expects to pay approximately
$221,000 in insurance premiums per quarter during
calendar 2003.

Brokered Deposits. The FDIA restricts the
use of brokered deposits by certain depository insti-
tutions. Under the FDIA and applicable regulations,
(i) a “well capitalized insured depository institu-
tion”” may solicit and accept, renew or roll over any
brokered deposit without restriction, (ii) an “ade-
quately capitalized insured depository institution”
may not accept, renew or roll over any brokered
deposit unless it has applied for and been granted a
waiver of this prohibition by the FDIC and (iii) an
“undercapitalized insured depository institution”
may not (x) accept, renew or roll over any brokered
deposit or (y) solicit deposits by offering an effec-
tive yield that exceeds by more than 75 basis points
the prevailing effective yields on insured deposits of
comparable maturity in such institution’s normal
market area or in the market area in which such
deposits are being solicited. The term “‘undercapi-
talized insured depository institution” is defined to
mean any insured depository institution that fails to
meet the minimum regulatory capital requirement
prescribed by its appropriate federal banking
agency. The FDIC may, on a case-by-case basis and
upon application by an adequately capitalized in-
sured depository institution, waive the restriction on
brokered deposits upon a finding that the accept-
ance of brokered deposits does not constitute an
unsafe or unsound practice with respect to such
institution. The Company had no brokered deposits
outstanding at December 31, 2002.

Community Investment and Consumer Protec-
tion Laws. In connection with its lending activi-
ties, the Bank is subject to a variety of federal laws
designed to protect borrowers and promote lending
to various sectors of the economy and population.
Included among these are the federal Home Mort-
gage Disclosure Act, Real Estate Settlement Proce-
dures Act, Truth-in-Lending Act, Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, Fair Credit Reporting Act and the
CRA.

The CRA requires insured institutions to de-
fine the communities that they serve, identify the
credit needs of those communities and adopt and
implement a “Community Reinvestment Act State-
ment” pursuant to which they offer credit products
and take other actions that respond to the credit

needs of the community. The responsible federal
banking regulator (in the case of the Bank, the
FDIC) must conduct regular CRA examinations of
insured financial institutions and assign to them a
CRA rating of “outstanding,” “satisfactory,” “needs
improvement” or “unsatisfactory.” The Bank’s lat-
est federal CRA rating based upon its last examina-
tion is “‘satisfactory.”

The Company is also subject to provisions of
the New York Banking Law which impose continu-
ing and affirmative obligations upon banking institu-
tions organized in New York State to serve the
credit needs of its local community (“NYCRA”),
which are similar to those imposed by the CRA.
Pursuant to the NYCRA, a bank must file an
annual NYCRA report and copies of all federal
CRA reports with the Department. The NYCRA
requires the Department to make an annual written
assessment of a bank’s compliance with the
NYCRA, utilizing a four-tiered rating system, and
make such assessment available to the public. The
NYCRA also requires the Department to consider a
bank’s NYCRA rating when reviewing a bank’s
application to engage in certain transactions, includ-
ing mergers, asset purchases and the establishment
of branch offices or automated teller machines, and
provides that such assessment may serve as a basis
for the denial of any such application. The Bank’s
latest NYCRA rating received from the Depart-
ment based upon its last examination is
“satisfactory.”

Limitations on Dividends. The Holding
Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from
the Bank. The Holding Company’s principal source
of revenue consists of dividends from the Bank. The
payment of dividends by the Bank is subject to
various regulatory requirements including a require-
ment, as a result of the Holding Company’s savings
and loan holding company status, that the Bank
notify the Director of the OTS not less than 30 days
in advance of any proposed declaration by its direc-
tors of a dividend.

Under New York Banking Law, a New York-
chartered stock savings bank may declare and pay
dividends out of its net profits, unless there is an
impairment of capital, but approval of the Depart-
ment is required if the total of all dividends declared
in a calendar year would exceed the total of its net
profits for that year combined with its retained net
profits of the preceding two years, subject to certain
adjustments.
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During 2002, the Bank requested and received
approval of the distribution to the Company of an
aggregate of $100.0 million, of which $75.0 million
was declared by the Bank and was funded during
2002 with the remaining $25.0 million declared and
funded in 2003. In December 2000, the Bank re-
quested and received approval of the distribution to
the Company of an aggregate of $25.0 million, of
which $6.0 million had been distributed as of De-
cember 31, 2001, with the remainder distributed in
2002. The distributions were primarily used by the
Company to fund the Company’s open market stock
repurchase programs, dividend payments and con-
sideration paid in October 2002 to increase the
Company’s minority investment in Meridian. See
“Business — Lending Activities-Multi-Family Res-
idential Lending”.

Miscellaneous. The Bank is subject to certain
restrictions on loans to the Holding Company or its
non-bank subsidiaries, on investments in the stock
or securities thereof, on the taking of such stock or
securities as collateral for loans to any borrower, and
on the issuance of a guarantee or letter of credit on
behalf of the Company or its non-bank subsidiaries.
The Bank also is subject to certain restrictions on
most types of transactions with the Holding Com-
pany or its non-bank subsidiaries, requiring that the
terms of such transactions be substantially
equivalent to terms of similar transactions with non-
afhliated firms.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank
is a member of the FHLB of New York, which is
one of 12 regional FHLBs that administers the
home financing credit function of savings institu-
tions. Each FHLB serves as a reserve or central
bank for its members within its assigned region. It is
funded primarily from proceeds derived from the
sale of consolidated obligations of the FHLB Sys-
tem. It makes loans to members (i.e., advances) in
accordance with policies and procedures established
by the Board of Directors of the FHLB. The Bank
had $1.93 billion of FHLB outstanding borrowings
at December 31, 2002.

As an FHLB member, the Bank is required to
purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB of New
York in an amount equal to at least 1% of its
aggregate unpaid residential mortgage loans, home
purchase contracts or similar obligations at the
beginning of each year or 5% of its advances from
the FHLB of New York, whichever is greater. At
December 31, 2002, the Bank had approximately
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$101.6 million in FHLB stock, which resulted in its
compliance with this requirement.

The FHLBs are required to provide funds for
the resolution of troubled savings institutions and to
contribute to affordable housing programs through
direct loans or interest subsidies on advances
targeted for community investment and low-and
moderate-income housing projects. These contribu-
tions have adversely affected the level of FHLB
dividends paid in the past and could continue to do
so in the future. These contributions also could have
an adverse effect on the value of FHLB stock in the
future.

Federal Reserve System. The Federal Reserve
Board requires all depository institutions to main-
tain reserves against their transaction accounts (pri-
marily NOW and Super NOW checking accounts
and personal and business demand deposits) and
non-personal time deposits. As of December 31,
2002, the Bank was in compliance with applicable
requirements. However, because required reserves
must be maintained in the form of vault cash or a
non-interest-bearing account at a Federal Reserve
Bank, the effect of this reserve requirement is to
reduce an institution’s earning assets.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

On July 30, 2002, the President signed into law
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 implementing leg-
islative reforms intended to address corporate and
accounting fraud. In addition to the establishment
of a new accounting oversight board which will
enforce auditing, quality control and independence
standards and will be funded by fees from all pub-
licly traded companies, the bill restricts provision of
both auditing and consulting services by accounting
firms. To ensure auditor independence, any non-
audit services being provided to an audit client will
require preapproval by the Company’s audit com-
mittee members. In addition, the audit partners
must be rotated. The bill requires chief executive
officers and chief financial officers, or their
equivalent, to certify to the accuracy of periodic
reports filed with the SEC, subject to civil and
criminal penalties if they knowingly or willfully
violate this certification requirement. In addition,
under the Act, counsel will be required to report
evidence of a material violation of the securities
laws or a breach of fiduciary duty by a company to
its chief executive officer or its chief legal officer,
and, if such officer does not appropriately respond,



to report such evidence to the audit committee or
other similar committee of the board of directors or
the board itself.

Longer prison terms will also be applied to
corporate executives who violate federal securities
laws, the period during which certain types of suits
can be brought against a company or its officers has
been extended, and bonuses issued to top executives
prior to restatement of a company’s financial state-
ments are now subject to disgorgement if such
restatement was due to corporate misconduct. Ex-
ecutives are also prohibited from insider trading
during retirement plan “blackout” periods, and
loans to company executives are restricted. In addi-
tion, a provision directs that civil penalties levied by
the SEC as a result of any judicial or administrative
action under the Act be deposited to a fund for the
benefit of harmed investors. The Federal Accounts
for Investor Restitution (“FAIR”) provision also
requires the SEC to develop methods of improving
collection rates. The legislation accelerates the time
frame for disclosures by public companies, as they
must immediately disclose any material changes in
their financial condition or operations. Directors and
executive officers must also provide information for
most changes in ownership in a company’s securities
within two business days of the change.

The Act also increases the oversight of, and
codifies certain requirements relating to audit com-
mittees of public companies and how they interact
with the Company’s “registered public accounting
firm” (“RPAF”). Audit Committee members must
be independent and are barred from accepting con-
sulting, advisory or other compensatory fees from
the issuer. In addition, companies must disclose
whether at least one member of the committee is a
“financial expert” (as such term is defined by the
SEC) and if not, why not. Under the Act, a RPAF
is prohibited from performing statutorily mandated
audit services for a company if such company’s
chief executive officer, chief financial officer, comp-
troller, chief accounting officer or any person serving
in equivalent positions has been employed by such
firm and participated in the audit of such company
during the one-year period preceding the audit initi-
ation date. The Act also prohibits any officer or
director of a company or any other person acting
under their direction from taking any action to
fraudulently influence, coerce, manipulate or mis-
lead any independent public or certified accountant
engaged in the audit of the company’s financial
statements for the purpose of rendering the financial

statement’s materially misleading. The Act also
requires the SEC to prescribe rules requiring inctu-
sion of an internal control report and assessment by
management in the annual report to shareholders.
The Act requires the RPAF that issues the audit
report to attest to and report on management’s
assessment of the company’s internal controls. In
addition, the Act requires that each financial report
required to be prepared in accordance with (or
reconciled to) generally accepted accounting princi-
ples and filed with the SEC reflect all material
correcting adjustments that are identified by a
RPAF in accordance with generally accepted ac-
counting principles and the rules and regulations of
the SEC.

Taxation
Federal Taxation

General. The Company is subject to federal
income taxation in the same general manner as
other corporations with some exceptions discussed
below.

The following discussion of federal taxation is
intended only to summarize certain pertinent fed-
eral income tax matters and is not a comprehensive
description of the tax rules applicable to the Com-
pany. The Company’s federal income tax returns
have been audited or closed without audit by the
Internal Revenue Service through 1998.

Method of Accounting. For federal income
tax purposes, the Company currently reports its
income and expenses on the accrual method of
accounting and uses a tax year ending December 31
for filing its consolidated federal income tax returns.
The Small Business Protection Act of 1996 (the
“1996 Act”) eliminated the use of the reserve
method of accounting for bad debt reserves by
savings institutions, effective taxable years begin-
ning after 1995.

Bad Debt Reserve. Prior to the 1996 Act, the
Company was permitted to establish a reserve for
bad debts and to make annual additions to the
reserve. These additions could, within specified
formula limits, be deducted in arriving at the Bank’s
taxable income. As a result of the 1996 Act, the
Bank must use the specific charge off method in
computing its bad debt deduction beginning with its
1996 federal tax return. In addition, federal legisla-
tion requires the recapture (over a six year period)
of the excess of tax bad debt reserves at Decem-
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ber 31, 1995 over those established as of Decem-
ber 31, 1987. The amount of such reserve remaining
subject to recapture as of December 31, 2002 was
approximately $601,000. The Company has an asso-
ciated deferred tax liability of approximately
$252,000 at December 31, 2002.

As discussed more fully below, the Company
and certain eligible or qualified subsidiaries file
combined New York State Franchise and New
York City Financial Corporation tax returns. The
basis of the determination of each tax is the greater
of a tax on entire net income (or on alternative
entire net income) or a tax computed on taxable
assets. However, for state purposes, New York State
enacted legislation in 1996, which among other
things, decoupled the Federal and New York State
tax laws regarding thrift bad debt deductions and
permits the continued use of the bad debt reserve
method under Section 593 of the Code. Thus,
provided the Bank continues to satisfy certain defi-
nitional tests and other conditions, for New York
State and City income tax purposes, the Bank is
permitted to continue to use the special reserve
method for bad debt deductions. The deductible
annual addition to the state reserve may be com-
puted using a specific formula based on the Bank’s
loss history (“Experience Method”) or a statutory
percentage equal to 32% of the Bank’s New York
State or City taxable income (“Percentage
Method”). '

Taxable Distributions and Recapture. Prior
to the 1996 Act, bad debt reserves created prior to
January 1, 1988 were subject to recapture into
taxable income should the Bank fail to meet certain
thrift asset and definitional tests. New federal legis-
lation eliminated these thrift related recapture rules.
However, under current law, pre-1988 reserves re-
main subject to recapture should the Bank make
certain non-dividend distributions or cease to main-
tain a bank charter.

At December 31, 2002, the Bank’s total federal
pre-1988 reserve was approximately $30.0 million.
This reserve reflects the cumulative effects of fed-
eral tax deducticns by the Company for which no
Federal income tax provision has been made.

Alternative Minimum Tax. The Code im-
poses an alternative minimum tax (“AMT”) at a
rate of 20% on a base of regular taxable income plus
certain tax preferences (“alternative minimum tax-
able income” or “AMTI"’). The AMT is payable to
the extent such AMTI is in excess of an exemption
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amount. Net operating losses can offset no more
than 90% of AMTI. Certain payments of alternative
minimum tax may be used as credits against regular
tax liabilities in future years. As of December 31,
2002, the Company has no AMT credits available
as credits for carryover.

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. For the years
beginning after August 5, 1997, a financial institu-
tion may carry back net operating losses to the
preceding two taxable years and carry forward to the
succeeding twenty taxable years. At December 31,
2002, the Bank had no net operating loss carryfor-
wards for federal income tax purposes.

Corporate Dividends-Received Deduction.
The Holding Company may exclude from its in-
come 100% of dividends received from the Bank as
a member of the same afhliated group of corpora-
tions. The corporate dividends-received deduction is
80% in the case of dividends received from corpora-
tions with which a corporate recipient does not file a
consolidated tax return, and corporations which own
less than 20% of the stock of a corporation distribut-
ing a dividend may deduct only 70% of dividends
received or accrued on their behalf.

State and Local Taxation

New York State and New York City Taxation.
The Company and certain eligible and qualified
subsidiaries report income on a combined calendar
year basis to both New York State and New York
City. New York State Franchise Tax on corpora-
tions is imposed in an amount equal to the greater of
(a) 8% of “entire net income” allocable to New
York State (b) 3% of “alternative entire net in-
come” allocable to New York State (¢) 0.01% of
the average value of assets allocable to New York
State or (d) nominal minimum tax. Entire net
income is based on federal taxable income, subject
to certain modifications. Alternative entire net in-
come is equal to entire net income without certain
modifications. The New York City Corporation Tax
is imposed in an amount equal to the greater of 9%
of “entire net income” allocable to New York City
or similar alternative taxable methods and rates as
New York State,

A Metropolitan Transportation Business Tax
Surcharge on Corporations doing business in the
Metropolitan District has been applied since 1982.
The Company transacts a significant portion of its
business within this District and is subject to this
surcharge. For the tax year ended December 31,




2002, the surcharge rate is 19.125% of New York
State franchise tax liability.

If the Bank fails to meet certain thrift assets
and definitional tests for New York State and New
York City tax purposes, it would have to recapture
into taxable income approximately $130.0 million of
previously recognized deductions. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2002, no related deferred taxes have been
recognized.

New York State audited the Company’s in-
come tax returns for calendar years 1997, 1998 and
1999 with no material adjustments made.

New Jersey State Taxation. The Company
and certain eligible and qualified subsidiaries report

ITEM 2. Properties
Offices and Properties

income on a separate company basis, as New Jersey
Law does not permit consolidated return filing. The
state of New Jersey imposes a tax on entire net
income at a rate of 9% of allocated income on
corporations.

Delaware State Taxation. As a Delaware
holding company not earning income in Delaware,
the Company is exempt from Delaware corporate
income tax but is required to file an annual report
with and pay an annual franchise tax to the State of
Delaware. The tax is imposed as a percentage of the
capital base of the Company with an annual maxi-
mum of $150,000. The Holding Company pays the
maximum franchise tax.

At December 31, 2002, the Company conducted its business from its executive offices in Brooklyn and 73

branch offices:

Locationt”

Executive and Administrative Offices:

195 Montague Street, Brooklyn, New York 11201
25 Main Street, Hackensack, New Jersey 07602 . ...
One Gateway Center 7-45 Raymond Plaza West, Newark, New Jersey 07102 . ...
551 5th Avenue, New York, New York 10176......

Branch Offices: :

130 Court Street Brooklyn, New York 11201 ... ..
6424-18th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11204 ... ..
23 Newkirk Plaza, Brooklyn, New York 11226 .....
443 Hillside Avenue, Williston Park, New York 11596
23-56 Bell Boulevard Bayside, New York 11360 . ...
250 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York 10016
1416 East Avenue, Bronx, New York 10462 . .......
1420 Northern Boulevard, Manhasset, New York 11030
1769-86th Street, Brooklyn, New York 11214 ......
Pratt Institute Campus 200 Willoughby Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11205 .. ...
2357-59 86th Street, Brooklyn, New York 11214, ...

4514 16th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11204 .. ...

37-10 Broadway, Long Island City, New York 11103

22-59 31st Street, Long Island City, New York 11105
24-28 34th Avenue, Long Island City, New York 11106
51-12 31st Avenue, Woodside, New York 11377 .. ..

Lease
Owned or  Expiration
Leased Date
......................... Owned
......................... Leased 2007
Leased 2007
......................... Leased 2015
......................... Owned
.......................... Owned
......................... Owned
........................ Owned
......................... Leased 2008
......................... Leased 2030
......................... Leased 2012
....................... Leased 2017
......................... Owned
Leased @)
......................... Owned
......................... Owned
......................... Owned
........................ Owned
..................... Leased 2007
......................... Leased 2007

{continued)
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Lease
Expiration
Date

Owned or
Location'” Leased
83-20 Roosevelt Avenue, Jackson Heights, New York 11372................... Leased
75-15 31st Avenue, Jackson Heights, New York 11370 ............ .. ....... Leased
89-01 Northern Boulevard, Jackson Heights, New York 11372 ................. Leased
498 Columbia Street, Brooklyn, New York 11231 .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... Leased
150-28 Union Turnpike, Flushing, New York 11367 ........... ... ... ... ... .. Leased
234 Prospect Park West, Brooklyn, New York 11215 ... ... .. ... ... ... ... Owned
7500 Fifth Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11209 ........ ... ... i, Owned
440 Avenue P, Brooklyn, New York 11223 .. ... ... . ... . . . ... ... . .. .. Owned
301 Avenue U, Brooklyn, New York 11223 ... .. ... ... .. .. i i, Owned
8808 Fifth Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11209 ........ ... .. ... ... ... ...... Owned
1310 Kings Highway, Brooklyn, New York 11229 ....... ... . ... ... . ... ... Owned
4823 13th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219 ....... ... . ... . ... ... . .... Owned
1302 Avenue J, Brooklyn, New York 11230 ......... . ... ... ... .. e, Owned
1550 Richmond Road, Staten Island, New York 10304 .. ..................... Owned
1460 Forest Avenue, Staten Island, New York 10302 . ... ... ... .. .. ... ....... Leased
2655 Richmond Avenue, Staten Island, New York 10314 ..................... Leased
6509 Bay Parkway, Brooklyn, New York 11204 . ... ... ... ... ... .. .. .... Owned
131 Jericho Turnpike, Mineola, New York 11501 ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ....... Leased
1112 South Avenue, Staten Island, New York 10314 . ... .. ... ... ... ... ..... Leased
100 Clearbrook Road, Elmsford, New York 10523 ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. .... Leased
105 Maxess Road, Melville, New York 11747 . ... ... ... . . .. ... Leased
40 Washington Street, Brookiyn, New York 11201 .............. ... ... ..... Leased
905 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102 ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... ..... Owned
745 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102 . ... ... ... ... Leased
243 Chestnut Street, Newark, New Jersey 07105. .. .......... ... ... oveen.. Leased
236 West St. George Avenue, Linden, New Jersey 07036 ..................... Leased
1-7 Wheeler Point Road, Newark, New Jersey 07105 . ........................ Leased
133 Jackson Street, Newark, New Jersey 07105. .. ... ... ... oo, Owned
225 Milburn Avenue, Milburn, New Jersey 07041 ... ......................... Leased
65 River Road, North Arlington, New Jersey 07031 .......................... Leased
1000 South Elmora Avenue, Elizabeth, New Jersey 07202....... ... ... ..... Leased
30 W. Mt. Pleasant Avenue, Livingston, New Jersey 07039 .................... Leased
Convery Plaza, Route 35, Perth Amboy, New Jersey 08861.................... Leased
466 Bloomfield Avenue, Newark, New Jersey 07107 .. ........................ Leased
826 Elizabeth Avenue, Elizabeth, New Jersey 07201 ......................... Owned
554 Central Avenue, East Orange, New Jersey 07018 . . .......... ... ... ..... Owned
255 Prospect Avenue, West Orange, New Jersey 07052 ....................... Leased
348 Central Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07307 . .......... ... ..ot Leased
290 Ferry Street, Newark, New Jersey 07105. ... ... ... .. ..., Leased
9 Path Plaza, Jersey City, New Jersey 07306 .. ... ... .. i, Leased
241 Central Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07307 . ........... ... ... .. ..... Owned
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2005
2004
2004
2007
2012

2011
2010

2010
2016
2007
2006
2012

2003
2007
2014
2009

2006
2003
2006
2006
2007
2007

2004
2006
2005
2011

{continued)



Location”

Lease

214 Newark Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

12 Chapel Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07305

400 Marin Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
86 River Street, Hoboken, New Jersey 07030.......
416 Anderson Avenue, Cliffside Park, New Jersey 07010 ......................

35 South Main Street, Lodi, New Jersey 07644

Building ... ...

Adjacent parcel of land ......... ... ... ... ...
19 Schuyler Avenue, North Arlington, New Jersey 07031 .....................
1322A Patterson Plank Road, Secaucus, New Jersey 07094 .. ..................
456 North Broad Street, Elizabeth, New Jersey 07208
314 Elizabeth Avenue, Elizabeth, New Jersey 07206
345 South Avenue, Garwood, New Jersey 07027 .. ..
246 South Avenue, Fanwood, New Jersey 07023 . ...
1886 Springfield Avenue, Maplewood, New Jersey 07040. . ....................
1126 Route 9, Old Bridge, New Jersey 08857 ......
900 Springfield Road, Union, New Jersey 07083 . ...

Owned or  Expiration
Leased Date
......................... Owned
......................... Leased 2004
......................... Leased 2010
......................... Leased 2007
Owned
......................... Owned
......................... Leased 2005
Leased 2008
Owned
........................ Owned
......................... Leased 2098
......................... Owned
......................... Owned
Leased 2009
......................... Leased 2006
......................... Leased 2006

(1) Branch offices located at 43 East 8th Street, New York, NY 10003 and 169 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10011 opened for

business during the first quarter of 2003.

(2) The Bank operates a full-service branch on the ground floor of the building.

(3) Designated as the Bank’s main office.

(4) The Bank executed a “Memorandum of Understanding” with the Pratt Institute to occupy the space; no expiration date was stated in

the Memorandum.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings
Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in routine legal pro-
ceedings occurring in the ordinary course of busi-
ness which in the opinion of management, in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on
the consolidated financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

On December 1, 1995, Statewide Savings Bank
(“Statewide”) initiated a suit against the U.S. Gov-
ernment alleging, among other things, breach of
contract and secking damages for harm caused to
Statewide through changes in Federal banking regu-
lations regarding the treatment of supervisory good-
will in calculating the capital of thrift institutions.
The case relates to supervisory goodwill created by
Statewide’s 1982 acquisition of Arch Federal Sav-
ings and Loan Association (“Arch”). The enact-
ment of the Financial Institutions Reform,
Recovery and Enforcement Act (“FIRREA”) in

1989 resulted in the amendment of Federal regula-
tions requiring a phase-out of supervisory goodwill
from the calculation of a thrift institution’s capital
ratios and requiring that by January 1, 1995, no
supervisory goodwill be counted as capital. As of the
effective date of the regulations, Statewide had
$18.7 million in goodwill from the Arch acquisition
on its balance sheet. Statewide filed its claim on
December 1, 1995. After litigating the matter for
approximately seven years, the parties agreed to a
stipulation of dismissal which was signed on Febru-
ary 14, 2003. The order of the court dismissing the
case was signed on February 19, 2003.

See “Taxation-State and Local Taxation™ for a
discussion of the status of audits of the Company’s
New York State income tax returns.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a
Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant’s
Common Equity and Related
Stockholders’ Matters

On March 13, 1998 the conversion and reor-
ganization of the Bank and its mutual holding
company parent was completed. The common stock
began trading on the Nasdaq Stock Market on
March 17, 1998. In connection with the consumma-
tion of the Conversion, the Holding Company is-
sued 76,043,750 shares of common stock, including
5,632,870 shares which were contributed to the
Independence Community Foundation (the “Foun-
dation”). As of December 31, 2002, there were
56,248,898 shares of common stock outstanding. As
of March 14, 2003 the Holding Company had
11,475 stockholders of record not including the
number of persons or entities holding stock in nomi-
nee or street name through various brokers and
banks.

The following table sets forth the high and low
closing stock prices of the Holding Company’s com-
mon stock as reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market
under the symbol “ICBC” during the periods
presented. Price information appears in major news-
papers under the symbols “IndepCmntyBk” or
“IndpCm”.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
High Low High Low

First Quarter .. $28.850 $22.500 $17.500 $15.125

Second Quarter  34.740  26.350 19.850  16.625
Third Quarter..  32.280 23.280 25.180 17.000
Fourth Quarter 26.640 21270 24850 20.500

The following table sets forth the high and low
bid information of the Holding Company’s common
stock as reported by the Nasdagq Stock Market
under the symbol “ICBC” during the periods
presented. Such bid information reflects inter-dealer
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prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or com-
mission and may not represent actual transactions.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Bid High Low High Low

First Quarter .. $28,760 $22.500 $17.438 $14.563

Second Quarter 34,720 26350 19.780 16.625
Third Quarter.. 32260 23.280 25.110 17.040
Fourth Quarter 26.620 21.260 24.800  20.500

The following schedule summarizes the cash
dividends per share of common stock paid by the
Holding Company during the periods indicated.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
First Quarter. .. .. $0.11 $0.08
Second Quarter .. 0.12 0.08
Third Quarter . . .. 0.13 0.09
Fourth Quarter. .. 0.14 0.10

The following schedule summarizes the total
cash dividends paid by the Holding Company on its
common stock during the periods indicated.

Year Ended Year Ended
{In Thousands) December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
First Quarter. . ... $5,919 $4,370
Second Quarter .. 6,388 4,345
Third Quarter. ... 6,850 4,887
Fourth Quarter. .. 7,399 5,348

On January 31, 2003, the Board of Directors
declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.15 per
share of Common Stock, payable on February 25,
2003, to stockholders of record at the close of
business on February 11, 2003.

See “Liquidity and Commitments” set forth in
Item 7 hereof and Notes 1 and 23 of the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in
Item 8 hereof for discussion of restrictions on the
Holding Company’s ability to pay dividends.



ITEM 6. Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data

At December 31, At March 31,

(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000 1999
Selected Financial Condition Data:
Total assets ...........cvviririninn. $8,023,643 $7,624,798 $7,010,867 $6,604,150 $5,536,978
Cash and cash equivalents ............. 199,057 207,633 277,762 152,167 279,885
Investment securities available-for-sale . . . 224,908 125,803 201,198 212,768 331,795
Mortgage-related securities available-for-

sale. .. ... . 1,038,742 902,191 720,549 773,031 1,189,833
Loans available-for-sale................ 114,379 3,696 — — —
Loans receivable, net .................. 5,736,826 5,796,196 5,189,725 4,880,234 3,459,658
Goodwill'V ... 185,161 185,161 185,161 200,410 19,939
Intangible assets .. .................... 2,046 8,981 13,833 20,569 27,305
Deposits. . ..o 4,940,060 4,794,775 4,666,057 4,412,032 3,447,364
FHLB borrowings .................... 1,931,550 1,682,700 1,308,950 1,160,375 1,106,725
Trust preferred securities® ... .......... —_ 11,067 11,067 11,500 —
Other borrowings ..................... — 88 343 2,363 11,639
Total stockholders” equity .............. 920,268 880,533 813,156 834,807 824,962

For the For the
For the Nine Months  Twelve Months
Year Ended Ended Ended
(Dollars In Thousands, December 31, December 31, December 31, For the Year Ended March 31,
Except Per Share Data) 2002 2001 2001 2001 2000 1999
(unaudited)

Selected Operating Data:
Interest income. ............. $485,503 $362,206 $482,621 $470,702 $402,486 $336,415
Interest expense ............. 175,579 172,626 236,442 247457 203,660 167,221
Net interest income .......... 309,924 189,580 246,179 223,245 198,826 169,194
Provision for loan losses....... 8,000 7,875 8,475 1,392 9,817 10,698
Net interest income after

provision for loan losses. . . .. 301,924 181,705 237,704 221,853 189,009 158,496
Net gain (loss) on sales of

loans and securities ........ 557 2,850 3,145 3,398 (1,716) 390
Other non-interest income. . ... 74,561 41,623 53,924 34,940 13,632 10,933
Amortization of goodwill'" .. .. — — 3,594 14,344 7,780 1,884
Amortization of intangible

asSetS ... 6,971 5,761 7,481 6,880 6,833 6,745
Other non-interest expense . . . . 178,084 109,880 144,854 131,602 105,277 89,574
Income before provision for

Income taxes .............. 191,987 110,537 138,844 107,365 86,035 71,616
Provision for income taxes .... 09,585 40,399 52,779 45,329 32,789 26,441
Netincome................. $122,402 $ 69,638 $ 86,065 $ 62,036 $ 53,246 $ 45,175
Basic earnings per share ...... $ 237 $ 1.33 $ 164 § 111 $ 09 §$ 0.67
Diluted earnings per share. . . .. $ 224 $ 127 $ 158 $§ 110 $§ 090 $ 0.66

(footnotes on next page)
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At or For the At or For the
At or For the Nine Months Twelve Months

Year Ended Ended Ended At or For the Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, March 31,

(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2002 2001 2001 2001 2000 1999
Key Operating Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:'¥
Returnonassets.......................... 1.55% 1.27% 1.19% 091% 0.88% 0.90%
Returnonequity ................ ... . ... 13.54 11.01 10.32 7.60 6.51 4.87
Average interest-earning assets to average

interest-bearing liabilities ................ 106.52 106.55 106.44 107.25 11129 120.66
Interest rate spread™ ... .. ... ... .. . ..., 4.08 3.35 3.47 3.23 3.06 2.79
Net interest margin® ..................... 4.23 3.77 3.69 3.51 347 350
Non-interest ex(pense to average assets ....... 2.34 2.10 2.15 223 1.98 1.95
Efficiency ratio® .. ... .. ... ... 46.32 47.53 48.27 5097 4841  49.73
Cash dividends declared per common share . . . $ 050 $ 027 $ 035 $ 030§ 021 § 006
Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans as a percent of total

loans at end of period ................... 0.72% 0.78% 0.78% 0.68% 0.53% 1.12%
Non-performing assets to total assets at end of

period . .. 0.52 0.61 0.61 0.51 040 071
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing

loans at end of period ................... 193.57 170.01 170.01 201.18  266.74 119.72
Allowance for loan losses to total loans at end

of period ... ... 1.38 1.33 1.33 1.36 1.42 1.34
Capital and Other Information:¥
Equity to assets at end of period ............ 11.47% 11.54% 11.54% 11.60% 12.64% 14.90%
Leverage capital®™ . ....................... 8.73 8.60 8.60 820  7.83 1285
Tangible eq(uity to risk-weighted assets at end

of period® ... 10.14 10.85 10.85 11,70 1137 17.73
Total capital to risk-weighted assets at end of

period® . 11.40 12.20 12.20 1295 1262 19.03
Tangible book value per share .............. $ 13.03 $ 1176 $ 1176  $1039 § 9.13 $ 1146
Number of offices at end of period .......... 73 69 69 67 65 32
(1) Represents the excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired. The increase from March 31, 1999 to March 31, 2000 reflected

(2)

(3)
4)

(3)

(6)

7N

(8)
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the $98.8 millior. and $88.6 million of goodwill resulting from the acquisitions of Broad and Statewide, respectively. Effective April 1,
2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which
resulted in discontinuing the amortization of goodwill. See Note 8 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in
Item 8 hereof. :

The Trust Preferred Securities were assumed by the Holding Company as part of the Broad acquisition effective the close of business
on July 31, 1999. In accordance with the terms of the trust indenture, the Trust redeemed all of its outstanding Trust Preferred
Securities totaling $11.5 million, at $10.00 per share, effective June 30, 2002,

Where applicable, ratios have been annualized.

With the exception of end of period ratios and the efficiency ratio, all ratios are based on average daily balances during the respective
periods.

Interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted-average yield on interest-carning assets and the weighted-average
cost of interest-bearing liabilities; net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning
assets.

Reflects adjusted operating expense (net of amortization of goodwill and other intangibles) as a percent of the aggregate of net
interest income and adjusted non-interest income (excluding gains and losses on the sales of loans and securities).

Non-performing assets consist of non-accrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal repayment and accruing
and real estate acquired through foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu therefore.

Ratios reflect the capital position of the Bank only.



ITEM 7.

Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condi-
tion and Results of Operations

General

The Company’s results of operations depend
primarily on its net interest income, which is the
difference between interest income on interest-earn-
ing assets, which principally consist of loans, mort-
gage-related securities and investment securities,
and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities,
which consist of deposits and borrowings. Net inter-
est income is determined by the Company’s interest
rate spread (i.e., the difference between the yields
earned on its interest-earning assets and the rates
paid on its interest-bearing liabilities) and the rela-
tive amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities.

The Company’s results of operations also are
affected by the provision for loan losses resulting
from management’s assessment of the level of the
allowance for loan losses, its non-interest income,
including service fees and related income, mort-
gage-banking activities and gains and losses from
the sales of loans and securities, the level of its non-
interest expense, including compensation and em-
ployee benefits, occupancy expense, data processing
services, amortization of intangibles and income tax
expense.

The Bank is a community-oriented bank,
which emphasizes customer service and conve-
nience. As part of this strategy, the Bank offers
products and services designed to meet the needs of
its retail and commercial customers. The Company
generally has sought to achieve long-term financial
strength and stability by increasing the amount and
stability of its net interest income and non-interest
income and by maintaining a high level of asset
quality. In pursuit of these goals, the Company has
adopted a business strategy of controlled growth,
emphasizing commercial real estate and multi-fam-
ily residential lending, commercial business lending,
mortgage warehouse lines of credit and retail and
commercial deposit products, while maintaining as-
set quality and stable liquidity.

The Company announced in October 2001 that
it had changed its fiscal year end from March 31 to
December 31, effective December 31, 2001. This
change provided internal efficiencies as well as al-
igned the Company’s reporting cycle with regula-
tors, taxing authorities and the investor community.

Due to the change in the reporting period, the
comparison of annual operating performance is
based upon the audited 12 month calendar year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to the
12 month calendar year ended December 31, 2001
compared to the audited 12 month fiscal year ended
March 31, 2001.

Business Strategy

Controlled growth. 1In recent years, the Com-
pany has sought to increase its assets and expand its
operations through internal growth as well as
through acquisitions. During the year ended De-
cember 31, 2002, the Company opened four de novo
branches and opened two de novo branches during
the year ended December 31, 2001. The Company
currently expects to expand its branch network
through the opening of approximately twelve addi-
tional banking locations during the next twelve to
eighteen months. During the first quarter of 2003,
the Company opened two locations in Manhattan
bringing the total to 75 banking offices, of which 73
are full-service.

The Company has selectively used acquisitions
in the past as a means to expand its footprint and
operations. The Company completed its acquisition
of Broad, which had $646.3 million in assets, effec-
tive the close of business on July 31, 1999 and its
acquisition of Statewide, which had $745.2 million
in assets, effective the close of business on Janu-
ary 7, 2000. The Broad and Statewide acquisitions
enabled the Company to expand into contiguous
markets in northern New Jersey with similar
demographics as the Company’s New York market
area. The acquisitions also enabled the Company to
further emphasize its broad array of commercial
business products, including business lending and
lower cost deposits, which helped accelerate the
Company’s strategy of becoming more commercial
bank-like. The Company also completed several
other smaller whole bank and branch acquisitions in
earlier periods.

The Company’s assets increased by $398.8 mil-
lion, or 5.2%, from $7.62 billion at December 31,
2001 to $8.02 billion at December 31, 2002 resulting
mainly from increases of $235.7 million in the
securities available for sale portfolio, $110.7 million
in the loans available for sale portfolio, $68.6 million
in other assets, and $55.6 million in Bank Owned
Life Insurance (“BOLI’), partially offset by a
$57.1 million decrease in the loan portfolio. Such
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growth was funded primarily through the use of
borrowings and an increase in deposits.

Emphasis on Commercial Real Estate, Com-
mercial Business and Multi-family Lending.
Since 1999, the Company has focused on expanding
its higher yielding loan portfolios as compared to
single-family mortgage loans including fixed and
variable-rate portfolios of commercial real estate
loans, commercial business loans and mortgage
warehouse lines of credit. Given the concentration
of multi-family housing units in the New York City
metropolitan area, as well as the Company’s com-
mitment to remain a leader in the multi-family loan
market, the Company continues to emphasize the
origination (both for portfolio and for sale) of loans
secured by first liens on multi-family residential
properties, which consist primarily of mortgage
loans secured by apartment buildings. In addition to
continuing to generate mortgage loans secured by
multi-family and commercial real estate, the Com-
pany also commenced a strategy in the fourth quar-
ter of 2000 to originate and sell multi-family
residential mortgage loans in the secondary market
to Fannie Mae while retaining servicing in order to
further the Company’s ongoing strategic objective
of increasing non-interest income related to lending
and servicing revenue, During the year ended De-
cember 31, 2002, the Company originated for sale
$1.17 billion and sold $1.07 billion of such loans.
See “Business — Lending Activities — Loan Origi-
nations, Purchases, Sales and Servicing”. In addi-
tion, to further expand variable yielding portfolios,
in April 2001, the Company purchased the assets of
Summit Bank’s MBFG, a specialized lending group
providing mortgage warehouse lines of credit to
mortgage bankers in New York, New Jersey and
Connecticut. The acquisition increased the mort-
gage warchouse line of credit portfolio by $130
million in lines with approximately $83.5 million in
outstanding advances at the time of acquisition.

In October 2002, in furtherance of its business
strategy regarding commercial real estate and multi-
family loan originations and sales, the Company in-
creased its minority investment in Meridian, a New
York-based mortgage brokerage firm. Meridian is
primarily engaged in the origination .of commercial
real estate and multi-family mortgage loans. As con-
sideration for such additional interest, the Company
paid $0.6 million in cash and issued 520,716 shares of
common stock for total consideration of approximately
$12.5 million. See “Business — Lending Activities —
Multi-family Residential Lending”.

48

Commercial real estate, commercial business,
multi-family residential loans and mortgage ware-
house lines of credit all generally have a higher
inherent risk of loss than single-family residential
mortgage or cooperative apartment loans because
repayment of the loans or lines often depends on the
successful operation of a business or the underlying
property. Accordingly, repayment of these loans is
subject to adverse conditions in the real estate
market and the local economy. In addition, the
Company’s commercial real estate and multi-family
residential loans have significantly larger average
loan balances compared to its single-family residen-
tial mortgage and cooperative apartment loans.

The Company’s strategy of emphasizing higher
yielding and variable rate loan products is reflected
in the shifting composition of its loan portfolio. The
Company’s continued emphasis on commercial
lending resulted in commercial real estate, commer-
cial business and advances under mortgage ware-
house lines of credit comprising in the aggregate
44.0% of its total loan portfolio at December 31,
2002 compared to 36.2% at December 31, 2001
while single-family and multi-family residential
loans comprised in the aggregate 48.9% of the
Company’s loan portfolio at December 31, 2002
compared to 55.0% at December 31, 2001.

Maintain Asset Quality. Management be-
lieves that maintaining high asset quality is key to
achieving and sustaining long-term financial suc-
cess. Accordingly, the Company has sought to
maintain a high level of asset quality and moderate
credit risk through its underwriting standards and by
generally limiting its origination to loans secured by
properties or collateral located in its market area.
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total as-
sets at December 31, 2002 amounted to 0.52% and
the ratio of its allowance for loan losses to non-
performing loans amounted to 193.6%, while at
December 31, 2001, the percentages were 0.61%
and 170.0%, respectively. Non-performing assets
decreased $4.5 million or 9.8% to $41.6 million at
December 31, 2002 compared to $46.2 million at
December 31, 2001. Loans 90 days or more past
maturity which continued to make payments on a
basis consistent with the original repayment sched-
ule decreased by $15.6 million to $2.5 million at
December 31, 2002. The Company’s non-accrual
loans increased $11.2 million, to $39.0 million at
December 31, 2002 with the increase being prima-
rily related to commercial business and real estate
loans.




Stable Source of Ligquidity. The Company
purchases short- to medium-term investment secu-
rities and mortgage-related securities combining
what management believes to be appropriate liquid-
ity, yield and credit quality in order to achieve a
managed and a reasonably predictable source of
liquidity to meet loan demand and, to a lesser
extent, a stable source of interest income. These
portfolios, which totaled in the aggregate $1.26 bil-
lion at December 31, 2002 compared to $1.03 bil-
lion at December 31, 2001, are comprised primarily
of mortgage-related securities totaling $1.04 billion
(of which $735.4 million consists of CMOQOs and
$303.3 million of mortgage-backed securities),
$155.3 million of corporate bonds, $14.6 million of
obligations of the U.S. Government and federal
agencies and $48.1 million of preferred securities. In
accordance with the Company’s policy, securities
purchased by the Company generally must be rated
at least “investment grade” upon purchase.

Emphasis on Retail Deposits and Customer
Service. The Company, as a community-based fi-
nancial institution, is largely dependent upon its
growth and retention of competitively priced core
deposits (non certificate of deposit accounts) to
provide a stable source of funding. The Company
has retained many loyal customers over the years
through a combination of quality service, customer
convenience, an experienced staff and a commit-
ment to the communities which it serves. The
Company has increased the emphasis on expanding
commercial and consumer relationships, lower cost-
ing core deposits, which do not include certificates
of deposits, increased $410.0 million or 13.9%, to
$3.35 billion or 67.8% of the Company’s total depos-
its at December 31, 2002, as compared to $2.94 bil-
lion at December 31, 2001. This increase in lower
costing core deposits reflects both the continued
successful implementation of the Company’s busi-
ness strategy of increasing core deposits, as well as
the current interest rate environment. In addition,
the Company does not accept brokered deposits as a
source of funds and presently has no plans to do so
in the future.

Changes in Financial Condition

Total assets increased by $398.8 million, or
5.2%, from $7.62 billion at December 31, 2001 to
$8.02 billion at December 31, 2002 primarily due to
increases of $235.7 million in the securities availa-
ble-for-sale portfolio, $110.7 million in loans availa-

ble-for-sale, $55.6 million in BOLI, $68.6 million in
other assets partially offset by a $57.1 million de-
cline in the loan portfolio. These increases were
funded primarily through the use of borrowings and
growth in deposits.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents decreased from $207.6 million at De-
cember 31, 2001 to $199.1 million at December 31,
2002. The $8.6 million decrease was principally due
to the use of such assets to fund the origination or
purchase of higher yielding interest-earning assets.

Securities Available-for-Sale. The aggregate
securities available-for-sale portfolio (which in-
cludes investment securities and mortgage-related
securities) increased $235.7 million, or 22.9%, from
$1.03 billion at December 31, 2001 to $1.26 billion
at December 31, 2002. The increase in securities
available-for-sale was funded primarily through the
use of borrowings.

The Company’s mortgage-related securities
portfolio increased $136.6 million, or 15.1% to
$1.04 billion at December 31, 2002 compared to
$902.2 million at December 31, 2001. The securities
were comprised of $654.4 million of AAA rated
CMOs and $81.0 million of CMOs which were
issued or guaranteed by FHLMC, the Fannie Mae
or GNMA and $303.3 million of mortgage-backed
pass through certificates which were also issued or
guaranteed by FHLMC, Fannie Mae or GNMA.
The increase in the portfolio was primarily due to
purchases of $783.3 million of AAA rated CMOs
with an average yield of 6.02% and $58.3 million of
Agency CMOs with a weighted average yield of
5.65% and $257.6 million of Fannie Mae pass
through certificates at a weighted average yield of
6.60%. Partially offsetting these increases were pro-
ceeds totaling approximately $940.2 million re-
ceived from normal and accelerated principal
repayments and a $14.7 million sale of an Agency
CMO at a loss of $0.2 million.

The Company’s investment securities portfolio
increased $99.1 million to $224.9 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to $125.8 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The increase was primarily due to
$226.1 million of purchases, primarily preferred
securities and corporate bonds, which were partially
offset by the proceeds received from maturing secu-
rities of $38.1 million and from sales of $90.3 mil-
lion of securities, primarily equity securities, at a
$0.6 million gain.
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At December 31, 2002, the Company had a
$7.4 million net unrealized gain, net of tax, on
available-for-sale investment and mortgage-related
securities.

Loans Available-for-Sale. 1loans available-
for-sale increased by $110.7 million to $114.4 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002 from $3.7 million at
December 31, 2001. The Company commenced a
strategy in the December 2000 quarter to originate
and sell multi-family residential mortgage loans in
the secondary market to Fannie Mae while retaining
servicing. As part of these transactions, the Com-
pany retains a portion of the associated credit risk.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, the
Company originated $1.17 billion and sold
$1.07 billion of loans to Fannie Mae under this
program and as a result serviced $1.97 billion of
loans with a maximum potential loss exposure of
$113.7 million. Multi-family loans available for sale
at December 31, 2002 totaled $106.8 million. The
increase in multi-family loans available-for-sale at
December 31, 2002 compared to December 31,
2001 was a result of significant loan volume at the
end of the fourth quarter of 2002 due to the current
interest rate cycle and the time delay between the
date of origination and the date of sale to Fannie
Mae, which usually occurs within seven days. See
“Lending Activities -— Loan Originations, Purchases,
Sales and Servicing” set forth in Item 1 and Note 17
of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
set forth in Item 8 hereof for additional information.

The Company also originates and sells single-
family residential mortgage loans under a mortgage
origination assistance agreement with Cendant. The
Company funds the loans directly and sells the loans
and related servicing to Cendant. The Company
originated $140.2 million and sold $133.5 million of
such loans during the year ended December 31,
2002. Single-family residential mortgage loans
available for sale at December 31, 2002 totaled
$7.6 million.

Both programs were established in order to
further the Company’s ongoing strategic objective
of increasing non-interest income related to lending
and/or servicing revenue.

Loans, net. Loans, net, decreased by
$59.4 million, or 1.0%, to $5.74 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 from $5.80 billion at December 31,
2001. The Company continued its focus on ex-
panding its higher yielding portfolios of commercial
real estate, commercial business and variable-rate
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mortgage warchouse lines of credit as part of its
business plan. The Company is also committed to
remaining a leader in the multi-family residential
loan market. The Company originated for its own
portfolio during the year ended December 31, 2002
approximately $843.1 million of mortgage loans
compared to $543.6 million for the nine months
ended December 31, 2001, Although the Company
had significant loan originations during 2002, total
loans decreased due to the combination of the heavy
run off in the single-family residential portfolio, the
sale to Fannie Mae of $257.6 million of multi-
family residential loans sold from portfolio and the
accelerated rate of repayments in the multi-family
residential portfolio.

As part of the Company’s continuing enhance-
ment of its credit administration process, during
2002 the Company redefined its criteria for classify-
ing loans as either commercial real estate or com-
mercial business loans. As a result of the application
of the new criteria and the Company’s conversion to
a new commercial loan servicing system completed
during the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company
reviewed all of its commercial loan relationships and
redesignated as of September 30, 2002 approxi-
mately $238.0 million of commercial business loans
as commercial real estate or multi-family residential
loans. The Company has not revised any other
current or prior period information related to this
redesignation since it did not affect the amount of
the Company’s net loan portfolio, total assets, re-
sults of operations or earnings per share.

Multi-family residential loans decreased
$294.8 million to $2.44 billion at December 31,
2002 compared to $2.73 billion at December 31,
2001. The decrease was primarily due to repay-
ments of $602.6 million and sales of $257.6 million
which were partially offset by $505.7 million of
originations for portfolio retention and $59.6 million
of loans redesignated as discussed above. During the
fourth quarter of 2002, the Company sold from
portfolio at par $257.6 million of fully performing
multi-family residential loans in a securitization
transaction in exchange for Fannie Mae mortgage-
backed securities representing a 100% interest in
these loans. These loans were sold with full recourse
with the Company retaining servicing. This transac-
tion supported the Company’s efforts to continue to
build and strengthen its relationship with Fannie
Mae, had no impact on 2002 earnings but had a
positive impact on the Company’s risk-based capital
ratios since the risk weighting on the mortgage-




backed securities was lower than on the underlying
loans. As a result of these activities, multi-family
residential loans comprised 41.9% of the total loan
portfolio at December 31, 2002 compared to 46.5%
at December 31, 2001.

Commercial real estate loans increased
$293.4 million or 28.8% to $1.31 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to $1.02 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The increase was primarily due to
$325.7 million of originations, $178.5 million of
loans redesignated as discussed above partially off-
set by $210.6 million of loan repayments for the
year ended December 31, 2002. As a result of these
activities, commercial real estate loans comprised
22.6% of the total loan portfolio at December 31,
2002 compared to 17.4% at December 31, 2001.

Commercial  business loans decreased
$67.6 million, or 10.1%, from $665.8 million at
December 31, 2001 to $598.3 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The decrease was primarily due to
$238.0 million of loans being redesignated as com-
mercial real estate loans or multi-family residential
loans as discussed above, and $230.5 million of
repayments partially offset by $406.2 million of
originations and advances during the year ended
December 31, 2002. Commercial business loans
comprised 10.3% of the total loan portfolio at De-
cember 31, 2002.

Mortgage warehouse lines of credit are secured
short-term advances extended to mortgage-banking
companies to fund the origination of one-to-four
family mortgages. Advances under mortgage ware-
house lines of credit increased $245.9 million from
$446.5 million at December 31, 2001 to $692.4 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2002,
there were $219.1 million of unused lines of credit
related to mortgage warchouse lines of credit. The
increase was due to the current interest cycle and
resultant refinance market. Mortgage warehouse
lines of credit comprised 11.9% of the total loan
portfolio at December 31, 2002.

Partially offsetting the growth in the commer-
cial real estate and business loan and mortgage
warchouse lines of credit portfolios was the run-off
of the Company’s residential mortgage portfolio.
Single-family residential and cooperative apartment
loans decreased $296.5 million from an aggregate of
$852.8 million at December 31, 2001 to an aggre-
gate of $556.3 million at December 31, 2002. The
decline was due to increased repayments as a result
of the current interest rate environment combined

with the decreased emphasis on originating these
loans for portfolio in favor of higher yielding com-
mercial real estate and business loans. The Com-
pany originates and sells single-family residential
mortgage loans to Cendant as previously discussed.

Non-Performing Assets. Non-performing as-
sets as a percentage of total assets at December 31,
2002 amounted to 0.52% compared to 0.61% at
December 31, 2001. The Company’s non-perform-
ing assets, which consist of non-accrual loans, loans
past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal
and accruing and other real estate owned acquired
through foreclosure or deed-in-lieu thereof, de-
creased by $4.6 million or 9.8% to $41.6 million at
December 31, 2002 from $46.2 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The decrease in non-performing assets
was primarily due to a $15.6 million decrease in
loans contractually past maturity but which are
continuing to pay in accordance with their original
repayment schedule partially offset by an $11.2 mil-
lion increase to $39.0 million in non-accrual loans,
primarily commercial real estate and business loans.
At December 31, 2002, the Company’s non-per-
forming assets consisted of $39.0 million of non-
accrual loans (including $22.5 million of commer-
cial business loans, $11.7 million of commercial real
estate loans, $3.0 million of single-family residential
loans and $1.1 million of multi-family residential
loans), $2.5 million of loans past due 90 days or
more as to principal and accruing, $0.1 million of
loans past due 90 days or more as to interest and
accruing and $7,000 of other real estate owned.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The Company’s
allowance for loan losses amounted to $80.5 million
at December 31, 2002, as compared to $78.2 million
at December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2002, the
Company’s allowance amounted to 1.38% of total
loans and 193.6% of total non-performing loans com-
pared to 1.33% and 170.0% at December 31, 2001,
respectively. The Company’s allowance increased
$2.3 million during the year ended December 31,
2002 primarily due to an $8.0 million provision for
loan losses partially offset by $5.7 million of net
charge-offs or 0.10% of average total loans. The
provision recorded reflected the Company’s increase
in non-accrual loans, the increase in classified loans,
delinquencies and charge-offs, the substantial in-
crease in mortgage warehouse advances, the contin-
ued emphasis on commercial real estate and business
loan originations, which are generally considered to
have greater risk of loss, as well as the recognition of
the current economic conditions.
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In assessing the level of the allowance for loan
losses, the Company considers the composition of
its loan portfolio, the growth of loan balances within
various segments of the overall portfolio, the state of
the local (and to a certain degree, the national)
economy as it may impact the performance of loans
within different segments of the portfolio, the loss
experience related to different segments or classes
of loans, the type, size and geographic concentration
of loans held by the Company, the level of past due
and non-performing loans, the value of collateral
securing loans, the level of classified loans and the
number of loans requiring heightened management
oversight. The continued shifting of the composition
of the loan portfolio to be more commercial-bank
like by increasing the balance of commercial real
estate and business loans and mortgage warehouse
lines of credit may increase the level of known and
inherent losses in the Company’s loan portfolio.

The Company has identified the evaluation of
the allowance for loan losses as a critical accounting
estimate where amounts are sensitive to material
variation. Critical accounting estimates are signifi-
cantly affected by management judgment and un-
certainties and there is a likelihood that materially
different amounts would be reported under differ-
ent, but reasonably plausible, conditions or assump-
tions. The allowance for loan losses is considered a
critical accounting estimate because there is a large
degree of judgment in (i) assigning individual loans
to specific risk levels (pass, special mention, sub-
standard, doubtful and loss), (ii) valuing the under-
lying collateral securing the loans, (iii) determining
the appropriate reserve factor to be applied to spe-
cific risk levels for criticized and classified loans
(special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss)
and (iv) determining reserve factors to be applied to
pass loans based upon loan type. To the extent that
loans change risk levels, collateral values change or
reserve factors change, the Company may need to
adjust its provision for loan losses which would
impact earnings.

Management has discussed the development
and seclection of this critical accounting estimate
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and the Audit Committee has reviewed the Com-
pany’s disclosure relating to it in this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”).

Management believes the allowance for loan
losses at December 31, 2002 was at a level to cover
the known and inherent losses in the portfolio that
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were both probable and reasonable to estimate. In
the future, management may adjust the level of its
allowance for loan losses as economic and other
conditions dictate. Management reviews the allow-
ance for loan losses not less than quarterly.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Effective
April 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 142, which resulted in discontinuing the amor-
tization of goodwill. Under the Statement, goodwill
is carried at its book value as of April 1, 2001 and
any future impairment of goodwill will be recog-
nized as non-interest expense in the period of im-
pairment. However, under the terms of the
Statement, identifiable intangibles with identifiable
lives continue to be amortized. The Company did
not recognize an impairment loss as a result of its
annual impairment test effective October 1, 2002.
The Company is required to test the value of its
goodwill at least annually.

The Company’s goodwill, which aggregated
$185.2 million at December 31, 2002, resulted from
the acquisitions of Broad and Statewide as well as
the acquisition of Bay Ridge Bancorp, Inc. in Janu-
ary 1996. The Company’s $2.0 million of identifi-
able intangible assets at December 31, 2002 resulted
primarily from two branch purchase transactions
effected in fiscal 1996. The Company’s intangible
assets decreased by $7.0 million to $2.0 million at
December 31, 2002 from $9.0 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The decrease was a result of amortiza-
tion of the intangible assets. The amortization of
identified intangible assets will continue to reduce
net income until such intangible assets are fully
amortized. However, most of the remaining identi-
fied intangibles as of December 31, 2002 will be
amortized by September 30, 2003.

The Company performs a goodwill impairment
test on an annual basis. The goodwill impairment
test compares the fair value of a reporting unit with
its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair
value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying
amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered
not impaired. If the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is considered
impaired and the Company must measure the
amount of impairment loss, if any.

The fair value of a reporting unit may be
determined by a combination of quoted market
prices, a present value technique or multiples of
earnings or revenue. Quoted market prices in active
markets are the best evidence of fair value and shall




be used as the basis for the measurement, if availa-
ble. However, the market price of an individual
equity security (and thus the market capitalization
of a reporting unit with publicly traded equity secu-
rities) may not be representative of the fair value of
the reporting unit as a whole. The quoted market
price of an individual equity security, therefore,
need not be the sole measurement basis of the fair
value of a reporting unit. A present value technique
is another method with which to estimate the fair
value of a group of net assets. If a present value
technique is used to measure fair value, estimates of
future cash flows used in that technique shall be
consistent with the objective of measuring fair
value. Those cash flow estimates shall incorporate
assumptions that marketplace participants would
use in their estimates of fair value. If that informa-
tion is not available without undue cost and effort,
an entity may use its own assumptions. A third
method of estimating the fair value of a reporting
unit, is a valuation technique based on multiples of
earnings or revenue.

The Company currently uses a combination of
quoted market prices of its publicly traded stock and
multiples of earnings in its goodwill impairment
test.

The Company has identified the goodwill im-
pairment test as a critical accounting estimate due
to the various methods (quoted market price, pre-
sent value technique or multiples of earnings or
revenue) and judgment involved in determining the
fair value of a reporting unit. A change in judgment
could result in goodwill being considered impaired
which would result in a charge to non-interest
expense in the period of impairment.

Management has discussed the development
and selection of this critical accounting estimate
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and the Audit Committee has reviewed the Com-
pany’s disclosure relating to it in this MD&A.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”). The
Company holds BOLI policies to fund certain fu-
ture employee benefit costs and to provide attractive
tax-exempt returns to the Company. The BOLI is
recorded at its cash surrender value and changes in
value are recorded in non-interest income. BOLI
increased $55.6 million to $168.4 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to $112.8 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. During the fourth quarter of 2002, the
Company increased its holdings of BOLI by
$50.0 million. The remaining $5.6 million increase

was due to a change in the cash surrender value of
the BOLL

Other  Assets. Other assets increased
$68.6 million from $163.6 million at December 31,
2001 to $232.2 at December 31, 2002. The increase
was primarily due to a $25.5 million increase in net
deferred tax assets, a $16.1 million increase in
FHLB stock, a $13.5 million increase in the Com-
pany’s minority equity investment in Meridian and
an $11.1 million increase in prepaid pension obliga-
tion. At the end of the fourth quarter of 2002, the
Company made a cash contribution of approxi-
mately $10.0 million to restore the Company’s pen-
sion plan to fully funded status. The contribution
did not reduce 2002 earnings.

Deposits.  Deposits increased $145.3 million
or 3.0% to $4.94 billion at December 31, 2002
compared to $4.79 billion at December 31, 2001.
The increase was due to deposit inflows totaling
$64.0 million as well as interest credited of
$81.3 million.

Complementing the increased emphasis on ex-
panding commercial and consumer relationships,
lower costing core deposits (consisting of all deposit
accounts other than certificates of deposit) grew by
$409.7 million, or 13.9%, to $3.35 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to $2.94 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. This increase reflects both the
continued successful implementation of the Com-
pany’s business strategy of increasing core deposits
as well as the current interest rate environment.
Execution of this strategy is evidenced by the in-
crease in core deposits to approximately 67.8% of
total deposits at December 31, 2002 compared to
61.3% of total deposits at December 31, 2001.

The Company focuses on the growth of core
deposits as a key element of its asset/liability man-
agement process to lower interest expense and thus
increase net interest margin given that these depos-
its have a lower cost of funds than certificates of
deposit and FHLB borrowings. Core deposits also
reduce liguidity fluctuations since these accounts
generally are considered to be less likely than certif-
icates of deposit to be subject to disintermediation.
In addition, these deposits improve non-interest
income through increased customer related fees and
service charges. The weighted average interest rate
of core deposits was 1.01% compared to 2.85% for
certificates of deposit and 4.90% for borrowings for
the year ended December 31, 2002.
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Borrowings. Borrowings increased $248.8
million or 14.8% to $1.93 billion at December 31,
2002 compared to $1.68 billion at December 31,
2001. The increase was principally due to a
$222.8 million increase in FHLB advances, a
$50.0 million increase in FHLB repurchase agree-
ments partially offset by a $24.0 million decrease in
FHLB overnight borrowings. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Company took advantage
of the steepness in the yield curve by securing
$350.0 million of adjustable-rate three and four year
borrowings from the FHLB of New York. These
borrowings have interest rate caps that prevent the
rates from exceeding 5.25% to 5.70%. These bor-
rowings have a weighted average interest rate of
2.46% and are indexed to LIBOR. The Company
also replaced $100.0 million of borrowings that
matured during 2002 with fixed-rate ten-year bor-
rowings, callable in five years, at a weighted average
interest rate of 4.12% and paid off $50.0 million of
borrowings that matured at a weighted average
interest rate of 5.21%. The $248.8 million increase
was primarily used to fund the growth in the availa-
ble-for-sale securities portfolio and to fund loan
originations. See Note 11 of the “Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8
hereof.

Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable
Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities. On
June 30, 1997, $11.5 million of Trust Preferred
Securities were issued by the Issuer Trust. In accor-
dance with the terms of the trust indenture, the
Issuer Trust redeemed all of its outstanding Trust
Preferred Securities at $10.00 per share (par), ef-

fective June 30, 2002. The Company determined to
have the Issuer Trust redeem the securities due to
the high interest rate paid on the Trust Preferred
Securities in relation to the current interest rate
environment.

Stockholders’ Equity. The Holding Company’s
stockholders’ equity totaled $920.3 million at De-
cember 31, 2002, compared to $880.5 million at
December 31, 2001. The $39.7 million increase was
primarily due to net income of $122.4 million,
amortization of the earned portion of restricted
stock grants of $9.7 million, $7.8 million related to
the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”)
shares committed to be released for the year ended
2002 and $0.1 million related to accelerated vesting
of stock options. In addition, increases were also
attributable to $10.7 million related to the exercise
of stock options and the issuance of shares in
payment of directors’ fees and $11.9 million of
consideration paid for the Company’s increased eq-
uity investment in Meridian. These increases were
partially offset by a $1.3 million decrease in the net
unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale, a
$1.0 million valuation adjustment of the deferred
tax asset reflecting the fair market value of stock
contributed to the Foundation at its inception in
March 1998, a $92.1 million reduction in capital
resulting from the purchase during the year ended
December 31, 2002 of 3,538,650 shares of common
stock in connection with the Holding Company’s
open market repurchase programs, a $26.5 million
decrease due to dividends declared and a $1.9 mil-
lion decrease for the change in fair value of interest
rate swaps, net of tax.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

The following table presents, as of December 31, 2002, the Company’s significant fixed and determinable
contractual obligations by payment date. The payment amounts represent those amounts contractually due to
the recipient and do not include any unamortized premiums, or discounts, or other similar carrying value
adjustments. Further discussion of the nature of each obligation is included in the referenced notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Payments Due In

Over one Over two Over three
year years years
Note One year or through through through Over four

{In Thousands) Reference less two years  three years  four years years Total
Core deposits........... 10 $3,350,808 — 3 — § — 3 —  $3,350,808
Certificates of deposit. ... 10 1,104,453 280,376 42,169 38,912 123,342 1,589,252
FHLB advances ........ 11 425,250 26,300 225,000 175,000 375,000 1,226,550
FHLB repurchase

agreements........... 11 65,000 — —_— — 640,000 705,000
Operating leases ........ 18 5,358 5,383 5,009 4,898 33,770 54,418
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The Company also entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements under which the Company

is required at a future date to make periodic fixed rate payments to the swap counterparties while receiving
periodic variable rate payments indexed to the three month LIBOR from the swap counterparties based on a
common notional amount and maturity date. The total notional value of such contracts aggregated
$200.0 million at December 31, 2002. Derivative contracts are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance
sheet. For further discussion of derivative instruments see ‘“‘Business-Investment Activities” and Notes 1 and
17 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8 hereof.

A schedule of significant commitments at De-

cember 31, 2002 follows:

Contract or

Amount
December 31,
{In Thousands) 2002
Financial instruments whose
contract amounts represent
credit risk:
Commitments to extend
credit — mortgage loans ... .. $§ 446,759
Commitments to extend
credit — commercial business
loans ........ .. ... .. ..... 295,417
Commitments to extend
credit — mortgage warechouse
lines of credit .............. 219,125
Commitments to extend
credit — other loans. ........ 81,909
Standby letters of credit ....... 2,692
Commercial letters of credit . . .. 318
......................... $1,046,220

For further discussion of these commitments as
well as the Company’s commitments and obliga-
tions under pension and other postretirement benefit
plans, see Notes 14 and 18 of the “Notes to Consol-
idated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8
hereof.

Average Balances, Net Interest Income, Yields
Earned and Rates Paid

The table on the following page sets forth, for
the periods indicated, information regarding (i) the
total dollar amount of interest income of the Com-
pany from interest-earning assets and the resultant
average vields; (ii) the total dollar amount of inter-
est expense on interest-bearing liabilities and the
resultant average rate; (ili) net interest income;
(iv) the interest rate spread; and (v) the net interest
margin. Information is based on average daily bal-
ances during the indicated periods.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth the effects of changing rates and volumes on net interest income of the
Company. Information is provided with respect to (i) effects on interest income and expense attributable to
changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate) and (ii) effects on interest income and
expense attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The combined effect of
changes in both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the change due to rate and the change
due to volume.

Twelve Months. Ended Decembz;v gll‘:c21(;/g)(;nttc})]ST]::vg(lj\?g Months
D e e ™ Ehded March 31, 200
(Dec:;l:;?)mgue to Ti?lt;leg:[ (Decg:éce)asgue to 'Ii(l)it;lcg:t
{In Thousands) Rate Volume (Decrease) Rate Volume (Decrease)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivable:
Mortgage loans ............ $(13,137) $ 3,206 $ (9931) $ 3,722 $(3,232) $ 490
Commercial business loans . . (8,160) 15,488 7,328 (4,062) 16,326 12,264
Mortgage warehouse lines of
credit. ... ... (5,193) 7,079 1,886 (3,700) 11,145 7,445
Other loans'” ... ...... ... .. (2,327) 3,037 710 (1,008)  (1,119) (2,127)
Total loans receivable . . ... ...... (28,817) 28,810 @) (5,048) 23,120 18,072
Investment securities ........... (1,641) (952) (2,593) (1,179) (470) (1,649)
Mortgage-related securities ... ... (6,331) 15,407 9,076 (1,013) 95 (918)
Other interest-earning assets . ... . (3,251) (343) (3,594) (4,231) 645 (3,586)
Total net change in income on ,
interest-earning assets......... (40,040) 42,922 2,882 (11,471) 23,390 11,919
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings deposits. .. ......... (9,956) 5,152 (4,804) (2,353) 1,523 (830)
Money market deposits. . .. .. (1,476) 103 (1,373) (684) (129) (813)
AMA deposits ............. (7,751) 2,464 (5,287) (3,533) 4,272 739
Interest-bearing demand
deposits................. (2,327) 1,242 (1,085) 241 620 861
Certificates of deposit....... (39,947) (18418)  (58,365) (11,612) (4,022)  (15,634)
Total deposits............ (61,457) 9,457) (70914)  (17,941) 2,264 (15,677)
Trust preferred securities . ... .. 10 (534) (524) 8 (7) 1
Borrowings ........ ... ... .. (9,584) 20,159 10,575 (2,939) 7,600 4,661
Total net change in expense on
interest-bearing liabilities . ... .. (71,031) 10,168 (60,863)  (20,872) 9,857 (11,015)

Net change in net interest income $ 30,991 § 32,754 §$ 63,745 § 9401 $13,533 § 22,934

(1) Includes home equity loans and lines of credit, FHA and conventional home improvement loans, student loans, automobile loans,
passbook loans and secured and unsecured personal loans.
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Comparison of Results of Operations for the
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2002 and
the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001

General. For the year ended December 31,
2002, the Company reported a 41.8% increase in
diluted earnings per share to $2.24 compared to
$1.58 for the year ended December 31, 2001. Net
income for the year ended December 31, 2002
increased 42.2% to $122.4 million compared to
$86.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2001.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income in-
creased by $63.7 million or 25.9% to $309.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared
to $246.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase was primarily due to a
$60.8 million decrease in interest expense combined
with a $2.9 million increase in interest income. The
growth in net interest income primarily reflected the
$653.3 million increase in average interest-earning
asséts as well as a 54 basis point increase in the net
interest margin during the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase in average interest-earning as-
sets was primarily attributable to growth in mort-
gage-related securities, commercial real estate and
business loans, and mortgage warehouse lines of
credit.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the
Company’s net interest margin increased 54 basis
points to 4.23% from 3.69% for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The improvement in net inter-
est margin was directly attributable to the Com-
pany’s strategy to reduce the average cost of
interest-bearing liabilities in order to offset the de-
cline in the average yield earned on interest-earning
assets resulting from the current interest rate envi-
ronment. For the year ended December 31, 2002 as
compared to the vear ended December 31, 2001, the
average rate paid on average interest-bearing liabili-
ties decreased 122 basis points, more than offsetting
the 61 basis point decline in the average yield
earned on interest-earning assets. This decline mir-
rored the movement in the yield curve with short-
term interest rates declining more rapidly than
longer term rates. Complementing the movement in
the yield curve, the Company contributed to the
improvement in net interest margin by originating
higher yielding commercial loan products through
its expanded presence in the New York metropoli-
tan market and the continuing evolution of a retail
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banking sales culture focused on expanding the
Company’s level of core deposits. In addition, the
Company continued a disciplined pricing strategy
for deposits, which was effective in addressing the
current interest rate yield curve.

The Company, based upon the current interest
rate and refinance environment, expects a compres-
sion of its net interest margin in 2003. However, the
Company continues to rely on all of the components
of its business model to offset or substantially lessen
the reduction in net interest income as it continues
to implement the shift in its deposits to lower
costing core deposits while continuing to build non-
interest rate sensitive revenue channels, including in
particular the expansion of its  mortgage-banking
activities.

The Company’s interest rate spread (i.e., the
difference between the yields earned on its interest-
earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-
bearing liabilities) increased to 4.08% for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to 3.47% for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The net interest
rate spread increased by 61 basis points reflecting
the Company’s strategy to reduce the cost of inter-
est-bearing liabilities in order to offset the decline in
the yield earned on interest-earning assets resulting
from the current interest rate environment.

Interest income increased by $2.9 million, or
0.6%, to $485.5 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001. This increase was primarily due to the
$653.3 million increase in the average balance of the
Company’s interest-earning assets partially offset by
a 61 basis point decrease in the weighted average
yield, from 7.24% for the year ended December 31,
2001 to 6.63% for the year ended December 31,
2002.

Interest income on mortgage loans decreased
$9.9 million due to a 24 basis point decrease in the
yield earned on loans from 7.56% for the year ended
December 31, 2001 to 7.32% for the year ended
December 31, 2002 as well as a $13.2 million
decrease in the average balance of mortgage loans.
The decrease in average balance was due to in large
part the $271.0 million decrease in the aggregate
average balance of the Company’s single-family and
cooperative apartment loans due to both increased
prepayments as a result of the current interest rate
environment as well as decreased emphasis on origi-
nations. The Company primarily originates single-
family loans through its previously discussed private



label program with Cendant. Partially offsetting the
decrease in the single-family and cooperative apart-
ment loans portfolio was a $214.4 million and
$69.8 million increase in the average balance of
commercial real estate and multi-family residential
loans, respectively, for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase in these portfolios was due to the
Company’s continuing effort of originating higher
yielding commercial loan products as well as the
Company’s commitment to maintaining its leader-
ship position in the multi-family residential loan
market. The Company originated $843.1 million of
mortgage loans for portfolio retention in the year
ended December 31, 2002 partially offset by loan
repayments of $1.11 billion and sales of $257.6 mil-
lion from portfolio at the end of the fourth quarter
of 2002. The decrease in yield was primarily due to
the current interest rate yield curve.

Interest income on other loans increased
$9.9 million, or 14.2%, due to a $220.4 million and
$134.8 million increase in the average balance of
commercial business and mortgage warchouse lines
of credit, respectively. Partially offsetting the in-
crease was a 147 basis point and 164 basis point
decrease in the yield earned on commercial business
loans and mortgage warehouse lines of credit loans,
respectively, from 8.08% and 6.28%, respectively,
for the year ended December 31, 2001 to 6.61% and
4.64%, respectively, for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The decrease in yields was primarily
due to the current interest rate yield curve since
these loans are primarily variable rate and thus are
repricing downward in the current interest rate
environment.

Income on investment securities decreased
$2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
due to a $17.9 million decrease in the average
balance of investment securities along with a de-
crease in the yield earned on such securities from
5.66% for the year ended December 31, 2001 to
4.74% for the year ended December 31, 2002. The
decline in average balance was due to the Com-
pany’s reinvestment into other higher yielding
assets.

Interest income on mortgage-related securities
increased $9.1 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 due primarily to the $269.1 million
increase in the average balance of mortgage-related
securities. The increase in the average balance was
primarily due to an increase in borrowings which

were invested in mortgage-related securities. This
increase was partially offset by a 75 basis point
decrease in the yield earned to 5.53% for the year
ended December 31, 2002 from 6.28% for the year
ended December 31, 2001, reflecting the decrease in
market rates of interest experienced during the
calendar year.

Income on other interest-earning assets (con-
sisting primarily of interest on federal funds and
dividends on FHLB stock) decreased $3.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease
primarily reflects the $2.7 million decline in interest
on federal funds, FHLB overnight deposits and
other short-term investments as well as a $0.9 mil-
lion decrease in dividends on FHLB stock.

Interest expense on deposits decreased
$71.0 million or 46.5% to $81.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to $152.6 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
decrease was primarily the result of a 156 basis
point decrease in the average rate paid on deposits
to 1.65% for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to 3.21% for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The decrease in rates was attributable
to the continued maintenance of the disciplined
pricing strategy which was effective in addressing
the current interest rate yield curve. This decrease
was partially offset by a $216.2 million increase in
the average balance of deposits as a result of the
Company’s continuing evolution of a retail banking
sales culture focused on increasing the amount of
lower costing core deposits. The average balance of
lower costing core deposits increased $640.2 million
while the average balance of higher costing certifi-
cates of deposit decreased $424.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2001.

Interest expense on borrowings increased
$10.6 million or 12.8% to $93.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to $82.8 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
increase was primarily due to a $397.7 million
increase in the average balance of borrowings for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in
average borrowings was primarily the result of the
Company taking advantage of the steepness in the
yield curve by securing $330.0 million of adjustable-
rate three and four year borrowings from the FHLB
of New York. The borrowings have interest rate
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caps that prevent the rates from exceeding 5.25% to
5.70%. The Company also replaced $100.0 million
of borrowings that matured in 2002 with fixed-rate
ten-year borrowings, callable in five vyears, at a
weighted average interest rate of 4.12% and paid off
$50.0 million of borrowings that matured with a
weighted average interest rate of 5.21%. The bor-
rowings were primarily used to fund the purchase of
mortgage-related securities and commercial real es-
tate and business loan originations.

Interest expense on Trust Preferred Securities
decreased $0.5 million or 50.0% to $0.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001,
The Trust Preferred Securities were assumed as
part of the Broad acquisition effective the close of
business on July 31, 1999. In accordance with the
terms of the trust indenture, the Trust redeemed all
of its outstanding Trust Preferred Securities of
$11.5 million, at $10.00 per share, effective June 30,
2002. The redemption was effected due to the high
interest rate paid on the Trust Preferred Securities
in relation to the current interest rate environment.

Provision for Loan Losses. The Company’s
provision for loan losses decreased by $0.5 million
from $8.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2001, to $8.0 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The provision recorded reflected the
Company’s increase in non-accrual loans, the in-
crease in classified and impaired loans, the increase
in delinquencies and charge-offs, the increase in
mortgage warehouse advances, the continued em-
phasis on commercial and business loan originations
which are deemed to have higher levels of known
and inherent loss, as well as the recognition of
current economic conditions. To date, the Company
has not realized any direct credit impairment as a
result of the tragic events of September 11, 2001 but
continues to monitor its portfolio closely.

Non-performing assets as a percentage of total
assets decreased to 52 basis points at December 31,
2002, compared to 61 basis points at December 31,
2001. Non-performing assets decreased 9.8% to
$41.6 million at December 31, 2002 compared to
$46.2 million at December 31, 2001. The decrease
of $4.6 million was primarily due to a $15.6 million
decrease on loans that are contractually past due
90 days or more as to maturity, although current as
to monthly principal and interest payments partially
offset by an increase of $11.2 million in non-accrual
loans, primarily commercial real estate and business
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loans. Included in the $41.6 million of non-perform-
ing loans at December 31, 2002 were $39.0 million
of non-accrual loans and $2.5 million of loans con-
tractually past maturity but which are continuing to
pay in accordance with their original repayment
schedule. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the
allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total
non-performing loans was 193.6% and 170.0%,
respectively.

Non-Interest Income. Emphasis on fee-based
income continues to gain momentum throughout
the Company within the Company and continues to
be on-going strategic objective. As a result of the
implementation of a variety of initiatives, the Com-
pany experienced an $18.0 million, or 31.6%, in-
crease in non-interest income to $75.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to
$57.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2001.

During 2002, the Company recognized net
gains of $0.6 on the sales of loans and securities,
substantially all of which relates to the gain on the
sale of equity securities. During calendar 2001, the
Company recognized net gains on sales of $3.1 mil-
lion primarily from sales of $90.0 million of
securities.

Income from mortgage-banking activities in-
creased $0.9 million to $13.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to $12.9 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001. During
the quarter ended December 31, 2000, the Com-
pany initiated a program with Fannie Mae to origi-
nate for sale multi-family residential loans in the
secondary market, with the Company retaining ser-
vicing. Under the terms of the sales program, the
Company also retains a portion of the associated
credit risk. See “Business-Lending Activities-Loan
Originations, Purchases, Sales and Servicing”. Dur-
ing the quarter ended December 31, 2001 the Com-
pany also entered into a program with Cendant to
originate and sell single-family residential mortgage
loans and servicing in the secondary market.

Mortgage-banking activities for the year ended
December 31, 2002 reflected $11.5 million in gains,
$8.1 million of origination fees and $1.5 million in
servicing fees partially offset by $3.4 million of
amortization of servicing assets and $3.9 million in
provisions recorded related to retained credit expo-
sure on multi-family residential loans sold. The
$0.9 million increase in mortgage-banking activities
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to



the year ended December 31, 2001 was primarily
due to a $3.2 million increase in gains on sales and
$4.2 million of higher origination and servicing fees
partially offset by $3.9 million in provisions recorded
related to the retained credit exposure and $2.6 mil-
lion of additional amortization of capitalized servic-
ing rights.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the
Company originated $1.17 billion and sold
$1.07 billion of multi-family loans under the pro-
gram with Fannie Mae and originated $140.2 mil-
lion and sold $133.5 million of single-family
residential loans. By comparison, during 2001, the
Company originated $441.9 million and sold
$419.3 million of multi-family loans and originated
$4.1 million and sold $0.4 million of single-family
residential mortgages.

Service fees increased 56.0% to $50.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2001. The $18.1 mil-
lion increase was principally due to approximately
$9.3 million in mortgage prepayment fees combined
with a $2.8 million increase in the Company’s
modification and extension fees on mortgage loans
due to the current interest rate environment and
resulting refinance market. In addition, other loan
fees increased $1.6 million and banking fees in-
creased $2.9 million related primarily to increased
service fees on deposit accounts resulting from tHe
growth in core deposits, particularly commercial
demand deposits, an increase in per unit charges
and the debit card program. The increase in fee
income is also due to increased fees of $1.2 million
on the sales of mutual funds and annuity products as
investors seek higher yielding investment
opportunities.

Income on BOLI increased $0.7 million or
13.1% to $6.3 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 compared to the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 due to an increase in the cash
surrender value of BOLI. During the later part of
the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company also in-
creased its holdings in BOLI by $50.0 million to
$168.4 million at December 31, 2002.

Other non-interest income increased by
$0.9 million to $4.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, compared to $3.1 million for
the vear ended December 31, 2001. The increase
was primarily due to an additional $1.1 million from
the Company’s minority equity investment in
Meridian.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense
increased by $29.1 million, or 18.7%, for the year
ended December 31, 2002, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2001. This increase primarily
reflects increases of $22.2 million in compensation
and employee benefit expense, $10.2 million in
other non-interest expense, $0.7 million in data
processing fees and $0.4 million in advertising costs.
Partially offsetting these increases were decreases of
$3.6 million in amortization of goodwill, $0.5 mil-
lion in amortization of intangibles and $0.3 million
in occupancy costs. Effective April 1, 2001, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 142 which resulted in
discontinuing the amortization of goodwill resulting
in a $3.6 million decline in goodwill amortization for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2001.

Total compensation and benefits increased by
$22.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
to $96.3 million. The increase was comprised of
increases in compensation of $10.3 million, incen-
tive pay of $5.9 million, stock-related benefit plan
costs of $2.7 million, pension expense costs of
$3.2 million and $1.5 million of increased health
insurance costs. These increases were partially offset
by a $0.4 million reduction to the value of deferred
compensation liability and $1.9 million reduction in
postretirement health care benefits. The additional
compensation and incentive pay was primarily the
result of the continued building and expansion of
the Company’s infrastructure. During calendar 2001
and 2002, the Company recruited several senior
executives, including a Chief Credit Officer and a
Chief Information Officer, to add to senior manage-
ment. In addition, the Company increased the num-
ber of highly experienced senior lenders in the
Company’s Business Banking area to serve its pre-
existing markets and to expand into neighboring
geographical areas. The Company also realized in-
creases as a result of the expansion of retail banking
initiatives, such as the addition of a private bank-
ing/wealth management group in 2002 to broaden
and diversify its customer base and continued its de
novo branch expansion strategy through the opening
of four facilities during 2002,

Occupancy costs decreased slightly by
$0.3 million to $22.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. However, the Company antici-
pates higher annual operating costs in 2003 as a
result of the increased number of branch facilities
resulting from the continuation of the de novo
branch expansion program. The Company currently
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expects to open approximately twelve new branches
in calendar 2003.

The Company’s advertising expenses amounted
to $6.2 million and $5.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, re-
spectively. The cost reflects the Company’s contin-
ued focus on brand awareness through, in part,
increased advertising in print media, radio and di-
rect marketing programs.

Amortization of goodwill decreased $3.6 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2002 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001.
Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 142, which resulted in the discontinua-
tion of the amortization of goodwill.

Amortization of intangible assets continues
under the provisions of SFAS No. 142. The Com-
pany’s intangible assets consist primarily of core
deposit intangibles recorded as the result of premi-
ums paid on deposits acquired from two branch
purchase transactions in 1996. Amortization of in-
tangible assets decreased $0.5 million during the
year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease was
due to the completion in April 2002 of the amorti-
zation of the premium incurred in the acquisition in
April 2001 of Summit Bank’s Mortgage -— Banking
Finance Group. See “Business — Lending Activi-
ties — Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales and
Servicing”.

Other non-interest expense increased
$10.2 miilion, or 30.2%, to $43.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, compared to $33.6 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
increase was primarily due to a $3.8 million provi-
sion for probable losses from transactions in a com-
mercial business deposit account in the fourth
quarter of 2002. The Company is aggressively pur-
suing legal remedies available to recover these
funds. The remaining increase in other non-interest
expense was due to the corporate expansion associ-
ated with a broader banking footprint, de novo
banking activities, the expanded retail sales force
and the introduction of new products and services.
These expenses include items such as professional
services, business development expenses, equipment
expenses, recruitment costs, office supplies, com-
mercial bank fees, postage, insurance, telephone
expenses and maintenance and security.
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Compliance with changing regulation of corpo-
rate governance and public disclosure may result in
additional expenses. Changing laws, regulations and
standards relating to corporate governance and pub-
lic disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
new SEC regulations and proposed revisions to the
listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market,
are creating uncertainty for companies such as ours.
The Company is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and public dis-
closure. Compliance with the various new require-
ments is expected to result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of manage-
ment time and attention from revenue-generating
activities to compliance activities.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense increased
$16.8 million to $69.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $52.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. This increase
was primarily due to a $53.2 million increase in pre-
tax income to $192.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $138.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. However, oft-
setting the effect of such increased taxable income
was a decline in the Company’s effective tax rate for
the year ended December 31, 2002 to 36.25%,
compared to 38.0% for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001.

Net deferred tax assets increased by $25.5 mil-
lion to $69.2 million at December 31, 2002, com-
pared to $43.6 million at December 31, 2001. The
increase was primarily the result of a $29.8 million
reduction in the deferred tax liability associated
with the implementation of certain tax strategies
which changed the timing of tax payments. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
recorded a $1.0 million increase to the valuation
allowance assoctated with the deferred tax asset
reflecting the fair market value of Holding Com-
pany common stock contributed to the Foundation
at its inception in March 1998 based on current
projections of the Company’s future net income.
The valuation allowance was established in the year
ended March 31, 2001 due to the possibility that the
deferred tax asset would not be fully utilized. How-
ever, due to current projections, the Company in-
creased the allowance due to the increased
likelihood that a smaller amount of the deferred tax
asset will be utilized. The effect of the increase of
the valuation allowance was to decrease paid-in-
capital.




The Company uses the liability method to
account for income taxes. Under this method, de-
ferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based
on differences between financial reporting and tax
basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using
the enacted tax rates and laws expected to be in
effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
The Company must assess the deferred tax assets
and establish a valuation allowance where realiza-
tion of a deferred asset is not considered “more
likely than not.” The Company generally uses the
expectation of future taxable income in evaluating
the need for a valuation allowance. Since the Com-
pany has reported taxable income for Federal, state
and local income tax purposes in each of the past
two years and in management’s opinion, in view of
the Company’s previous, current and projected fu-
ture earnings, such deferred tax assets is expected to
be fully realized except as described in the previous
paragraph. See Note 20 of the “Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8
hereof.

The Company has identified the valuation of
deferred tax assets as a critical accounting estimate
due to the judgment involved in projecting future
taxable income, determining when differences are
expected to be reversed and establishing a valuation
allowance. Changes in judgments and estimate may
have an impact on the Company’s net income.

Management has discussed the development
and selection of this critical accounting estimate
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and the Audit Committee has reviewed the Com-
pany’s disclosure relating to it in this MD&A.

Comparison of Results of Operations for the
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001 and
the Twelve Months Ended March 31, 2001

General. For the twelve months ended De-
cember 31, 2001, the Company reported a 43.6%
increase in diluted earnings per share to $1.58
compared to $1.10 for the twelve months ended
March 31, 2001. Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2001 increased 38.7% to $86.1 mil-
lion compared to $62.0 million for the year ended
March 31, 2001.

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 142, which resuited in discontinuing the
amortization of goodwill. As a result, net income for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 in-
creased by $10.8 million and diluted earnings per

share increased by $0.20. If SFAS No. 142 had
been effective for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2001, net income and diluted earnings per share, by
comparison, would have been $76.4 million and
$1.36 per share, respectively. The Company did not
recognize an impairment loss as a result of its
transitional impairment test of existing goodwill.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income in-
creased by $22.9 million or 10.3% to $246.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared
to $223.2 million for the year ended March 31,

2001. The increase was due to an $11.9 million

increase in interest income and an $11.0 million
decrease in interest expense. The growth in net
interest income primarily reflected the $312.8 mil-
lion increase in average interest-earning assets as
well as an 18 basis point increase in the net interest
margin during the twelve months ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 compared to the twelve months ended
March 31, 2001. The increase in average interest-
earning assets was primarily attributable to growth
in mortgage warehouse lines of credit as well as
commercial real estate and business loans.

For the calendar year ended December 31,
2001, the Company’s net interest margin increased
18 basis points to 3.69% from 3.51% for the twelve
months ended March 31, 2001. For the twelve
months ended December 31, 2001 as compared to
the twelve months ended March 31, 2001, the rate
paid on average interest-bearing liabilities decreased
41 basis points, more than offsetting the 17 basis
point decline in yields earned on interest-earning
assets. The improvement in the net interest margin
was directly attributable to the Company’s emphasis
on originating higher yielding commercial loan
products through its expanded presence in the New
York metropolitan market and the continuing
evolution of a retail banking sales culture focused on
delivering core deposits. In addition, the Company
introduced a disciplined pricing strategy, which was
effective in addressing the interest rate yield curve
existing in 2001. The ratio of interest-earning assets
to interest-bearing liabilities declined primarily due
to the use of earning assets to fund the purchase of
BOLI during the quarter ended December 31, 2000
as well as the Holding Company’s ongoing stock
purchase programs (pursuant to which 2.0 million
shares were repurchased in calendar 2001).

The Company’s interest rate spread increased
to 3.47% for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to 3.23% for the year ended March 31,
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2001. The net interest rate spread increased by 24
basis points reflecting the shift in the asset/liability
composition to lower costing liabilities as a result of
the continuing evolution of a retail banking sales
culture focused cn increasing core deposits.

Interest income increased by $11.9 million, or
2.5%, to $482.6 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 compared to the year ended March 31,
2001. This increase was primarily due to the
$312.8 million increase in the average balance of the
Company’s interest-earning assets partially offset by
a 17 basis point decrease in the weighted average
yield, from 7.41% for the year ended March 31,
2001 to 7.24% for the year ended December 31,
2001.

Interest income on mortgage loans increased
$0.5 million due to an 8 basis point increase in the
yield earned on loans from 7.48% for the year ended
March 31, 2001 to 7.56% for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2001. Partially offsetting the increase
was a $43.7 million decrease in the average balance
of mortgage loans. The decrease in average balance
was due to the anticipated run-off of the Company’s
comparatively lower vielding residential mortgage
portfolio as the Company continued to emphasize
the origination of higher yielding commercial real
estate and business loans. The Company originated
$668.8 million of mortgage loans for portfolio reten-
tion in the twelve months ended December 31, 2001
partially offset by loan repayments of $542.6 mil-
lion. The increase in yield was primarily due to the
increased investment in higher yielding commercial
real estate and business loans.

Interest income on other loans increased
$17.6 million, or 33.6%, due to a $197.1 million and
$165.3 million increase in the average balance of
commercial business loans and mortgage warehouse
lines of credit, respectively. Partially offsetting the
increase was a 123 basis point and 274 basis point
decrease in the yield earned on commercial business
loans and mortgage warehouse lines of credit, re-
spectively, from 9.31% and 9.02%, respectively, for
the year ended March 31, 2001 to 8.08% and 6.28%,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2001.
The decrease in yields was primarily due to the
interest rate yield curve existing in 2001 since these
loans are variable rate and reprice frequently.

Income on investment securities decreased
$1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
due to a $7.7 million decrease in the average bal-
ance of investment securities along with a decrease
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in the yield earned on such securities from 6.27% for
the year ended March 31, 2001 to 5.66% for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in
average balance was due to the Company’s reinvest-
ment into other higher yielding assets.

Interest income on mortgage-related securities
decreased $0.9 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 compared to the year ended March 31,
2001 as a result of a 14 basis point decrease in the
yield earned to 6.28% for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 from 6.42% for the year ended
March 31, 2001, reflecting the decrease in market
rates of interest experienced during the calendar
year. This decrease was partially offset by an
$1.5 million increase in the average balance of these
securities. Income on investment and mortgage-
related securities decreased during calendar 2001 as
a result of the purchase of BOLI as well as the
Company’s emphasis on increasing its investment in
higher yielding commercial loan products instead of
securities.

Income on other interest-earning assets (con-
sisting primarily of interest on federal funds and
dividends on FHLB stock) decreased $3.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to
the year ended March 31, 2001. This decrease
primarily reflects the $2.9 million decline in interest
on federal funds, overnight deposits and other short-
term investments as well as a $0.7 million decrease
in dividends on FHLB stock.

Interest expense on deposits decreased
$15.7 million or 9.3% to $152.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 compared to $168.2 mil-
lion for the year ended March 31, 2001. The de-
crease was primarily the result of a 49 basis point
decrease in the average rate paid on deposits to
3.21% for the year ended December 31, 2001 com-
pared to 3.70% for the year ended March 31, 2001.
The decrease in rates was attributable to the intro-
duction of a disciplined pricing strategy which was
effective in addressing the interest rate yield curve
existing during 2001. This decrease was partially
offset by a $203.3 million increase in the average
balance of deposits as a result of the Company’s
continuing evolution of a retail banking sales culture
focused on increasing the amount of lower costing
core deposits. The average balance of core deposits
increased $277.4 million while the average balance
of certificates of deposit decreased $74.1 million for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 com-
pared to the twelve months ended March 31, 2001.




Interest expense on borrowings increased
$4.6 million or 6.0% to $82.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 compared to $78.2 mil-
lion for the year ended March 31, 2001. The in-
crease was primarily due to a $136.1 million
increase in the average balance of borrowings for
the calendar year ended December 31, 2001 com-
pared to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001. The
increase in average borrowings partially funded the
growth in commercial real estate and business loan
originations. Interest expense on Trust Preferred
Securities was $1.0 million for both years ended
December 31, 2001 and March 31, 2001. The Trust
Preferred Securities were assumed as part of the
Broad acquisition.

Provision for Loan Losses. The Company’s
provision for loan losses increased by $7.1 million
from $1.4 million for the year ended March 31,
2001, to $8.5 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001. The provision recorded reflected the
Company’s increase in non-accrual loans, the in-
crease in classified loans, the substantial increase in
mortgage warehouse advances, the continued em-
phasis on commercial real estate and business loan
originations as well as the recognition of an overall
softening of the economy.

Non-performing assets as a percentage of total
assets increased to 61 basis points at December 31,
2001, compared to 51 basis points at March 31,
2001. Nomn-performing assets increased 28.6% to
$46.2 million at December 31, 2001, compared to
$35.9 million at March 31, 2001. The increase of
$10.3 million was primarily due to an increase of
$10.2 million in non-accrual loans, primarily com-
mercial real estate and business loans, as well as a
$0.3 million increase on loans that are contractually
past due 90 days or more as to maturity, although
current as to monthly principal and interest pay-
ments. Included in the $46.0 million of non-per-
forming loans at December 31, 2001 were
$27.8 million of non-accrual loans and $18.1 million
of loans contractually past maturity but which are
continuing to pay in accordance with their original
repayment schedule. At December 31, 2001 and
March 31, 2001, the allowance for loan losses as a
percentage of total non-performing loans was
170.0% and 201.2%, respectively.

Non-Interest Income. Emphasis in fee-based
income continued to gain momentum throughout
the various divisions within the Company in 2001.
Increasing non-interest income has been an on-

going strategic objective. As a result of the imple-
mentation of a variety of initiatives, the Company
experienced an $18.7 million, or 48.9%, increase in
non-interest income to $57.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001, compared to $38.3 mil-
lion for the year ended March 31, 2001.

During calendar 2001, the Company recog-
nized net gains on sales of $3.1 million primarily
from the sales of $90.0 million of preferred securi-
ties. During the year ended March 31, 2001, the
Company recognized net gains on sales of $3.4 mil-
lion primarily from the sale of the $35.7 million
student loan portfolio and securities sales of
$72.1 million, the proceeds of which funded the
purchase of $100 million of BOLI.

Income from mortgage-banking activities in-
creased $7.4 million to $12.9 million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2001 compared to
$5.5 million for the twelve months ended March 31,
2001. Mortgage-banking activities for the year en-
ded December 31, 2001 reflected $8.3 million in
gains and $4.5 million of origination fees related to
the sale to Fannie Mae of multi-family residential
loans in the secondary market. See “Business-Lend-
ing Activities-Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales
and Servicing”. During the calendar year ended
December 31, 2001, the Company originated
$597.1 million and sold $572.4 million of such
loans, recognizing a gain on sale of $5.3 million and
a related loan servicing asset of $3.0 million. Under
the terms of the sales program, the Company retains
a portion of the associated credit risk. At Decem-
ber 31, 2001, the Company’s maximum potential
exposure related to secondary market sales to Fan-
nie Mae under this program was $67.2 million. As
of December 31, 2001, the Company has not real-
ized any losses related to these loans. No provisions
relating to this exposure were made during the 2001
periods made based on the quality of the loans and
their continued performance.

Service fees increased 32.6% to $32.4 million
for the calendar year ended December 31, 2001
compared to the year ended March 31, 2001. These
increases were due to increased service fees on
deposit accounts resulting from the growth in core
deposits, particularly commercial demand deposits,
an increase in per unit charges as well as the
introduction in the June 2001 quarter of a debit card
program. The increase in fee income is also due to
increased fees on the sales of annuity funds as
investors seek higher yielding investment opportuni-
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ties. Service fee income was positively effected by
an increase in the level of mortgage prepayments
during calendar 2001 as general market rates of
interest decreased during the calendar year, result-
ing in increased mortgage refinancing and higher
mortgage prepayment fees of $0.8 million.

Income on BOLI increased $3.1 million or
120.8% to $5.6 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 compared to the year ended March 31,
2001. Prior to the purchase of BOLI during the
quarter ended December 31, 2000, funds used to
pay the $100 million premium had been invested
primarily in investment securities, income from
which was recognized in interest income.

Other non-interest income increased by
$0.6 million to $3.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001, compared to $2.5 million for
the prior fiscal year ended March 31, 2001. The
Company also recorded a $0.6 million refund from
the FDIC on ths overassessment of 1992 deposit
insurance premiums,

Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense,
excluding amortization of goodwill, increased by
$13.9 million, or 10.0%, for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2001, as compared to the
twelve months ended March 31, 2001.

This increase primarily reflects increases of
$11.1 million in compensation and employee benefit
expense, $1.8 million in other non-interest expense,
$0.8 million in occupancy costs and $0.6 million in
amortization of intangibles. Partially offsetting these
increases were decreases of $0.3 million in advertis-
ing costs and $0.1 million in data processing fees.
Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 142 which resulted in discontinuing the
amortization of goodwill. As a result, amortization
of goodwill decreased by $10.8 million for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2001 compared
to the twelve months ended March 31, 2001.

Total compensation and benefits increased by
$11.1 million for the twelve months ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 to $74.0 million. The increase was
comprised of increases in compensation of $4.9 mil-
lion, stock-related benefit plan costs of $3.5 million,
incentive pay of $2.7 million and post-retirement
health care costs of $1.5 million. These increases
were partially offset by a $1.2 million reduction to
the value of deferred compensation liability and
$0.4 million reduction in pension expense, resulting
from the modification of the Company’s pension
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plan in the second quarter of fiscal 2001. The
additional compensation and incentive pay was pri-
marily the tesult of the continued building and
expansion of the Company’s infrastructure. During
calendar 2001, the Company recruited several high
level executives, including a Chief Credit Officer
and a Chief Information Officer, to add to semior
management. In addition, the Company increased
the number of highly experienced senior lenders to
serve pre-existing markets and to expand into neigh-
boring geographical areas. The Company also real-
ized increases as a result of the expansion of retail
banking initiatives. These latter increases relate to
additional branch facilities and back office support
associated with new business initiatives.

Occupancy costs increased by $0.8 million to
$23.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase was primarily the result of the
expansion of operations resulting from the opening
of three de novo branches during the last two
quarters of the year ended March 31, 2001 as well
as the two de novo branches opened during the nine
months ended December 31, 2001. The Company
anticipates higher annual operating costs as a result
of the increased number of branch facilities result-
ing from the continuation of the de novo branch
expansion program.

The Company’s advertising expenses amounted
to $5.8 million and $6.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and March 31, 2001, respec-
tively. The cost reflects the Company’s continued
focus on brand awareness through, in part, increased
advertising in print media, radio and direct market-
ing programs.

Amortization of goodwill decreased $10.8 mil-
lion for the twelve months ended December 31,
2001 as compared to the twelve months ended
March 31, 2001. Effective April 1, 2001, the Com-
pany adopted SFAS No. 142, which resulted in the
discontinuation of the amortization of goodwiil.

Amortization of intangible assets increased
$0.6 million during the twelve months ended De-
cember 31, 2001 as compared to the twelve months
ended March 31, 2001. The increase was due to the
amortization of the premium incurred in the acqui-
sition in April 2001 of Summit Bank’s MBFG.

Other non-interest expense increased $1.7 mil-
lion, or 5.6%, to $33.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001, compared to $31.9 million for
the year ended March 31, 2001. These increases




relate to additional branch facilities, the operation
of the customer call center and back office support
associated with new business initiatives. These ex-
penses also include items such as professional ser-
vices, equipment expenses, office supplies, postage,
telephone expenses and maintenance and. security.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense increased
$7.5 million to $52.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared to $45.3 million for
the year ended March 31, 2001. This increase was
primarily due to a $31.4 million increase in pre-tax
income to $138.8 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 compared to $107.4 million for the
vear ended March 31, 2001. However, offsetting the
effect of such increased taxable income was a de-
cline in the Company’s effective tax rate for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2001 to 38.0%,
compared to 42.2% for the twelve months ended
March 31, 2001. The decrease in the effective tax
rate during the twelve months ended December 31,
2001 compared to the twelve months ended
March 31, 2001 was attributable to the adoption of
SFAS No. 142, which discontinues the amortiza-
tion of non-tax-deductible goodwill for book
purposes.

Net deferred tax assets decreased by $25.4 mil-
lion to $43.6 million at December 31, 2001, com-
pared to $69.0 million at March 31, 2001. The
decrease was primarily the result of a $29.8 million
deferred tax liability associated with the implemen-
tation of certain tax strategies which change the
timing of tax payments. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, the Company recorded a
$7.9 million reduction to the valuation allowance
associated with the deferred tax asset reflecting the
fair market value of Holding Company common
stock contributed to the Foundation at its inception
in March 1998 based on current projections of the
Company’s future net income. The valuation allow-
ance was established in the year ended March 31,
2001 due to the possibility that the deferred tax
asset would not be fully utilized. The Company
reduced the allowance due to the increased likeli-
hood that a greater amount of the deferred tax asset
will be utilized. The effect of the reduction of the
valuation allowance was to increase paid-in-capital.

The Company has identified the valuation of
deferred tax assets as a critical accounting estimate.
For further discussion see “— Comparison of Re-
sults of Operations for the Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2002 and the Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2001-Income Taxes” set forth in
Item 7 hereof.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to minimum regulatory
capital requirements imposed by the FDIC which
vary according to an institution’s capital level and
the composition of its assets. An insured institution
is required to maintain core capital of not less than
3.0% of total assets plus an additional amount of at
least 100 to 200 basis points (‘“leverage capital
ratio””). An insured institution must also maintain a
ratio of total capital to risk-based assets of 8.0%.
Although the minimum leverage capital ratio is
3.0%, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991 stipulates that an institu-
tion with less than a 4.0% leverage capital ratio is
deemed to be an ‘“‘undercapitalized” institution
which results in the imposition of certain regulatory
restrictions. See “Business-Regulation-Capital Re-
quirements” and Note 21 of the “Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8
hereof for a discussion of the Bank’s regulatory
capital requirements and compliance therewith at
December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001.

Liquidity and Commitments

The Company’s liquidity, represented by cash
and cash equivalents, is a product of its operating,
investing and financing activities. The Company’s
primary sources of funds are deposits, the amortiza-
tion, prepayment and maturity of outstanding loans,
mortgage-related securities, the maturity of debt
securities and other short-term investments and
funds provided from operations. While scheduled
payments from the amortization of loans, mortgage-
related securities and maturing debt securities and
short-term investments are relatively predictable

sources of funds, deposit flows and loan prepay-

ments are greatly influenced by general interest
rates, economic conditions and competition. In ad-
dition, the Company invests excess funds in federal
funds sold and other short-term interest-earning
assets that provide liquidity to meet lending require-
ments. Prior to fiscal 1999, the Company generated
sufficient cash through its deposits to fund its asset
generation, using borrowings from the FHLB of
New York only to a limited degree as a source of
funds. However, due to the Company’s increased
focus on expanding its commercial real estate and
businessloan portfolios, the Company has increased
its FHLB borrowings to $1.93 billion at Decem-
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ber 31, 2002, frem $1.68 billion at December 31,
2001. At December 31, 2002, the Company had the
ability to borrow from the FHLB an additional
$1.0 billion on a secured basis, utilizing mortgage
related loans and securities as collateral. The
amount of such borrowings have ranged from
$56.0 million at March 31, 1996 to $1.93 billion at
December 31, 2002. See Note 11 of the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in
Item 8 hereof.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-
term function of business management. Excess li-
quidity is generally invested in short-term invest-
ments such as federal funds sold, U.S. Treasury
securities or preferred securities. On a longer term
basis, the Company maintains a strategy of invest-
ing in its various lending products. The Company
uses its sources of funds primarily to meet its
ongoing commitments, to pay maturing certificates
of deposit and savings withdrawals, fund loan com-
mitments and maintain a portfolio of mortgage-
related securities and investment securities. At De-
cember 31, 2002, there were outstanding commit-
ments and unused lines of credit by the Company to
originate or acquire mortgage loans aggregating
$446.8 million, consisting primarily of fixed and
adjustable-rate multi-family residential loans and
fixed-rate commercial real estate loans, which are
expected to close during the twelve-months ended
December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2002, out-
standing commitments for other loans totaled
$81.9 million, primarily comprised of home equity
loans and lines of credit. In addition, at Decem-
ber 31, 2002, unused commercial business lines of
credit and mortgage warehouse lines of credit out-
standing were $295.4 million and $219.1 million,
respectively. Certificates of deposit scheduled to
mature in one year or less at December 31, 2002
totaled $1.10 billion or 69.5% of total certificates of
deposit. Based on historical experience, manage-
ment believes that a significant portion of maturing
deposits will remain with the Company. The Com-
pany anticipates that it will continue to have suffi-
cient funds, together with borrowings, to meet its
current commitments.

Following the completion of the Conversion,
the Holding Company’s principal business was that
of its subsidiary, the Bank. The Holding Company
invested 50% of the net proceeds from the Conver-
sion in the Bank and initially invested the remaining
proceeds in short-term securities and money market
investments. The Bank can pay dividends to the
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Holding Company to the extent such payments are
permitted by law or regulation, which serves as an
additional source of liquidity.

The Holding Company’s liquidity is available
to, among other things, fund acquisitions, support
future expansion of operations or diversification into
other banking related businesses, pay dividends or
repurchase its common stock.

Restrictions on the amount of dividends the
Holding Company and the Bank may declare can
affect the Company’s liquidity and cash flow needs.
Under Delaware law, the Holding Company is gen-
erally limited to paying dividends to the extent of
the excess of net assets of the Holding Company
(the amount by which total assets exceed total
liabilities) over its statutory capital or, if no such
excess exists, from its net profits for the current
and/or immediately preceding year.

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends to the
Holding Company is also subject to certain restric-
tions. Under the New York Banking Law, dividends
may be declared and paid only out of the net profits
of the Bank. The approval of the Superintendent of
Banks of the State of New York is required if the
total of all dividends declared in any calendar year
will exceed the net profits for that year plus the
retained net profits of the preceding two years, less
any required transfers. In addition, the OTS regula-
tions govern capital distributions by savings institu-
tions, which include cash dividends, stock
repurchases and other transactions charged to the
capital account of a savings institution to make
capital distributions. The Bank elected to be
deemed a savings association for certain purposes.
As a result, it has to comply with the OTS capital
distribution regulations. A savings institution must
file an application for OTS approval of the capital
distribution if any of the following occur or would
occur as a result of the capital distribution (1) the
total capital distributions for the applicable calendar
year exceed the sum of the institution’s net income
for that year-to-date plus the institution’s retained
net income for the preceding two years, (2) the
institution would not be at least adequately capital-
ized following the distribution, (3) the distribution
would violate any applicable statute, regulation,
agreement or OTS-imposed condition, or (4) the
institution is not eligible for expedited treatment of
its filings. If an application is not required to be
filed, savings institutions which are a subsidiary of a
holding company (as well as certain other institu-



tions) must still file a notice with the OTS at least
30 days before the Board of Directors declares a
dividend or approves a capital distribution. In addi-
tion, no dividends may be declared, credited or paid
if the effect thereof would cause the Bank’s capital
to be reduced below the amount required by the
Superintendent or the FDIC.

During 2002, the Bank requested and received
approval of the distribution to the Company of an
aggregate of $100.0 million, of which $75.0 million
was declared by the Bank and was funded during
2002 with the remaining $25.0 million declared and
funded in 2003. In December 2000, the Bank re-
quested and received approval of the distribution to
the Company of an aggregate of $25.0 million, of
which $6.0 million had been distributed as of De-
cember 31, 2001, with the remainder distributed in
2002. The distributions were primarily used by the
Company to fund the Company’s open market stock
repurchase programs, dividend payments and con-
sideration paid in October 2002 to increase the
Company’s minority investment in Meridian.

The Company has not had, and has no intention
to have, any significant transactions, arrangements or
other relationships with any unconsolidated, limited
purpose entities that could materially affect its liquid-
ity or capital resources. The Company has not, and
does not intend to trade in commodity contracts.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and re-
lated financial data presented herein have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP, which requires
the measurement of financial position and operating
results in terms of historical dollars, without consid-
ering changes in relative purchasing power over
time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial compa-
nies, virtually all of the Company’s assets and liabil-
ities are monetary in nature. As a result, interest
rates generally have a more significant impact on a
financial institution’s performance than does the
effect of inflation.

Impact of New Accounting Pronouncements

Modifications to Reporting of Extinguishments
of Debt and Accounting for Certain Capital
Lease Modifications and Technical Corrections

In April 2002, Financial Accounting Standards
Board (the “FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 145 “Rescission of

FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Correc-
tions” (“SFAS No. 145”). SFAS No. 145 rescinds
FASB Statement No. 4 “Reporting Gains and
Losses from Extinguishment of Debt, an amend- -
ment of APB Opinion No. 30”, which required all
gains and losses from extinguishment of debt to be
aggregated and, if material, classified as an ex-
traordinary item, net of the related income tax
effect. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 145, companies
will be required to apply the criteria in Accounting
Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 30 “Report-
ing the Results of Operations — Reporting the Ef-
fects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions” in determining the classi-
fication of gains and losses resulting from the extin-
guishment of debt. Upon adoption, companies must
reclassify prior period items that do not meet the
extraordinary item classification criteria in APB
Opinion No. 30. Additionally, SFAS No. 145
amends FASB Statement No. 13 “Accounting for
Leases” to require that certain lease modifications
that have economic effects similar to sale-leaseback
transactions be accounted for in the same manner as
sale-leaseback transactions. The provisions of SFAS
No. 145 related to the rescission of SFAS No. 4 are
effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15,
2002. All other provisions of SFAS No. 145 are
effective for transactions occurring and/or financial
statements issued on or after May 15, 2002. The
implementation of SFAS No. 145 provisions which
were effective May 15, 2002 did not have a material
impact on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations. The implementation of the
Statement’s remaining provisions is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

Obligations Associated with Disposal Activities

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 “Account-
ing for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” (“SFAS No. 146”). SFAS 146 ad-
dresses financial accounting and reporting for costs
associated with exit or disposal activities and nulli-
fies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue
No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Em-
ployee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to
Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred
in a Restructuring).” The standard requires costs
associated with exit or disposal activities to be
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recognized when they are incurred rather than at
the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal
plan. SFAS. 146 is effective for exit or disposal
activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002,
with earlier application permitted. The adoption of
SFAS No. 146 is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions

In October 2002, the FASB issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 147 “Ac-
quisitions of Certain Financial Institutions — an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 72 and 144
and FASB Interpretation No. 97 (“SFAS
No. 147”). SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of
financial institutions, except for transactions be-
tween two or more mutual enterprises, from the
scope of FASB Statement No. 72 “Accounting for
Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institu-
tions”, and FASB Interpretation No. 9 “Applying
APB Opinions No. 16 and 17 When a Savings and
Loan Association or Similar Institution is Acquired
in a Business Combination Accounted for by the
Purchase Method,” and requires that those transac-
tions be accounted for in accordance with SFAS
No. 141 “Business Combinations” and SFAS
No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
The Statement also amends FASB Statement
No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Dispo-
sal of Long-Lived Assets” to include within its
scope long-term customer-relationship intangible
assets of financial institutions, such as depositor-
and borrower-relationship intangible assets and
credit cardholder intangible assets. The provisions
of SFAS No. 147 related to the purchase method of
accounting are effective for acquisitions occurring
on or after October 1, 2002. The provisions of the
Statement related to accounting for the impairment
or disposal of certain long-term customer-relation-
ship intangible assets are effective on October 1,
2002. Transition provisions for previously recog-
nized unidentifiable intangible assets are effective
on October 1, 2002, with earlier application permit-
ted. The adoption of SFAS No. 147 did not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial condi-
tion or results of operations.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2002, the FASB issued State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
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Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS No. 1487).
SFAS No. 148 amends FASB Statement No. 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
(“SFAS No. 123”) to provide alternative methods
of transition to SFAS No. 123’s fair value method
of accounting for stock-based employee compensa-
tion when a company changes from the intrinsic
value method to the fair value method of accounting
for employee stock-based compensation cost. SFAS
No. 148 also amends the disclosure provisions of
SFAS No. 123 and APB Opinion No. 28 “Interim
Financial Reporting” to require disclosure in the
summary of significant accounting policies of the
effects of an entity’s accounting policy with respect
to stock-based employee compensation on reported
net income and earnings per share in both annual as
well as interim financial statements. The provisions
of SFAS No. 148 are effective for financial state-
ments issued for fiscal years ending after Decem-
ber 15, 2002 and for financial reports containing
condensed consolidated financial statements for in-
terim periods beginning after December 15, 2002.
In January 2003, the Company announced that
beginning in 2003 it will recognize stock-based
compensation expense on options granted in 2003
and in subsequent years in accordance with the
prospective fair value-based method of accounting
described in SFAS No. 123, as amended. The
implementation of SFAS No. 148 is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

Guarantor’s Accounting

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB
Interpretation No. 45 “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”
(“FIN 457). FIN 45 identifies characteristics of
certain guarantee contracts and requires that a liabil-
ity be recognized at fair value at the inception of such
guarantees for the obligations undertaken by the
guarantor. Additional disclosures also are prescribed
for certain guarantee contracts. The initial recogni-
tion and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45
are effective for these guarantees issued or modified
after December 31, 2002. The disclosure require-
ments of FIN 45 are effective for the Company as of
December 31, 2002. Significant guarantees that have
been entered into by the Company are disclosed in
Note 18. The Company does not expect the require-
ments of FIN 45 to have a material effect on the
Company’s financial condition or results of
operations.




Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB In-
terpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities”. This interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consoli-
dated Financial Statements”, addresses consolida-
tion by business enterprises of variable interest
entities with certain characteristics. FIN 46 is effec-
tive immediately for all enterprises with variable
interests in variable interest entities created after
January 31, 2003 and is effective beginning with the
September 30, 2003 quarterly financial statements
for all variable interests in a variable interest entity
created before February 1, 2003. The Company
does not anticipate that the adoption of FIN 46 will
have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

ITEM 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures about Market
Risk

General. Market risk is the risk of loss arising
from adverse changes in the fair value of financial
instruments. As a financial institution, the Com-
pany’s primary component of market risk is interest
rate risk. Interest rate risk is defined as the sensitiv-
ity of the Company’s current and future earnings to
changes in the level of market rates of interest.
Market risk arises in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business, as the repricing characteristics
of its assets do not match those of its liabilities.
Based upon the Company’s nature of operations, the
Company is not subject to foreign currency ex-
change or commodity price risk. The Company’s
various loan portfolios, concentrated primarily
within the greater New York City metropolitan area
(which includes parts of northern New Jersey and
southern Connecticut), are subject to risks associ-
ated with the local economy. The Company does
not own any trading assets.

Net interest margin represents net interest in-
come as a percentage of average interest-earning
assets. Net interest margin is directly affected by
changes in the level of interest rates, the relation-
ship between rates, the impact of interest rate fluc-
tuations on asset prepayments, the level and
composition of assets and liabilities and the credit
quality of the loan portfolio. Management’s as-
set/liability objectives are to maintain a strong,
stable net interest margin, to utilize its capital

effectively without taking undue risks and to main-
tain adequate liquidity.

Management responsibility for interest rate
risk resides with the Asset and Liability Manage-
ment Committee (“ALCO”). The committee is
chaired by the Treasurer, and includes the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Credit Officer and the Company’s senior busi-
ness-unit and financial executives. Interest rate
risk management strategies are formulated and
monitored by ALCO within policies and limits
approved by the Board of Directors. These poli-
cies and limits set forth the maximum risk which
the Board of Directors deems prudent, govern
permissible investment securities and off-balance
sheet instruments, and identify acceptable
counterparties to securities and off-balance sheet
transactions.

ALCO risk management strategies allow for
the assumption of interest rate risk within the Board
approved limits. The strategies are formulated based
upon ALCO’s assessments of likely market devel-
opments and trends in the Company’s lending and
consumer banking businesses. Strategies are devel-
oped with the aim of enhancing the Company’s net
income and capital, while ensuring the risks to
income and capital from adverse movements in
interest rates are acceptable.

The Company’s strategies to manage interest
rate risk include (i) increasing the interest sensitiv-
ity of its mortgage loan portfolio through the use of
adjustable-rate loans or relatively short-term (pri-
marily five years) balloon loans, (ii) originating
relatively short-term or variable-rate consumer and
commercial business loans as well as mortgage
warehouse lines of credit, (iii) investing in securi-
ties, primarily mortgage-related instruments with
maturities or estimated average lives of less than
five years, (iv) promoting stable savings, demand
and other transaction accounts, (v)utilizing varia-
ble-rate borrowings which have imbedded deriva-
tives to cap the cost of borrowings, (vi) using
interest rate swaps to modify the repricing charac-
teristics of certain variable rate borrowings,
(vil) maintaining a strong capital position and
(viii) maintaining a relatively high level of liquidity
and/or borrowing capacity.

As part of the overall interest rate risk manage-
ment strategy, management has entered into deriva-
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tive instruments to minimize significant unplanned
fluctuations in earnings and cash flows caused by
interest rate volatility. The interest rate risk man-
agement strategy at times involves modifying the
repricing characteristics of certain borrowings so
that changes in interest rates do not have a signifi-
cant adverse effect on net interest income, the net
interest margin and cash flows. Derivative instru-
ments that management periodically uses as part of
its interest rate risk management strategy include
interest rate swaps.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had
forward starting interest rate swap agreements out-
standing with aggregate notional values of
$200.0 million. These agreements qualify as cash
flow hedges of anticipated interest payments relat-
ing to $200.0 million of variable-rate FHLB borrow-
ings that the Company intends to draw down during
2003 to replace existing FHLB borrowings that will
mature in 2003. The swaps require the Company at
a future date to make periodic fixed-rate payments
to the swap counterparties, while receiving periodic
variable-rate payments indexed to the three month
LIBOR rate from the swap counterparties based on
a common notional amount and maturity date. As a
result, the net impact of the swap will be to convert
the variable interest payments on the $200.0 million
FHLB borrowings to fixed interest payments the
Company will make to the swap counterparty.
These swaps have original maturities ranging up to
5 years.

The credit risk associated with these derivative
instruments is the risk of non-performance by the
counterparty to the agreements. However, manage-
ment does not anticipate non-performance by the
counterparties and monitors/controls the risk
through its asset/liability management procedures.
See Note 17 of the “Notes to Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements” set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Management uses a variety of analyses to mon-
itor the sensitivity of net interest income, primarily a
dynamic simulation model complemented by a
traditional gap analysis and, to a lesser degree, a net
portfolio value analysis.

Net Interest Income Simulation Model. The
simulation mode! measures the sensitivity of net
interest income to changes in market interest rates.
The simulation involves a degree of estimation
based on certain assumptions that management be-
lieves to be reascnable. Factors considered include
contractual maturities, prepayments, repricing char-
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acteristics, deposit retention and the relative sensi-
tivity of assets and liabilities to changes in market
interest rates.

The Board has established certain limits for the
potential volatility of net interest income as pro-
jected by the simulation model. Volatility is mea-
sured from a base case where rates are assumed to
be flat. Volatility is expressed as the percentage
change, from the base case, in net interest income
over a 12-month period.

The model is kept static with respect to the
composition of the balance sheet and, therefore does
not reflect management’s ability to proactively man-
age in changing market conditions. Management
may choose to extend or shorten the maturities of
the Company’s funding sources and redirect cash
flows into assets with shorter or longer durations.

Based on the information and assumptions in
effect at December 31, 2002, the model shows that
a 200 basis point gradual increase in interest rates
over the next twelve months would decrease net
interest income by $7.1 million or 2.43%, while a
100 basis point gradual decrease in interest rates
would decrease net interest income by $4.5 million
or 1.55%.

Gap Analysis. Gap analysis complements the
income simulation model, primarily focusing on the
longer term structure of the balance sheet. The
matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed
by examining the extent to which such assets and
liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by moni-
toring an institution’s “interest rate sensitivity gap.”
An asset or liability is said to be interest rate
sensitive within a specific time period if it will
mature or reprice within that time period. The
interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the differ-
ence between the amount of interest-earning assets
maturing or repricing within a specific time period
and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities matur-
ing or repricing within that same time period. A gap
is considered positive when the amount of interest
rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest
rate sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered nega-
tive when the amount of interest rate sensitive
liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate sensi-
tive assets. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s
one-year cumulative gap position was a positive
3.68%. A positive gap will generally result in the net
interest margin increasing in a rising rate environ-
ment and decreasing in a falling rate environment.



A negative gap will generally have the opposite
results on the net interest margin.

The following gap analysis table sets forth the
amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities outstanding at December 31,
2002, that are anticipated by the Company, using
certain assumptions based on historical experience
and other market-based data, to reprice or mature
in each of the future time periods shown. The
amount of assets and liabilities shown which reprice
or mature during a particular period was determined
in accordance with the earlier of the term to reprice
or the contractual maturity of the asset or liability.

The gap analysis is an incomplete representa-
tion of interest rate risk. The gap analysis sets forth
-an approximation of the projected repricing of assets
and liabilities at December 31, 2002 on the basis of
contractual maturities, anticipated prepayments,
callable features and scheduled rate adjustments for
selected time periods. The actual duration of mort-
gage loans and mortgage-backed securities can be
significantly affected by changes in mortgage pre-
payment activity. The major factors affecting mort-
gage prepayment rates are prevailing interest rates
and related mortgage refinancing opportunities. Pre-
payment rates will also vary due to a number of
other factors, including the regional economy in the
area where underlying collateral is located, seasonal
factors and demographic variables.

In addition, the gap analysis does not account
for the effect of general interest rate movements on

the Company’s net interest income because the
actual repricing dates of various assets and liabilities
will differ from the Company’s estimates and it does
not give consideration to the yields and costs of the
assets and liabilities or the projected yields and costs
to replace or retain those assets and liabilities.
Callable features of certain assets and liabilities, in
addition to the foregoing, may also cause actual
experience to vary from that indicated. The uncer-
tainty and volatility of interest rates, economic con-
ditions and other markets which affect the value of
these call options, as well as the financial condition
and strategies of the holders of the options, increase
the difficulty and uncertainty in predicting when
they may be exercised.

Among the factors considered in our estimates
are current trends and historical repricing experi-
ence with respect to similar products. As a result,
different assumptions may be used at different
points in time. Within the one year time period,
money market accounts were assumed to decay at
55%, savings accounts were assumed to decay at
30% and NOW accounts were assumed to decay at
40%. Deposit decay rates (estimated deposit with-
drawal activity) can have a significant effect on the
Company’s estimated gap. While the Company be-
lieves such assumptions are reasonable, there can be
no assurance that assumed decay rates will approxi-
mate actual future deposit withdrawal activity.
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The following table reflects the repricing of the balance sheet, or “gap” position at December 31, 2002,

{In Thousands) 0-90 Days 91 - 180 Days 181 - 365 Days 1-5Years  Over 5 Years Total Fair Value

Interest-carning assets:
Mortgage loans" $ 601,747 $259,228 $ 515,208  $2,701,665 § 334,571  $4,412,419  $4,226,912

Commercial business and
other loans 968,622 46,965 86,345 386,168 31,233 1,519,333 1,522,302

Securities available-for-
302,646 207,537 265,551 361,928 114,097 1,251,758 1,263,650

Other interest-earning
assets® — — — 101,578 155,164 155,164

Total interest-earning assets .. 1,926,600 513,730 867,104 3,449,761 581,478 7,338,673 7,270,165
Interest-bearing liabilities:

Savings, NOW and money

market deposits ........ 262,891 262,891 525,782 575,284 1,164,749 2,791,599 2,791,599
Certificates of deposit ... .. 493,160 384,389 242,857 468,847 — 1,589,252 1,615,691
Borrowings .............. 175,000 175,000 490,250 101,300 990,000 1,931,550 2,101,984

Total interest-bearing
liabilities ................ 931,052 822,280 1,258,889 1,145,431 2,154,749 6,312,401 6,509,274
Interest sensitivity gap....... 995,549 (308,550) {391,786) 2,304,330  (1,573,271)

BAD . e $ 995,549 $686,999 § 295,213 $2,599,543  $1,026,272

Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap as a percentage of total
assets ... 12.41% 8.56% 3.68% 32.40% 12.79%

(1) Based upon contractual maturity, repricing date, if applicable, and management’s estimate of principal prepayments. Includes loans
available-for-sale.

(2) Based upon contractual maturity, repricing date, if applicable, and projected repayments of principal based upon experience.
Amounts exclude the unrealized gains/ (losses) on securities available-for-sale.

(3) Includes interest-earning cash and due from banks, overnight deposits and FHLB stock.
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NPV Analysis. To a lesser degree, the Com-
pany also utilizes net portfolio value (“NPV”)
analysis to monitor interest rate risk over a range of
interest rate scenarios.

NPV is defined as the net present value of the
expected future cash flows of an entity’s assets and
liabilities and, therefore, theoretically represents the
market value of the Company’s net worth. Increases
in the value of assets will increase the NPV whereas
decreases in value of assets will decrease the NPV,
Conversely, increases in the value of liabilities will
decrease NPV whereas decreases in the value of

liabilities will increase the NPV. The changes in
value of assets and liabilities due to changes in
interest rates reflect the interest rate sensitivity of
those assets and liabilities as their values are derived
from the characteristics of the asset or liability (i.e.
fixed rate, adjustable rate, caps, floors) relative to
the interest rate environment. For example, in a
rising interest rate environment, the fair value of a
fixed-rate asset will decline whereas the fair value of
an adjustable-rate asset, depending on its repricing
characteristics, may not decline. In a declining in-
terest rate environment, the converse may be true.

The NPV ratio, under any interest rate scenario, is defined as the NPV in that scenario divided by the
market value of assets in the same scenario. The model assumes estimated loan prepayment rates and
reinvestment rates similar to the Company’s historical experience. The following sets forth the Company’s

NPV as of December 31, 2002.

Net Portfolio Value

NPV as % of Portfolio
Value of Assets

Change (in Basis points) in Interest Rates Amount

(Dollars In Thousands)

200 . $1,034,934
F100 . 1,061,168

0 o 1,054,359
100 o 1,098,923

As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s
NPV was $1.05 billion, or 12.80% of the market
value of assets. Following a 200 basis point assumed
increase in interest rates, the Company’s ‘“post
shock” NPV was estimated to be $1.03 billion, or
13.15% of the market value of assets reflecting an
increase of 0.35% in the NPV ratio.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company’s
NPV was $1.03 billion, or 13.34% of the market
value of assets. Following a 200 basis point assumed
increase in interest rates, the Company’s “post
shock” NPV was estimated to be $990.2 million, or
13.40% of the market value of assets reflecting an
increase of 0.06% in the NPV ratio.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the meth-
odology used in the above interest rate risk mea-
surements. Modeling changes in NPV require the

$ Change NPV % Change Ratio Change in NPV Ratio
$(19,425) (1.84)% 13.15% 0.35%
6,809 0.65 13.16 0.36
— — 12.80 —
44,564 4,23 13.06 0.26

making of certain assumptions which may or may
not reflect the manner in which actual yields and
costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In
this regard, the NPV table presented assumes that
the composition of the Company’s interest sensitive
assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a
period remains constant over the period being mea-
sured and also assumes that a particular change in
interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield
curve regardless of the duration to maturity or
repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accord-
ingly, although the NPV table provides an indica-
tion of the Company’s interest rate risk exposure at
a particular point in time, such measurements are
not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast
of the effect of changes in market interest rates on
the Company’s net interest income and will differ
from actual results.
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ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors
Independence Community Bank Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Independence
Community Bank Corp. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2002, the nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Independence Community Bank Corp. at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and
the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2002, the nine
months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 during the nine months ended December 31, 2001.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG, LLP
Ernst & Young, LLP

New York, New York
February 5, 2003
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INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31,

December 31,

(In Thousands, Except Share Data) 2002 2001
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks — interest-bearing .. ....... ... .. . i e $ 49,587 $ 101,181
Cash and due from banks — non-interest-bearing ... ... ... . cvurrtei i 149,470 106,452
Total cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... i 199,057 207,633
Securities available-for-sale:
Investment securities ($13,593 and $2,320 pledged to creditors, respectively) ........................ 224,908 125,803
Mortgage-related securities ($599,041 and $695,973 pledged to creditors, respectively) ................ 1,038,742 902,191
Total securities avatlable-for-sale ... ... ... e 1,263,650 1,027,994
Loans available-for-sale . ... ... . . 114,379 3,696
Mortgage loans on Teal ESTALE . ... ... ...ttt 4,298,040 4,588,834
Other J0ans . ... 1,519,333 1,285,601

Total L0anS . . .o 5,817,373 5,874,435

Less: allowance for Ioan 10SSES . ... ... ittt e e (80,547) (78,239)

Total 10ans, Nt . .. ... e 5,736,826 5,796,196

Premises, furniture and equUIpment, met . . ... .o i e s 85,395 81,289
Accrued Interest receivable .. ... . 36,530 37,436
GooAWIll e 185,161 185,161
Intangible assets, Met ... ... . 2,046 8,981
Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI™) ... . . e 168,357 112,804
[0 141155 1371 - 10U O A U 232,242 163,608
TOta] @SSETS . . . i e e $8,023,643 $7,624,798
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Deposits:
SavVINgS AePOSIES . ...ttt $1,574,531 $1,451,988
Money market deposits . ... ... ... e 192,647 180,866
Active management accounts (“AMA”) deposits ... ... ... 495,849 452,284
Interest-bearing demand deposits .. ... ... . e 493,997 406,540
Non-interest-bearing demand deposits . ... ... ... 593,784 449,460
Certificates of deposit. ... vttt 1,589,252 1,853,637
Total depoSitS . ..ot 4,940,060 4,794,775
BOrrowings. .. ... it e P 1,931,550 1,682,788
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable cumulative trust preferred securities of a subsidiary trust
holding solely junior debentures of the Company . ... ... ... . . . i i — 11,067
Escrow and other deposits . . ..ottt et e 34,574 38,361
Accrued expenses and other labilities .. ... ..o o e 197,191 217,274
Total Habilities .. ... e 7,103,375 6,744,265
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value: 125,000,000 shares authorized, 76,043,750 shares issued; 56,248,898 and

58,372,560 shares outstanding at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively .......... 760 760
Additional paid-in-capital ... ... ... 742,006 734,773
Treasury stock at cost: 19,794,852 and 17,671,190 shares at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,

TESPECHIVELY . . oo e e (318,182) (247,184)
Unallocated common stock held by ESOP ... ... o o e (74,154) (79,098)
Un-vested awards under Recognition Plan . ... ... ... . (11,782) (17,641)
Retained earnings, substantially restricted . . ... ... .. . 575,927 480,074
Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale, netof tax............ . ... ... . ... ... .. 7,564 8,849

Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges, net of tax . .......... .. ... .. . .. . . . i i (1,871) —

Total stockholders” equity ... ... . e 920,268 880,533
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... ........ oo i $8,023,643 $7,624,798

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Nine For the For the
For the Year Months Twelve Year
Ended Ended Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2002 2001 2001 2001
(audited) (audited) (unaudited) (audited)
Interest income;
Mortgage loans on real estate $334,154 $255,735 $344,085 $343,595
Other loans 79,800 55,196 69,876 52,294
8,157 7,794 10,750 12,399
57,151 36,306 48,075 48,993
6,241 7,175 9,835 13,421
485,503 362,206 482,621 470,702
Interest expense:
Deposits 81,637 109,425 152,551 168,228
Borrowings 93,418 62,415 82,843 78,182
Trust preferred securities 524 786 1,048 1,047
Total interest expense 175,579 172,626 236,442 247,457
Net interest income 309,924 189,580 246,179 223,245
Provision for 10an 1oSSes . ... ..cvviir ittt e e 8,000 7,875 8,475 1,392
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ............. 301,924 181,705 237,704 221,853
Non-interest income:
Net gain on sales of loans and securities ....................... 557 2,850 3,145 3,398
Mortgage-banking activities ......... ... .. ... . .l 13,759 8,863 12,934 5,541
Service fees. . ..o e 50,476 25,995 32,355 24,399
BOLL . o 6,294 4,531 5,567 2,521
Other . e 4,032 2,234 3,068 2,479
Total non-interest income .. ... it 75,118 44,473 57,069 38,338
Non-interest expense:
Compensation and employee benefits ........ ... ... ... ...... 96,298 57,759 74,047 62,934
OCCUPANCY COSES . . ot ettt et ettt e e 22,839 17,095 23,113 22,332
Data processing fees ... i 8,951 6,700 8,273 8,419
Advertising ... .. 6,194 4,211 5,777 6,063
Amortization of goodwill .. ...... ... ... . ... — — 3,594 14,344
Amortization of intangible assets ............. .. .. ... .. ... 6,971 5,761 7,481 6,880
O her . .o e 43,802 24,115 33,644 31,854
Total non-interest EXPeNSE ... ..coo it 185,055 115,641 155,929 152,826
Income before provision for income taxes......................... 191,987 110,537 138,844 107,365
Provision for income taxes ........... ..t 69,585 40,899 52,779 45,329
Net INCOME . . o e e e e $122,402 $ 69,638 $ 86,065 $ 62,036
Basic earnings pershare ...... ... i $ 237 $ 133 $ 164 $ 1Ll
Diluted earnings per share .............. ... ... ... ... $ 224 $ 127 $ 1.58 $ LIO

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

78



‘SIUIWIIVIS [pIoUDUL PAIDPIIOSHOd O] §a10U SUulduvdiuoddn 228

897°026 §  €69'S §  LT6'SLSS  (TSLIN)S  (BSI'PLIS (TBIBIE)S Q0OTHLE  09LS  ~ 77 7T Utoooooooroorssmseeresessinseces 7007 “IE 19qUIAQ — NuE[Ry
L89°6 — — 658°C — — 878°¢ e ue[q uonugoddy Jo uontod psuies jo uonPZRIOWY
P_LL - — — r6y — or8c . PIsea[al 9q 0} pINIUWO $eYS JOSH
SHI - -— — — - ISh = Trrrrranmmcisssssee s suondo jo Juisaa pIBIdPDY
(6v5°92) — (6¥5°92) - — — — e PAIEB[O3P SPUSPIAI(]
LE9TT — - - - 6v1°1T 88¥°1 Tt (sa1eys 886'F 11 1) UBIPHON
PUE $99] 101001Ip ‘pasioraxd suondo 10j pansst Y0015 AInsea1]
(8£0°1) — - - - - (8¢0°1) - 1Jouaq Xe] JWOdUI PaLIdjop Joj Judwisnipe uoneneA
(LP1°26) — - - — (Lr1z6) - — - (soIeys 0G9°REGE) No01S UOWWOd Jo dseydInday
97611 (951°6) 0 raal _ _ - _ e awosu aalsuayardwor)
AM\\U AMN‘V —_— —_ — . — T —.—O:——E —Oﬁ ,ho
X} JO 19U ‘OlUODUL J2U Ul PAZI[RA1 Suled 12U JO juswisn{pe uoedyISSe[OdL S8
Q1N (z12'1) _ _ . o _ A A A R A S AU DS A AU A S A uonu p0¢
JO XE] JO 19U ‘D]BS-I0J-O[qR[IEAER SOILINDIS UO Suled pozijealun 19U ul dguey))
(1.8°1) (1L81) - — - — — — uol[iw [°$ JO XB1 JO 12U ‘S98Pay MmOy YSBD U0 SISSO| PIZI[ealun Jau ul a3uey))
uol[[IW $°¢$ JO XB} JO 12U ‘awodul dasuayaiduwod 19410
[0 A — or'Tel — — — — m— T 700T ‘1€ 12quIDdd(] Popud Jeak 9y I0J SWOdUI AN
pwooul aa1suayardwo))
££5°088 6r8‘8 vLo'osy  (1p9°LI) (860'6L)  (PBI'LVT)  ELLVEL (7 10027 ‘T€ 13quado(J — duUEley
£V0°L - - £01°S — — ov6'l —— s ue)d uoniudosdy Jo uoniod powses Jo uoneziowy
9T’y - — - LOL'E — 61L - Posea[a1 9q 0} pAIIWWOd $a1eys JOSH
€09 — _ _ - _ €09 T stondo Jo Sunsoa paeIsPIY
(08S¥1) — (08sv1) — — - - - T . Tt paIR[Rap Spuapial(]
06€°1 e — — — 081°t 0i¢ — €€) $99] 10}201Ip puR pastoIaxd suordo 10§ pansst yo0)s AInseal]
£88°L - - — — — £88°L i 1JoUdq XB} SWODUL PILIDJOP 10§ JudunsSn{pe uonenjeA
(zse's1) — - — — (zsgst) — e (sa1eys 00O'SHY) AO0IS UOWWOD JO aseydinday
¥96°8L 9z€'6 8£9°69 — — - — e Testesciceecscssecne e awoour aalsusyaidwo))
(91Z°1) (912°1) - — — — — — XB) JO 19U ‘QUIODUI 13U Ul PIZI[EII SISSO| 12U JO Jud)sn(pe UOHBIYISSB[IAI $59]
WSOl wso1 ha —_ — — — _- XE} JO 19U ‘D[US-I0J-I[B[IBAE SIHILINIIS UO SISSO[ pIzI[eaiun jou ul a3uey))
uorj[iu ['g$ Jo Xe) jo 1au ‘awoout sasuayarduros 19710
8£9°69 — 8£9°69 — — — — — T 100T ‘1€ 12qWD03(] POPUI SYIUOW SUIU 1) JOJ JWODUT 1IN
:owooul darsusyardwon)
9SI‘EI8 (LLy) 910'SZP rL77) (s08°78)  (TI0'0E€T)  SIP'EIL Q9L  Corororortoerrrereremraranssserinenees T00T ‘T€ YIB]A — due[eq
£L2°9 — — £60°0 — — 081 — T AR ue[d uoniugooay jo uoniod paules Jo UOHEZHIOW Y
- — — (0g6) — —_ 0£6 — e (sareys £9¢°6zz) ueld uonugooay opun sjueid Jo douenss|
910'v — — — r6'Y — (826) e Poses[al 8q 0} papIwwod sareys JOSH
(8LE°LT) - (8LELT) — — — — s PoIB[D9p SpUapIAl(]
L61 -— - — — 65 (L6€) et (s21RyS 1¢9'pp) PasioIaxs suondo 10§ panssi Y20)S AINSear],
(€16€1T) — — — — €le'cry)  — R (s21RYS <TZOLI‘Y) }00)s uoWwwod Jo aseyoinday
089 - - — — - 089t —_ e uorjepuno,j o) Sune[al JY2udq Xe) JWOdUT PILIDJIP 10] judunsnipe uonenjep
YLY'Y6 REVTE 9£0°79 — — — — STt swoour sasusyardwo))
99 99 - - — — — — XE} JO JOU ‘OWIODUL J2U Ul PIZI[ea] $ISSO[ 12U JO JUIWISNIPE UOIBDYISSE|Od S50
TLETE TLETE - - — — — —- XE} JO 12U ‘Q[BS-10§-9[QB[IBAE SIILINDIS UO SISSO[ PazZIfeasun Jau ul aguey)d
uon[Iw /°0$ JO 1Jauaq Xe] JO 12U ‘Duodul dAIsusyaIdwod 19y10
9€0°79 — 9€0°79 — — — _— — e 100T ‘1€ YOJBIN POPUS IedA Jy} I0J owodul 12N
wodul dAIsusyaIdwo)
LOSPER §  (SI6TE)S  8SE'08ES  (LO6'LT)S  (6hLL8)S (£69°OTI)$ €S6BILE  09L§  ~ " " "« -« - i roroooororoerrormeeecieesseesies 0002 ‘I€ YaIeN — ouejeq
110, (sso1) /owedu]  s3uluasy ue|J d0sd £q }2018 Jende) R0 (Din@ 240yg 1da0x] ‘spubsnoyy uj)
asudyaadwo)y  paure)ay uonugodray PIRH Y201§ Ainsea1], -ul-pled  uowwo))
»YO 4q pIPH Y015 uownuo’y JsuonIppy
parBINWNIdY D pajedojjeun
pautsauf)

1007 ‘I€ YDIRIA PIPUF JBIX PUE [O0T ‘IE 12203 PIPUF SYIUOIN AWIN ‘TOOZ ‘I€ 19QUII(Q PIpUY 18IX

ALINOA SAAATOHAIOLS NI SHINVHD 40 SINAWALV.LS AALVAITOSNOD
‘dHOD INVEH ALINNININOD ADNAANAdIANI

79



INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months  Twelve Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 1 2002 2001 2001 2001

(unaudited)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
NEt INCOMIE . . . L oottt e e e e e $ 122402 $ 69,638 $ 86,065 $ 62,036
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for 10am 0SS .. ..o vt e 8,000 7,875 8,475 1,392
Net gain on sale of loans and securities ........... .o i (557) (2,850) (3,145) (3,398)
Originations of loans available-for-sale .. ....... ... ... . ... . . i, (1,306,929) (445,991) (601,226) (253,031)
Proceeds on sales of loans available-for-sale............... ... ... ... ... ........ 1,211,761 423,923 837,254 250,485
Amortization of deferred income and premiums .......... ..o (1,444) (4,252) (6,498) (6,081)
Amortization of goodwill. ... ... L e — — 3,594 14,344
Amortization of intangibles. ... ... ... .. 6,971 5,761 7,481 6,880
Amortization of unearned compensation of ESOP and Recognition Plan............. 17,011 11,280 14,306 10,106
Depreciation and amortization . .............. ... i 11,458 9,029 12,124 12,040
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision .. ........ . .. i (24,443) 27,753 26,790 (1,040)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable .............. ... . ... .. ...... 906 (317) 156 (3,610)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-securities transactions .................. (1,943) 2,027 (78) (1,753)
Decrease in other accounts receivable .. ... ... . ... e 7,394 862 18,960 35,742
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities ...................... (27,.472) 78,132 88,207 29,586
Other, Nt .. e (19,266) 2,683 2,478 (984)
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ........... ... i 3,849 185,553 494,943 152,714
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Loan originations and purchases .. ...t (1,402,892) (1,113,081) (1,379,169) (1,044,227)
Principal payments on loans .. ... ... e 1,429,732 674,143 874,410 595,361
Proceeds from sale of loans from portfolio ........ ... ... ... .. . i i ... 257,559 — — 298,172
Advances on mortgage warehouse lines of credit. ...... ... ... ... (7,016,355) (3,883,054) (4,498,286) (1,821,622)
Repayments on mortgage warehouse lines of credit................. .. ......... ... 6,770,463 3,726,532 4,265,334 1,663,090
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale . ............................... 105,493 362,266 386,707 73,780
Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-sale .. ......................... 37,717 3,025 5,050 9,832
Principal collected on securities available-for-sale . ................. ... ... ... ..... 940,633 269,720 302,327 118,975
Purchases of securities available-for-sale. . ... ... ... .. .. .. . i (1,325,231) (723,299) (790,838) (80,639)
Purchase of Bank Owned Life Insurance ......... ... ... .. .. ... (50,000) — — (100,000)
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock . ....... ... ... ... oo, (16,143) (3,112) (3,112) —
Proceeds from sale of other real estate ........ ... ..o i 166 200 201 535
Net additions to premises, furniture and equipment .................. .. ... ... (15,564) (5,590) (6,900) (8,065)
Net cash used in investing activities ... .............. .ttt (284,422) (692,250) (843,776) (294,808)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase in demand and savings deposits . . ........ ...t 409,670 551,357 643,459 78,924
Net (decrease) increase in time deposits .. .....v'ertte e e (264,385) (422,639) (329,362) 175,101
Net increase in BOITOWINES . . . .. ..ottt e e e e e 248,762 373,495 101,213 146,555
Net decrease in escrow and other deposits .. ...... ... i i (3,787) (33,791) (20,396) (1,364)
Decrease in cumulative trust preferred securities. . ...... ... .. i i (11,067) —_— —_ (433)
Proceeds on exercise of stock options . ... ... i 11,500 1,078 1,078 197
Repurchase of common stock. ... ... ... .. e (92,147) (18,352) (36,976) (113,913)
Dividends paid ................. ... ... e e (26,549) (14,580) (18,950) (17,378)
Net cash provided by financing activities .. ........ ...t 271,997 436,568 340,066 267,689
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ............................ (8,576) (70,129) (8,767) 125,595
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .................. ... ... ... ..., 207,633 271,762 216,400 152,167
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . ...... ... . .. ... ... $ 199,057 $ 207,633 $ 207,633 $ 277,762
Income taxes paid .. ... ... o e $ 99,181 $ 25,738 $ 26,255 S 34,675
Interest paid .. ... e $ 175,057 $ 168,832 $ 236,356 $ 246,227
Income tax benefit realized from exercise of stock options......................... $ 4,652 $ 277 $ 283 $ 85

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2002, December 31, 2001 and March 31, 2001

1. Organization/Form of Ownership

Independence Community Bank was originally founded as a New York-chartered savings bank in 1850.
In April 1992, the Bank reorganized into the mutual holding company form of organization pursuant to which
the Bank became a wholly owned stock savings bank subsidiary of a newly formed mutual holding company
(the “Mutual Holding Company”).

On April 18, 1997, the Board of Directors of the Bank and the Board of Trustees of the Mutual Holding
Company adopted a Plan of Conversion to convert the Mutual Holding Company to the stock form of
organization and simultaneously merge it with and into the Bank and all of the outstanding shares of Bank
common stock held by the Mutual Holding Company would be cancelled (the “Conversion”).

As part of the conversion and reorganization, Independence Community Bank Corp. (the “Company”™)
was incorporated under Delaware law in June 1997. The Company is regulated by the Office of Thrift
Supervision (“OTS”) as a registered savings and loan holding company. The Company completed its initial
public offering on March 13, 1998, issuing 70,410,880 shares of common stock resulting in proceeds of
$685.7 million, net of $18.4 million of expenses. The Company used $343.0 million, or approximately 50% of
the net proceeds, to purchase all of the outstanding stock of the Bank. The Company also loaned $98.9 million
to the Company’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”) which used such funds to purchase
5,632,870 shares of the Company’s common stock in the open market subsequent to completion of the initial
public offering.

As part of the Plan of Conversion, the Company formed the Independence Community Foundation (the
“Foundation”) and concurrently with the completion of the initial public offering donated 5,632,870 shares of
common stock of the Company valued 4t the time of its contribution at $56.3 million. The Foundation was
established in order to further the Company’s and the Bank’s commitment to the communities they serve.

Additionally, the Bank established, in accordance with the requirements of the New York State Banking
Department (the “Department”), a liquidation account for the benefit of depositors of the Bank as of
March 31, 1996 and September 30, 1997 in the amount of $319.7 million, which was equal to the Bank’s total
equity as of the date of the latest consolidated statement of financial condition (August 31, 1997) appearing in
the final prospectus used in connection with the Conversion. The liquidation account is reduced as, and to the
extent that, eligible and supplemental eligible account holders have reduced their qualifying deposits as of
each March 31st. Subsequent increases in deposits do not restore an eligible account holder’s interest in the
liquidation account. In the event of a complete liquidation of the Bank, each eligible account holder or a
supplemental eligible account holder’s will be entitled to receive a distribution from the liquidation account in
an amount proportionate to the adjusted qualifying balances for accounts then held.

In addition to the restriction described above, the Company may not declare or pay cash dividends on or
repurchase any of its shares of common stock if the effect thereof would cause stockholders’ equity to be
reduced below applicable regulatory capital maintenance requirements or if such declaration and payment
would otherwise violate regulatory requirements.

The Bank provides financial services primarily to individuals and small to medium-sized businesses
within the New York City metropolitan area. The Bank is subject to regulation by the FDIC and the
Department.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a description of the significant accounting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries.
These policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles.
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INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include the accounts of the Company and
its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ financial statements to conform to
current year’s presentation. The Company uses the equity method of accounting for investments in less than
majority-owned entities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America requires that management make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Securities Available-for-Sale

Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses on securities available-
for-sale are included in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) within stockholders’ equity, net of tax. Gains or
losses on the sale of such securities are recognized using the specific identification method and are recorded in
gain on sales of loans and securities on the Statement of Operations.

Loans and Loans Available-for-Sale

Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances, net of deferred loan fees. Loans available-for-sale are
stated at the aggregate of lower of cost or fair value.

Interest income on loans is recognized on an accrual basis. Loan origination and commitment fees and
certain direct costs incurred in connection with loan originations are deferred and amortized to interest
income, using a method which approximates the interest method, over the life of the related loans as an
adjustment to yield.

The Company generally places loans on non-accrual status when principal or interest payments become
90 days past due, except those loans reported as 90 days past maturity within the overall total of non-
performing loans. However, student, FHA or VA loans continue to accrue interest because their interest
payments are guaranteed by various government programs and agencies. Loans may be placed on non-accrual
status earlier if management believes that collection of interest or principal is doubtful or when such loans
have such well defined weaknesses that collection in full of principal or interest may not be probable. When a
loan is placed on non-accrual status, accrual of interest income is discontinued and uncollected interest is
reversed against current interest income. Interest income on non-accrual loans is recorded only when received
in cash. A loan is returned to accrual status when the principal and interest are no longer past due and the
borrower’s ability to make periodic principal and interest payments is reasonably assured.

The Company considers a loan impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is probable
that it will be unable to collect all amounts due for both principal and interest, according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. The Company’s evaluation of impaired loans includes a review of non-accrual
commercial business, commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans as well as a review of other
performing loans that may meet the definition of loan impairment. The Company identifies and measures
impaired loans in conjunction with its assessment of the allowance for loan losses. An allowance for impaired
loans is a component of the allowance for loan losses when it is probable all amounts due will not be collected
pursuant to the contractual terms of the loan and the recorded investment in the loan exceeds its fair value.
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Fair value is measured using either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, the observable market price of the loan, or the fair value of the underlying collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent. All loans subject to evaluation and considered impaired are included in non-
performing assets. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized on a cash basis.

Commercial real estate loans and commercial business loans are generally charged-off to the extent
principal and interest duc exceed the net realizable value of the collateral, with the charge-off occurring when
the loss is reasonably quantifiable. Loans secured by residential real estate are generally charged-off to the
extent principal and interest due exceed the current appraised value of the collateral.

Consumer loans are subject to charge-off at a specified delinquency date. Closed end consumer loans,
which include installment and automobile loans, are generally charged-off in full when the loan becomes
120 days past due. Open-end, unsecured consumer loans are generally charged-off in full when the loan
becomes 180 days past due. Home equity loans and lines of credit are written down to the appraised value of
the underlying property when the loan becomes 120 days and 180 days past due, respectively.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The determination of the level of the allowance for loan losses and the periodic provisions to the
allowance charged to income is the responsibility of management. The formalized process for assessing the
level of the allowance for loan losses is performed on a quarterly basis. Individual loans are specifically
identified by loan officers as meeting the criteria of criticized or classified loans. Such criteria include, but are
not limited to, non-accrual loans, past maturity loans, impaired loans, chronic delinquencies and loans
requiring heightened management oversight. Each loan is assigned to a risk level of special mention,
substandard, doubtfu! and loss. Loans that do not meet the criteria of criticized or classified are categorized as
pass loans, Each risk level, including pass loans, have an associated reserve factor that increases as the risk
level category increases. The reserve factor for pass loans differs based upon the loan and collateral type. The
reserve factor is applied to the aggregate balance of loans designated to each risk level to compute the reserve
requirement. This method of analysis is performed on the entire loan portfolio. Other considerations used to
support the balance of the allowance for loan losses and its components include regulatory examinations and
national and local economic data associated with the real estate market in the Company’s market area. The
Company has identified the evaluation of the allowance for loan losses as a critical accounting estimate.

Loan Servicing Assets and Retained Recourse

The cost of mortgage loans sold, with servicing rights and recourse retained, is allocated between the
loans, the servicing rights and the retained recourse based on their estimated fair values at the time of loan
sale. Servicing assets are carried at the lower of cost or fair value and are amortized in proportion to, and over
the period of, net servicing income. The estimated fair value of loan servicing assets is determined by
calculating the present value of estimated future net servicing cash flows, using assumptions of prepayments,
defaults, servicing costs and discount rates that the Company believes market participants would use for
similar assets. Capitalized loan servicing assets are stratified based on predominant risk characteristics of
underlying loans for the purpose of evaluating impairment. A valuation allowance is then established in the
event the recorded value of an individual stratum exceeds fair value.

Under the terms of the sales agreements with Fannie Mae, the Company retains a portion of the
associated credit risk. The Company has a 100% first loss position on each multi-family residential loan sold to
Fannie Mae under such program until the earlier to occur of (i) the aggregate losses on the multi-family
residential loans sold to Fannie Mae reaching the maximum loss exposure for the portfolio or (ii) until all of
the loans sold to Fannie Mae under this program are fully paid off. The maximum loss exposure is available to
satisfy any losses on loans sold in the program subject to the foregoing limitations. The Company has
established a liability of $4.5 million which represents the amount that the Company would have to pay a third
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party to assume the liability of the retained recourse. The valuation calculates the present value of the
estimated losses that the portfolio is projected to incur based upon a standard Department of Housing and
Urban Development default curve.

Premises, Furniture and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings and improvements, leasehold improvements, furniture, automobiles and
equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as
follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
Automobiles

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives of the respective leases or
the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”), which resulted in discontinuing the amortization
of goodwill. Under the Statement, goodwill is instead carried at its book value as of April 1, 2001 and any
future impairment of goodwill will generally be recognized as non-interest expense in the period of
impairment. However, under the terms of the Statement, identifiable intangibles (such as core deposit
premiums) with identifiable lives continue to be amortized. Core deposit intangibles are amortized on a
straight-line basis over seven years.

The Company’s goodwill was $185.2 million at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001. The
Company did not recognize an impairment loss as a result of its annual impairment test effective October 1,
2002. The Company tests the value of its goodwill at least annually. The Company has identified the goodwill
impairment test as a critical accounting estimate.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Bank has purchased Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI’) policies to fund certain future employee
benefit costs. The BOLI is recorded at its cash surrender value and changes in the cash surrender value of the
insurance are recorded in other non-interest income.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into derivative transactions to protect against the risk of adverse interest rate
movements on the value of certain borrowings and on future cash flows.

All derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value in the consolidated Statement of Financial
Condition. Derivative transactions qualifying as hedges are subject to special accounting treatment, depending
on the relationship between the derivative instrument and the hedged item. Hedges of the changes in the fair
value of a recognized asset, liability, or firm commitment are classified as fair value hedges. Hedges of the
exposure to variable cash flows of forecasted transactions are classified as cash flow hedges. All of the
Company’s derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges of anticipated interest payments on variable-
rate borrowings.
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Cash flow hedges are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument on the
consolidated Statement of Financial Condition as either a freestanding asset or liability, with a corresponding
offset recorded in OCI within stockholders’ equity, net of tax. Amounts are reclassified from OCI to the
Statement of Operations in the period or periods the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. No
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the hedged item.

Under the cash flow hedge method, derivative gains and losses not effective in hedging the expected cash
flows of the hedged item are recognized immediately in the Statement of Operations. At the hedge’s inception
and at least quarterly thereafter, a formal assessment is performed to determine whether changes in the cash
flows of the derivative instruments have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the
hedged items and whether they are expected to be highly effective in the future. If it is determined a derivative
instrument has not been or will not continue to be highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively.

In the event of early termination of a derivative financial instrument contract, any resulting gain or loss is
deferred as an adjustment of the carrying value of the designated assets or labilities, with a corresponding
offset to OCI, and such amounts are recognized in earnings over the remaining life of the designated assets or
liabilities or the derivative financial instrument contract, whichever period is shorter.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax basis of assets
and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws expected to be in effect when the
differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets where realization
is not considered “more likely than not.” The Company has identified the evaluation of deferred tax assets as a
critical accounting estimate.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed using the same method as basic EPS, but reflects
the potential dilution of common stock equivalents. Shares of common stock held by the ESOP that have not
been allocated to participants’ accounts or are not committed to be released for allocation and un-vested 1998
Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement (the “Recognition Plan”) shares are not considered to
be outstanding for the calculation of basic EPS. However, a portion of such shares is considered in the
calculation of diluted EPS as common stock equivalents of basic EPS.

Employee Benefits

Compensation expense related to the ESOP is recognized in an amount equal to the shares committed to
be released by the ESOP multiplied by the average fair value of the common stock during the period in which
they were released. The difference between the average fair value and the weighted average per share cost of
shares committed to be released by the ESOP is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in-capital.

Compensation expense related to the Recognition Plan is recognized over the vesting period at the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant for share awards that are not subject to performance
criteria. The expense related to performance share awards is recognized over the vesting period based at the
fair market value on the measurement date.

For stock options, the Company uses the intrinsic value based methodology which measures compensa-
tion cost for such stock options as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company’s stock at the
date of the grant over the amount an employee or director must pay to acquire the stock. To date, no
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compensation expense has been recorded at the time of grant for stock options, since, for all granted options,

the market price on date of grant equaled the amount employees or directors must pay to acquire stock.
However, compensation expense has been recognized for the accelerated vesting of options due to the
retirement of senior officers. Senior officers and non-employee directors of the Company who elect to retire,
require the approval of the Board of Directors or the Committee administering the Option Plan to accelerate
the vesting of options.

Beginning in 2003, the Company will recognize stock-based compensation expense, on options granted in
2003 and in subsequent years, in accordance with the fair value-based method of accounting described in
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended.”

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income and all other changes in equity during a period, except those
resulting from investments by owners and distribution to owners. Other comprehensive income includes
revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are included in
comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. Comprehensive income and accumulated other
comprehensive income are reported net of related income taxes. Accumulated other comprehensive income
consists of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of related income taxes and the
change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements, net of related income taxes, designated as cash flow
hedges.

Segment Reporting

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS
No. 1317), requires disclosures for each segment including quarterly disclosure requirements and a partition-
ing of geographic disclosures, including geographic information by country. As a community-oriented financial
institution, substantially all of the Company’s operations (which comprise substantially all of the consolidated
group’s activities) involve the delivery of loan and deposit products to customers primarily located in its
market area. The Bank’s three key business divisions (the Commercial Real Estate Division, the Consumer
Business Banking Division and the Business Banking Division) are codependent upon each other for both their
source of funds as well as the utilization of such funds. Currently, business divisions are judged and analyzed
using traditional criteria including loan origination levels, deposit origination levels, credit quality, adherence
to expense budgets and other similar criteria, which data exists in a form deemed accurate and reliable by
management. The President and Chief Executive Officer, the Company’s chief decision maker, has and
continues to use these traditional criteria to make decisions regarding an individual division’s operations as
well as the Company’s operations as a whole.

Treasury Stock

Repurchases of common stock are recorded as treasury stock at cost.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company defines cash and cash
equivalents as highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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3. Securities Available-for-Sale

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale are as follows:
Deceniber 31, 2002

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
(In Thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Investment securities:
Debt securities:
U.S. Government and agencies......... $ 14578 § 39 $ (3 $ 14,634
Corporate. . .......coveviiinei 154,680 1,219 (607) 155,292
Municipal ........ ... ... oL 5,413 322 — 5,735
Total debt securities. .. ................. 174,671 1,600 (610) 175,661
Equity securities:
Preferred ............. ... ... ... .. 47435 649 — 48,084
Common ...............ccvvviinn... 386 777 — 1,163
Total equity securities .................. 47,821 1,426 —_ 49,247
Total investment securities ................ 222,492 3,026 (610) 224,908
Mortgage-related securities:
Fannie Mae pass through certificates. ... .. 274,911 3,605 — 278,516
GNMA pass through certificates ......... 14,807 1,124 — 15,931
FHLMC pass through certificates ........ 8,422 483 (6) 8,899
Collateralized mortgage obligation bonds .. 731,126 5,069 (799) 735,396
Total mortgage-related securities ........... 1,029,266 10,281 (805) 1,038,742
Total securities available-for-sale ........... $1,251,758  $13,307 $(1,415) $1,263,650
December 31, 2001
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
{In Thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Investment securities:
Debt securities:
U.S. Government and agencies......... $ 27,617 § 13 $ (10) $ 27,620
Municipal ..... ... .. ... 4,904 113 — 5,017
Total debt securities. . .................. 32,521 126 (10) 32,637
Equity securities:
Preferred . ......... ... ... .. ... ... 91,365 16 (59) 91,322
Common ...........ccoviiiiian... 953 891 — 1,844
Total equity securities .................. 92,318 907 (59) 93,166
Total investment securities ................ 124,839 1,033 (69) 125,803
Mortgage-related securities:
Fannie Mae pass through certificates. ... .. 19,417 116 (14) 19,519
GNMA pass through certificates ......... 21,170 1,217 — 22,387
FHLMC pass through certificates ........ 10,694 95 (13) 10,776
Collateralized mortgage obligation bonds .. 838,142 12,087 (720) 849,509
Total mortgage-related securities ........... 889,423 13,515 (747) 902,191
Total securities available-for-sale ........... $1,014,262  $14,548 $(816)  $1,027,994
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The strategy for the securities portfolio is to maintain a short duration, minimizing exposure to sustained
increases in interest rates. This is achieved through investments in securities with predictable cash flows and
short average lives, and the purchase of certain adjustable-rate instruments.

The amortizing securities are almost exclusively mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”). These instru-
ments provide a relatively stable source of cash flows, although they may be impacted by changes in interest
rates. Such MBS securities are either guaranteed by FHLMC, GNMA or Fannie Mae, or represent
collateralized mortgage-backed obligations (“CMOs”) backed by government agency securities or private
issuances securities. These CMOs, by virtue of the underlying collateral or structure, are principally AAA
rated and are current pay sequentials or planned amortization class structures.

Equity securities were comprised principally of common and preferred stock of certain publicly traded
companies. Other securities maintained in the portfolio consist of corporate bonds and U.S. Government and
agencies.

At December 31, 2002, securities with a fair value of $612.6 million were pledged to secure securities sold
under agreements to repurchase, other borrowings and for other purposes required by law.

Sales of available-for-sale securities are summarized as follows:
Year Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Proceeds fromsales .......................... $105,493 $362,266 $73,780
Gross gains . ......ouiiiin i 656 2,852 3,100
Gross 108S€s. . . oot (243) (34) (1,436)

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity are as follows:

December 31, 2002
Amortized Estimated

{In Thousands) ‘ Cost Fair Value
One Year OT 1888 . . .\ttt et $ 8543 § 8,543
One year through five years ........... ... oo i, 51,482 51,998
Five years through ten years. ..., 8,646 9,158
L0 g 1<) T =T 106,000 105,962

$174,671  §175,661

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of mortgage-related securities by contractual maturity are as
follows:
December 31, 2002

Amortized Estimated
{In Thousands) Cost Fair Value
One Year OF 1858 ..\t e $ 86 $ 84
One year through five years ........ ... ... ... i, 11,217 11,275
Five years through ten years. ........... ot 133,285 133,730
OVET eI YEATS . o .ottt ettt e e e 884,678 893,653

$1,029,266  $1,038,742
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4. Loans Available-for-Sale and Loan Servicing Assets

Loans available-for-sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value and are summarized as
follows:

December 31, December 31,

{In Thousands) 2002 2001
Loans available-for-sale:
Single-family residential ................... ... ... ... ... ... $ 7,576 $3,696
Multi-family residential .. ........ .. ... . 106,803 =
Total loans available-for-sale. ... ...... .. ..o, $114,379 $3,696

At December 31, 2002 and 2001 and March 31, 2001, the Company was servicing loans on behalf of
others which are not included in the consolidated financial statements of $2.35 billion, $1.19 billion and
$658.7 million, respectively. The right to service loans for others is generally obtained by the sale of loans with
servicing retained.

A summary of changes in loan servicing assets, which is included in other assets, is summarized as
follows:

Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Balance at beginning of period ...................... $ 4,273 $1,961 § —
Capitalized servicing asset. ....................... 5,544 3,047 2,003
Amortization of servicing asset.................... 3,372) (735) (42)
Balance atend of period .. ......................... $ 6,445 $4,273 $1,961

A summary of mortgage-banking activity income is as follows for the periods indicated:
Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, March 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Origination fees .............ccoviiiivieiaii... $ 8,121 $3,146 $1,311
Servicing fees . ... . e 1,465 773 651
Gainonsales ........ . ... . .. .. e 11,483 5,679 3,622
Amortization of loan servicing asset ................. (3,372) (735) (43)
Provision for retained credit exposure ................ (3,938) — —
Total mortgage-banking activity income . ............. $13,759 $8,863 $5,541
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5. Loans Receivable, Net

Loans are summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,

{In Thousands) 2002 2001
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Single-family residential ....... ... ... .. oL $ 348,602 § 492,640
Cooperative apartment . ... ... ...t e 207,677 356,500
Multi-family residential'™ .. ... ... ... ... .. 2,436,666 2,731,513
Commercial real estate'”) ......... .. ... ... . ... 1,312,760 1,019,379
Total principal balance — mortgage loans .. ................... ... 4,305,705 4,600,032
Lessnet deferred fees . ........ ... i 7,665 11,198
Total mortgage loans onreal estate .......... .. ... coouvii ... 4,298,040 4,588,834
Commercial business loans, net of deferred fees™ ................ 598,267 665,829
Other loans:
Mortgage warehouse lines of credit ........................... 692,434 446,542
Home equity loans and lines of credit . ........................ 201,952 141,905
Consumer and other loans. ... ... . ... ... ... . .. .. 26,971 32,002
Total principal balance — otherloans ........................... 921,357 620,449
Less unearned discounts and deferred fees ............... ... .... 291 677
Total other loans. . ... e e 921,066 619,772
Total loans receivable ........ ... .. ... . . . i 5,817,373 5,874,435
Less allowance for loan losses. .. ........ ... .. i, 80,547 78,239
Loans receivable, met .. ...t $5,736,826  $5,796,196

(1) Reflects redesignation of loans at September 30, 2002 reflecting application of new criteria.

The loan portfolio is concentrated primarily in loans secured by real estate located in the New York
metropolitan area. The real estate loan portfolio is diversified in terms of risk and repayment sources. The
underlying collateral consists of multi-family residential apartment buildings, single-family residential proper-
ties and owner occupied/non-owner occupied commercial properties. The risks inherent in these portfolios are
dependent not only upon regional and general economic stability, which affects property values, but also the
financial well being and creditworthiness of the borrowers.

To minimize the risk inherent in the real estate portfolio, the Company utilizes standard underwriting
procedures and diversifies the type and geographic locations of loan collateral. Multi-family residential
mortgage loans generally range in size from $0.5 million to $4.0 million and include loans on various types and
geographically diverse apartment complexes located in the New York City metropolitan area. Multi-family
residential mortgages are dependent largely on sufficient rental income to cover operating expenses and may
be affected by government regulation, such as rent control regulations, which could impact the future cash
flows of the property. Most muiti-family loans do not fully amortize; therefore, the principal balance
outstanding is not significantly reduced prior to contractual maturity. The residential mortgage portfolio is
comprised primarily of first mortgage loans on owner occupied one-to-four family residences located in the
Company’s primary market area. The commercial real estate portfolio contains loans secured by commercial
and industrial properties, professional office buildings and small shopping centers. Commercial business loans
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consist primarily of loans to small- and medium-size businesses and are generally secured by real estate,
receivables, inventory, equipment and machinery and are further enhanced by the personal guarantees of the
principals of the borrower. The commercial real estate and commercial business loan portfolios do not contain
any shared national credit loans. Mortgage warehouse lines of credit are revolving lines of credit to small-and
medium-sized mortgage-banking companies. The lines are drawn to fund the origination of mortgages,
primarily one-to-four family loans. Consumer loans consist primarily of home equity loans and lines of credit
which are secured by the underlying equity in the borrower’s primary or secondary residence.

The Company does not have any significant loan exposure to industry segments that have been adversely
affected by the events of September 11, 2001, such as travel, hospitality and tourism. Similarly, there has been
a minimal impact on the multi-family and single-family residential loan portfolios stemming from these
events.

Real estate underwriting standards include various limits on the loan-to-value ratios based on the type of
property, and the Company considers among other things, the creditworthiness of the borrower, the location of
the real estate, the condition and value of the security property, the quality of the organization managing the
property and the viability of the project including occupancy rates, tenants and lease terms. Additionally, the
underwriting standards require appraisals and periodic inspections of the properties as well as ongoing
monitoring of operating results.

As part of the Company’s continuing enhancement of its credit administration process, the Company
redefined its criteria for classifying loans as either commercial real estate loans or as commercial business
loans. As a result of the application of the new criteria and the Company’s conversion to a new commercial
loan servicing system completed during the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company reviewed all of its
commercial loan relationships and redesignated as of September 30, 2002 approximately $238.0 million of
commercial business loans as commercial real estate or multi-family residential loans. The Company has not
revised any other current or prior period information related to this redesignation since it did not affect the
Company’s net loan portfolio, total assets, results of operations or earnings per share.

The following tables show the activity in certain of the Company’s loan portfolios during the period
indicated.

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Commercial Multi-family Commercial

(In Thousands) Real Estate Residential Business
Balance at December 31,2001 ................... $1,019,379 $ 2,731,513 $ 665,829
Loans redesignated'” ... ... ... .. ... ... 178,455 59,594 (238,049)
Originations . ........ciu i i 325,716 505,677 406,197
Originations forsale ............................ — 1,165,779 —
Loanssold ......... ... ... i i — (1,326,905) —
Loan repayments and other . ..................... (210,790) (592,189) (230,458)
Balance at December 31,2002 ................... $1,312,760  $ 2,543,469” $ 603,519

(1) Reflects redesignation of loans at September 30, 2002 reflecting application of new criteria.
(2) Includes $106.8 million of multi-family residential loans available-for-sale.
(3) Excludes deferred fees of $5.3 million.

During 2002, the Company sold from portfolio, at par, $257.6 million of fully performing multi-family
residential loans in exchange for Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities representing a 100% interest in these
loans. Such loans were sold at full recourse with the Company retaining servicing. This transaction supported
the Company’s efforts to continue to build and strengthen its relationship with Fannie Mae, had no impact on
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2002 earnings and had a positive impact on the Company’s risk-based capital ratios since the risk weighting
factor on the mortgage-backed securities is lower than on the underlying loans.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001 and March 31, 2001, included in mortgage loans on real estate were
$18.4 million, $31.4 million and $27.0 million, respectively, of non-performing loans. If interest on the non-
accrual mortgage léans had been accrued, such income would have approximated $0.6 million, $0.7 million
and $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year
ended March 31, 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001 and March 31, 2001, included in commercial business and other loans
were $23.2 million, $14.7 million and $8.7 million, respectively, of non-performing loans. If interest on the
non-accrual commercial business and other loans had been accrued, such income would have approximated
$0.7 million, $0.4 million and $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended
December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001, respectively.

The Company considers a loan impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is probable
that it will be unable to collect all amounts due for both principal and interest, according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. The Company’s evaluation of impaired loans includes a review of non-accrual
commercial business, commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans as well as a review of other
performing loans that may meet the definition of loan impairment. As permitted, all homogenous smaller
balance consumer and residential mortgage loans are excluded from individual review for impairment.
Impaired loans totaled $39.9 million, $27.0 million and $10.8 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and
March 31, 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2002, $39.9 million of impaired loans had an associated
allowance of $7.1 million. Impaired loans averaged approximately $33.4 million and $18.9 million during the
year ended December 31, 2002 and the nine months ended December 31, 2001, respectively. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognized on a cash basis. Interest income recorded on impaired loans was $1.5 million,
$0.8 million and $0.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2002, the nine months ended December 31,
2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001, respectively.

6. Allowance for Loan Losses

A summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended
) December 31, December 31, March 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Allowance at beginning of period.................... $78,239 $71,716 $70,286
Provision charged to operations ..................... 8,000 7,875 1,392
Net (charge-offs) recoveries........................ (5,692) (1,352) 38
Allowance atend of period .. ....................... $80,547 $78,239 $71,716

The Company’s loan portfolio is primarily comprised of secured loans made to individuals and businesses
located in the New York City metropolitan area.
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7. Premises, Furniture and Equipment

A summary of premises, furniture and equipment is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

{In Thousands) . 2002 2001
Land. ... $ 6,319 $ 7,726
Buildings and improvements . . .......... . o 71,272 63,580
Leasehold improvements . ... ...oouviiie e iiaee e 14,715 13,938
Furniture and equipment . ....... ... . i 78,064 54,702

_ 170,370 139,946
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .................. 84,975 58,657
Total premises, furniture and equipment ... ...................... $ 85,395 $ 81,289

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $11.5 million, $9.0 million and $12.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001,
respectively.

8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, which resulted in discontinuing the
amortization of goodwill. Under the Statement, goodwill is instead carried at its book value as of April 1, 2001
and any future impairment of goodwill will generally be recognized as non-interest expense in the period of
impairment. However, under the terms of the Statement, identifiable intangibles (such as core deposit
premiums) with identifiable lives will continue to be amortized.

The Company’s goodwill was $185.2 million at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001. The
Company did not recognize an impairment loss as a result of its most recent annual impairment test effective
October 1, 2002. In accordance with the Statement, the Company tests the value of its goodwill at least
annually.

The following table sets forth the Company’s identifiable intangible assets at the periods indicated:

At December 31, 2002 At December 31, 2001
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated  Carrying
{Dollars in Thousands) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortized intangible
assets:
Deposit intangibles . . . .. $47,559 $45,513 $2,046  $47,559 $38,778 $8,781
Other intangibles. .. .... 800 800 — 800 600 200
Total................... $48,359 $46,313 $2,046  $48,359 $39,378 $8,981

The following sets forth the estimated amortization expense for the years ended December 31:

2003 L $1,855
2004 . $ 191
2005 L $ —

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $7.0 million, $5.8 million and $6.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the twelve months ended March 31,
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2001, respectively. In addition, the twelve month period ended March 31, 2001 included $14.3 million related
to the amortization of goodwill, reflecting the amortization of goodwill occurring pr10r to the adoption of the
SFAS No. 142 by the Company.

The following table discloses the effect on net income and basic and diluted earnings per share of
excluding amortization expense related to goodwill which was recognized in the year ended March 31, 2001 as
if such goodwill had not been recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 142.

For the
Nine Months

Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,

{In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2002 2001 2001

$122,402 $69,638 $62,036
— — 14,344

$122,402 $69,638 $76,380

For the Year For the

Ended

Reported net income
Add back goodwill amortization

Adjusted net income

Basic earnings per share:
As reported 2.37 $ 1.33 1.11
Goodwill amortization — — 0.26
2.37 $ 1.33 $ 1.37

Adjusted basic earnings per share ................... $

Diluted earnings per share:
Asreported .. ... $ 224 $ 1.27 $ 110
Goodwill amortization . ................ ... .. ..... — : — 0.26

Adjusted diluted earnings per share.................. $ 224 $ 1.27 $ 1.36

9. Other Assets

A summary of other assets is as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

{In Thousands) 2002 2001

FHLB StOCK ..ottt it e e i $101,578 $ 85,435
Net deferred tax asset ... i 69,161 43,625
Loan servicing assets .. .......c.coiuiiirir i 6,445 4,273
Equity investment in mortgage brokerage firm .................... 20,431 6,959
Prepaid expenses. . ... 14,854 - 3,376
Otherreal estate. ........ ... i e 7 130
Accounts TeCEIVable . . ... .t 4,183 8,497
Other ... 15,583 11,313
Total other assets .. ... ... ... i $232,242 $163,608

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) of New York, and owns FHLB stock
with a carrying value of $101.6 million and $85.4 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As a
member, the Bank is able to borrow on a secured basis up to twenty times the amount of its capital stock
investment at either fixed or variable interest rates for terms ranging from overnight to fifteen years (see
Note 11). The borrowings are limited to 30% of total assets except for borrowings to fund deposit outflows.
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In furtherance of its business strategy regarding commercial real estate and multi-family loan originations
and sales, the Company has a minority equity investment in Meridian Capital Group, LLC (“Meridian”).
Meridian is a New York-based mortgage brokerage firm primarily engaged in the origination of commercial
real estate and multi-family residential mortgage loans.

Prepaid expenses include $11.1 million of prepaid pension costs. At the end of the fourth quarter of 2002,

the Company made a cash contribution of approximately $10.0 million to restore the Company’s pension plan
to fully funded status. The contribution did not reduce 2002 earnings.

10. Deposits

The amounts due to depositors and the weighted average interest rates at December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2001 are as follows:

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Weighted Weighted

Deposit Average Deposit Average
{Dollars in Thousands) Liability Rate Liability Rate

Savings .. ... $1,574,531 0.75%  $1,451,988 1.58%
Money market ....... ... ... .. 192,647 0.78 180,866 1.62
AMA 495,849 1.32 452,284 3.07
Interest-bearing demand ... ................. 493,997 0.79 406,540 1.26
Non-interest-bearing demand . ............... 593,784 = 449,460 -
Total core deposits. . ..................... 3,350,808 0.86 2,941,138 1.53
Certificates of deposit ...................... 1,589,252 247 1,853,637 3.49
Total deposits ...................... ST $4,940,060 1.27 $4,794,775 2.29

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows:
December 31, December 31,

{In Thousands) 2002 2001

OME YEAT . oottt $1,104,453  $1,642,330
TWO YEATS « o ottt e et e e 280,376 87,975
Three years .. ... 42,169 54,945
FOUr YearS . . oo 38,912 19,285
Thereafter .. .. ..o 123,342 49,102

$1,589,252  $1,853,637

Certificates of deposit accounts in denominations of $100,000 or more totaled approximately $315.4 mil-
lion and $327.6 million at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively.
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11. Borrowings

A summary of borrowings is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

(In Thousands) 2002 2001

FHLB advances . . ... ..ot e e e $1,226,550  $1,003,700
Repurchase agreements - FHLB ......... ... ... ... . ... ... 705,000 655,000
FHLB overnight borrowings .......... ... — 24,000
Other .o — 88
Total bOrrOWINgS . . . oot e $1,931,550  $1,682,78%

Advances from the FHLB are made at fixed rates with remaining maturities between less than one year
and ten years, summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001
One year or eSS . ...t $ 425,250 $ 177,150
Over one year through five years....... ... .. it 426,300 501,550
Over five years through ten years . ... ... ... . . . L. 375,000 325,000

$1,226,550  § 1,003,700

(1) Although the contractual maturities of these borrowings are between five and ten years, the FHLB has the right to call these
advances beginning in the third year after the advance was made. Such advances callable by the FHLB total $200.0 million in 2004,
$125.0 million in 2006 and $50.0 million in 2007.

Advances from the FHLB are collateralized by all FHLB stock owned by the Bank in addition to a
blanket pledge of eligible assets in an amount required to be maintained so that the estimated fair value of
such eligible assets exceeds, at all times, 110% of the outstanding advances (see Note 9).

The average balance of FHLB advances was $1.22 billion with an average cost of 4.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the vear ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 was $1.28 billion. The average balance of FHLB advances during the nine months ended
December 31, 2001 was $783.6 million with an average cost of 5.9%. At December 31, 2002, the Company
had the ability to borrow from the FHLB an additional $1.0 billion on a secured basis, utilizing mortgage-
related loans and securities as collateral. -

The Company enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase. These agreements are
recorded as financing transactions, and the obligation to repurchase is reflected as a liability in the
consolidated statements of financial condition. The securities underlying the agreements are delivered to the
dealer with whom each transaction is executed. The dealers, who may sell, loan or otherwise dispose of such
securities to other parties in the normal course of their operations, agree to resell to the Company substantially
the same securities at the maturities of the agreements. The Company retains the right of substitution of
collateral throughout the terms of the agreements.
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Repurchase agreements with the FHLB are made at fixed rates with remaining maturities between less
than one year and ten years, summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,

(In Thousands) 2002 2001

One year or 1ess ... ..o ii i $ 65,000 $ —
Over one year through five years ................. ... . ... ... 100,000 65,000
Over five years through ten years ............................... 540,000 590,000

$705,000 $655,000

At December 31, 2002, all of the outstanding FHLB repurchase agreements were secured by collateral-
ized mortgage obligations or U.S. Government and agency securities. The average balance of FHLB
repurchase agreements during the year ended December 31, 2002 was $679.1 million with an average cost of
5.5%. The maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the year ended December 31, 2002 was
$705.0 million. The average balance of FHLB repurchase agreements during the nine months ended
December 31, 2001 was $696.0 million with an average cost of 5.2%. The maximum amount outstanding at
any month end during the nine months ended December 31, 2001 $955.0 million.

12. Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities

On June 30, 1997, $11.5 million of 9.5% Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities (the “Trust Preferred
Securities”) were issued by BNB Capital Trust (the “Trust”), a Delaware statutory business trust formed by
Broad National Bancorporation (“Broad”). The net proceeds from the issuance were invested in Broad in
exchange for its junior subordinated debentures. The sole asset of the Trust, the obligor on the Trust Preferred
Securities, was $11.9 million principal amount of 9.5% Junior Subordinated Debentures (the “Junior
Subordinated Debentures”) due June 30, 2027. Broad entered into several contractual arrangements (which
the Company assumed as part of the Broad acquisition) for the purpose of guaranteeing the Trust’s payment
of distributions on, payments on any redemptions of, and any liquidation distribution with respect to, the Trust
Preferred Securities. As a result of the Broad acquisition, all the assets, liabilities and obligations of Broad with
respect to such securities became assets, liabilities and obligations of the Company.

Cash distributions on both the Trust Preferred Securities and the Junior Subordinated Debentures were
payable quarterly in arrears on the last day of March, June, September and December of each year.

The Trust Preferred Securities were subject to mandatory redemption (i) in whole, but not in part, upon
repayment of the Junior Subordinated Debentures at stated maturity or, at the option of the Company, their
earlier redemption in whole upon the occurrence of certain changes in the tax treatment or capital treatment
of the Trust Preferred Securities, or a change in the law such that the Trust would be considered an
investment company and (ii) in whole or in part at any time on or after June 30, 2002 contemporaneously with
the optional redemption by the Company of the Junior Subordinated Debentures in whole or in part. The
Junior Subordinated Debentures were redeemable prior to maturity at the option of the Company (i) on or
after June 30, 2002, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, or (ii) in whole, but not in part, at any
time within 90 days following the occurrence and continuation of certain changes in the tax treatment or
capital treatment of the Trust Preferred Securities, or a change in law such that the Trust would be considered
an investment company.

As a result of favorable market conditions during fiscal 2001, the Company purchased $0.4 million of the
Trust Preferred Securities through an open market transaction. In accordance with the terms of the trust
indenture, the Trust redeemed all of its outstanding Trust Preferred Securities of $11.5 million, at $10.00 per
share, effective June 30, 2002. The redemption was effected due to the high interest rate paid on the Trust
Preferred Securities in relation to the current interest rate environment.
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13. Earnings Per Share

EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.
Diluted EPS is computed using the same method as basic EPS, but reflects the potential dilution of common
stock equivalents. Shares of common stock held by the ESOP that have not been allocated to participants’
accounts or are not committed to be released for allocation and un-vested Recognition Plan shares are not
considered to be cutstanding for the calculation of basic EPS. However, a portion of such shares is considered
in the calculation of diluted EPS as common stock equivalents of basic EPS.

The following table is a reconciliation of basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding
for the periods indicated.

For the Nine For the
For the Year Months Twelve For the Year
Ended Ended Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, March 31,
(in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2002 2001 2001 2001
Numerator:
Net iNCOME . ..o v vt $122,402 $69,638 $86,065 $62,036
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding - basic.................... 51,703 52,558 52,612 55,880
Weighted average number of common stock
equivalents (restricted stock and options) 2,854 2,120 1,853 465
Weighted average number of common shares
and common stock equivalents - diluted . . 54,557 54,678 54,465 56,345
Basic earning per share .................... $ 2.37 $1.33 $ 1.64 $ LIt
Diluted earnings per share.................. $ 224 $1.27 $ 1.58 $ 1.10

At December 31, 2002, there were 875,693 shares that could potentially dilute EPS in the future that
were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because to do so would have been antidilutive. For
additional disclosures regarding outstanding stock options and the Recognition Plan shares, see Note 15.

14. Benefit Plans

Pension Plan

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering substantially
all of its full-time employees and certain part-time employees who qualify. The Company makes annual
contributions to the Pension Plan equal to the amount necessary to satisfy the funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA).

The Company also has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “Supplemental Plan). The
Supplemental Plan is a nonqualified, unfunded plan of deferred compensation covering those senior officers of
the Company whose benefits under the Pension Plan would be limited by Internal Revenue Code Sections 415
and 401(a)(17).
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The following table sets forth the Pension Plan’s and the Supplemental Plan’s (collectively, the “Plan™)
aggregate change in benefit obligation:

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended

December 31, December 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001
Benefit obligation at beginning of year............. ... ... ...... $39,017 $37,281
SeIVICE COBE ..ottt et e 1,238 1,059
Interest cost. ... o 2,847 2,618
Actuarial loss (g2iN) ... ...t 5,600 (249)
Plan amendments . ... .. 18 —
Benefits paid . .. ... . (2,169) (1,692)
Benefit obligation atend of year................. ... . ... ... $46,551 $39,017

The following table sets forth the aggregate change in Plan assets:

(In Thousands)

December 31,
2002

December 31,

Fair value of Plan assets at beginning of year.....................

Actual return on Plan assets . ..
Employer contributions .......
Benefits paid ................

Fair value of Plan assets at endof year. ........... ... ... ......

Funded status ...............
Unrecognized net asset .......
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized actuarial loss . . ..

Prepaid (accrued) pension cost at December 31, 2002 and 2001. . ...

Net adjustment ..............
Prepaid (accrued) pension cost

2001

$40,541 $46,044
(5,044) (3,935)

10,242 124
(2,170) (1,692)

$43,569 $40,541

$(2,982)  § 1,524
(608) (810)
(5,631) (6,740)

17,657 4,073
8,436 (1,953)
— (102)
$ 8,436 $(2,055)
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Plan assets consist mainly of investments in equity mutual funds and fixed-income mutual funds.

Net pension benefit of the Plan included the following components: A
Nine Months Year

Year Ended Ended Ended

December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Service cost-benefits earned during the period ......... $1,238 $ 1,059 $ 1,451
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ........... 2,847 2,618 2,848
Expected return on Plan assets . . .................... (3,219) (4,067) (4,074)
Amortization of net asset ............. ... ... ....... (203) (203) (202)
Amortization of prior service cost ................... (1,090) (1,098) (443)
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) ................. 279 (93) (661)
Net pension benefit for the years ended December 31,

2002, 2001 and 2000 ........ ... (148) (1,786) (1,081)

Netadjustment . .. ...t (102) 147 (546)
Net pension benefit ................cccoviiiiiiinin. $ (250) $(1,639) $(1,627)

Weighted Average Assumptions as of
December 31:

2002 2000 2000
DISCOURE TALE . .+ v et e e ettt ee e eene e, .. 6.50%  7.25% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase . ..............c....ooviii... 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% - 7.00%
Expected return on Plan assets . .............. .. ... ... .. 8.00% 9.00% 9.00%

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the Company amended the Plan to reduce future benefit
accruals and freeze the Pension Plan as to new participants effective August 1, 2000. In connection with the
Plan amendment and the Plan’s new measurement date of August 1, 2000, the Company reduced its future
benefit obligation by approximately $8.8 million.

The Bank amended the Plan to adopt the provisions of the Economic Growth and Tax Relief
Reconciliation Act of 2001 (“EGTRRA”). Effective January 1, 2002 EGTRRA increased the maximum
compensation for pension plan purposes to $200,000.

Postretirement Benefits

The Company currently provides certain health care and life insurance benefits to eligible retired
employees and their spouses. The coverage provided depends upon the employee’s date of retirement and
years of service with the Company. The Company’s plan for its postretirement benefit obligation is unfunded.
Effective April 1, 1995, the Company adopted SFAS No. 106 “Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“SFAS No. 106”’). In accordance with SFAS No. 106, the Company elected
to recognize the cumulative effect of this change in accounting principle over future accounting periods.
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Status. of the postretirement benefit obligation is as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

{In Thousands) 2002 2001
Benefit obligation at beginning of fiscal year...................... $ 24,727 $ 14,283
SEIVICE COSE ..ttt e 438 506
Interest COSt ..o 991 1,573
Actuarial (gain) 10SS . ... e (5,954) 8,790
Benefits paid . ... 71 (825)
Plan amendments . ........ ... (2,722) —
Benefit obligation at end of fiscal year........................... $ 16,509 $ 24,727
Funded status . ... ... i e $(16,509) $(24,727)
Unrecognized transition obligation being recognized over 20 years ... 698 3,479
Unrecognized net loss due to past experience difference from
assumptions Made . ...t 5,870 12,008
Accrued postretirement benefit cost at December 31, 2002 and 2001 (9,941) (9,240)
Net adjustment .. ... .. i (394) —
Accrued postretirement benefit cost............................. $(10,335) $ (9,240)
Net postretirement benefit cost included the following components:
Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) : 2002 2001 2001
Service cost-benefits earned during the period ......... $ 438 $ 906 $ 508
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation. ...... ... i 991 1,573 982
Amortization of net obligation .................. 58 268 268
Amortization of prior service cost ............... — — 1
Amortization of unrecognized loss ............... 185 799 224
Postretirement benefit cost-plan years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000................ 1,672 3,546 1,983
Net adjustment. ... — (496) 113
Net postretirement benefit cost ..................... $1,672 $3,050 $2,096

The assumptions used in arriving at the above include the initial rate of annual increase in health care
costs of 9.0% decreasing by 1.0%. per year to 4.50% and remaining at that level thereafter. At December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, discount rates of 6.50%, 7.25% and 7.50%, respectively, were used.

The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported. A 1.0%
increase in each year would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31,
2002 by $2.6 million and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of the net periodic
postretirement benefits cost for the year then ended by $242,000.
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401(k) Plan

The Company also sponsors an incentive savings plan (“401(k) Plan”) whereby eligible employees may
make tax deferred contributions up to certain limits. The Company makes matching contributions up to the
lesser of 6% of employee compensation, or $3,000. Beginning in fiscal 1999, the matching contribution for full-
time employees is in the form of shares held in the ESOP while the contribution for part-time employees
remained a cash contribution. However, beginning January 1, 2001, the matching contribution for all
employees, full- and part-time, is in the form of shares held in the ESOP. The Company may reduce or cease
matching contributions if it is determined that the current or accumulated net earnings or undivided profits of
the Company are insufficient to pay the full amount of contributions in a plan year. There were no cash
contributions to the 401 (k) Plan by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2002 and nine months
ended December 31, 2001. Cash contributions aggregated approximately $33,000 for the year ended
March 31, 2001.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company established the ESOP for full-time employees in March 1998 in connection with the
Bank’s conversion to stock form. To fund the purchase in the open market of 3,632,870 shares of the
Company’s common stock, the ESOP borrowed funds from the Company. The collateral for the loan is the
common stock of the Company purchased by the ESOP. The loan to the ESOP is being repaid principally
from the Bank’s contributions to the ESOP over a period of 20 years. Dividends paid by the Company on
shares owned by the ESOP are also utilized to repay the debt. The Bank contributed $7.6 million and
$8.4 million to the ESOP during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Dividends paid
on ESOP shares, which reduced the Bank’s contribution to the ESOP and were utilized to repay the ESOP
loan, totaled $2.7 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
loan from the Company had an outstanding principal balance of $87.0 million and $89.8 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Shares held by the ESOP are held by an independent trustee for allocation among participants as the loan
is repaid. The number of shares released annually is based upon the ratio that the current principal and interest
payment bears to the original principal and interest payments to be made. ESOP participants become 100%
vested in the ESOP after three years of service. Shares allocated will first be used to satisfy the employer
matching contribution for the 401 (k) Plan with the remaining shares allocated to the ESOP participants
based upon compensation in the year of allocation. Forfeitures from the 401 (k) Plan match portions will be
used to reduce the employer 401 (k) Plan match while forfeitures from shares allocated to the ESOP
participants will be allocated among the participants. There were 281,644 shares allocated in each of the
twelve months ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2002 there were
1,200,127 shares allocated, 4,224,653 shares unallocated and 208,090 shares that had been distributed to
participants in connection with their withdrawal from the ESOP. At December 31, 2002, the 4,224,653
unallocated shares had a fair value of $107.2 million.

The Company recorded compensation expense of $7.3 million, $4.2 million and $3.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001,
respectively, which was equal to the shares committed to be released by the ESOP multiplied by the average
fair value of the common stock during the period in which they were released.

15. Stock Benefit Plans
Recognition Plan
The Recognition Plan was implemented in September 1998 and may make restricted stock awards in an

aggregate amount up to 2,816,435 shares (4% of the shares of common stock sold in the Conversion). The
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objective of the Recognition Plan is to enable the Company to provide officers, key employees and non-
employee directors of the Company with a proprietary interest in the Company as an incentive to contribute to
its success. During the year ended March 31, 1999, the Recognition Plan purchased all 2,816,435 shares in the
open market. The Recognition. Plan provides that awards may be designated as performance share awards,
subject to the achievement of performance goals, or non-performance share awards which are subject solely to
time vesting requirements. Certain key executive officers have been granted performance-based shares. These
shares become earned only if annually established corporate performance targets are achieved. On Septem-
ber 25, 1998, the Committee administering the Recognition Plan issued grants covering 2,188,517 shares of
stock of which 844,931 were deemed performance based. The Committee granted performance-based share
awards of 200,000 and 11,000 in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2002,
respectively, and non-performance share awards covering 25,363 shares, 105,363 shares and 91,637 shares
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended
December 31, 2002, respectively.

The stock awards granted to date are generally payable over a five-year period at a rate of 20% per year,
beginning one year from the date of grant. However, certain stock awards granted during the year ended
December 31, 2002 will be 100% vested on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to certain
exceptions, awards become 100% vested upon termination of employment due to death, disability or
retirement. However, senior officers and non-employee directors of the Company who elect to retire, require
the approval of the Board of Directors or the Committee administering the Recognition Plan to accelerate the
vesting of these shares. The amounts also become 100% vested upon a change in control of the Company.

Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period at the fair market value of the common stock
on the date of grant for non-performance share awards. The expense related to performance share awards is
recognized over the vesting period at the fair market value on the measurement date. The Company recorded
compensation expense of $9.7 million, $7.0 million and $6.3 million related to the Recognition Plan for the
year ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001,
respectively. The expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 included $0.1 million related to the
accelerated vesting of 4,400 shares due to the retirement of senior officers. The expense for the nine month
period ended December 31, 2001 included $0.7 million related to the accelerated vesting of 42,247 shares due
to the retirement of a senior officer.

The following table sets forth the activity in the Company’s Recognition Plan during the periods
indicated.

Year Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
2002 2001 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Grant Grant Grant
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of
VEar oot 1,147,246 $14.4214 1,523,922 $13.7745 1,757,420 $13.3000
Granted ............... 102,637 28.7284 105,363 19.7091 225,363 16.5542
Vested ................ (500,578) 25.5443  (482,039) 20.2475  (456,461) 13.2446
Forfeited .............. (2,100) 13.3125 — - = (2,400) 13.3125

Outstanding, end of year 747,205 $16.5493 1,147,246 $14.4214 1,523,922 $13.7745
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Stock Option Plans

1998 Stock Option Plan

The 1998 Stock Option Plan (the “Option Plan”) was implemented in September 1998. The Option Plan
may grant options covering shares aggregating an amount equal 7,041,088 shares (10% of the shares of
common stock sold in the Conversion). Under the Option Plan, stock options (which expire ten years from the
date of grant) have been granted to officers, key employees and non-employee directors of the Company. The
option exercise price per share was the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Each stock
option or portion thereof is exercisable at any time on or after such option vests and is generally exercisable
until the earlier of ten years after its date of grant or six months after the date on which the optionee’s
employment terminates (three years after termination of service in the case of non-employee directors),
unless extended by the Board of Directors to a period not to exceed five years from the date of such
termination. Subject to certain exceptions, options become 100% exercisable upon termination of employment
due to death, disability or retirement. However, senior officers and non-employee directors of the Company
who elect to retire, require the approval of the Board of Directors or the Committee administering the Option
Plan to accelerate the vesting of options. Options become 100% vested upon a change in control of the
Company. On September 25, 1998, the Board of Directors issued options covering 6,103,008 shares of
common stock vesting over a five-year period at a rate of 20% per year, beginning one year from date of grant.
The Board of Directors granted options covering 325,000, 295,500 and 93,000 shares, respectively, during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended
December 31, 2002, The granting of these options did not affect the Company’s results of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2002 or its statement of condition at December 31, 2002. In the year ended
December 31, 2002 and the nine months ended December 31, 2001, the Committee administering the Plan
approved the acceleration of 8,000 and 105,617 options due to the retirement of senior officers, resulting in
$0.1 million and $0.6 million of compensation expense, respectively. At December 31, 2002, there were
5,900,534 options outstanding pursuant to the 1998 Stock Option Plan.

2002 Stock Incentive Plan

The 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (““Stock Incentive Plan™) was approved by stockholders at the May 23,
2002 annual meeting. The Stock Incentive Plan may grant options covering shares aggregating an amount
equal to 2,800,000 shares. Options awarded to date under the Stock Incentive Plan generally vest over a four-
year period at a rate of 25% per year and expire ten years from the date of grant. The Board of Directors
granted options covering 789,650 shares during the year ended December 31, 2002. The granting of these
options did not affect the Company’s results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002 or its
statement of condition at December 31, 2002.

Other Stock Plans

Broad and Statewide Financial Corp. (“Statewide”) maintained several stock option plans for officers,
directors and other key employees. Generally, these plans granted options to individuals at a price equivalent
to the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant. Options awarded under the plans generally vested
over a five-year period and expired ten years from the date of grant. In connection with the Broad and
Statewide acquisitions, options which were converted by election of the option holders to options to purchase
the Company’s common stock totaled 602,139 and became 100% exercisable at the effective date of the
acquisitions. At December 31,2002, there were 138,254 options outstanding related to these plans.

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation granted prior to January 1, 2003 using the intrinsic
value method. Since each option granted has an exercise price equal to the fair market value of one share of
the Company’s stock on the date of the grant, no compensation cost at date of grant has been recognized.
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Beginning in 2003, the Company will recognize stock-based compensation expense, on options granted in
2003 and in subsequent years, in accordance with the fair value-based method of accounting described in
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

The following table compares reported net income and earnings per share to net income and earnings per
share on a pro forma basis for the periods indicated, assuming that the Company accounted for stock-based
compensation based on the fair value of each option grant as required by SFAS No. 123. The effects of
applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of future amounts.

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
{In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2002 2001 2001
Net income:
Asteported. . ... .. $122,402 $69,638 $62,036
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value method for all awards, net of
related tax effects. . ... . . (8,232) (4,854) (5,569)
Proforma ....... ... ... $114,170 $64,784 $56,467
Basic earnings per share:

ASTEPOTIEd . ..ot $ 237 $§ 1.33 $§ L1
Pro forma ... .o.v i $ 221 $§ 1.23 $ 1ot
Diluted earnings per share: :
Asreported. .. ... $ 24 $ 1.27 $ 110
Proforma ... ... i $ 209 $ 1.18 $ 1.00

The following table sets forth stock option activity and the weighted-average fair value of options granted
for the periods indicated.

Year Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001 March 31, 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of year ... .... 6,850,601  $13.5585 6,654,103  $13.2834 6,419,994  $13.0519
Granted ...................... 882,650 29.1008 300,500 19.1360 325,000 16.6414
Exercised ..................... (882,573) 13.0000 (89,802) 11.8767 (44,711) 4.4331
Forfeited/cancelled . ............ (18,240)  14.9298 (14,200) 13.3125 (46,180) 13.3125
Qutstanding, end of year ............ 6,832,438  $15.6348 6,850,601  $13.5585 6,654,103  $13.2834
" Options exercisable at yearend ... .. .. 4,245,468 3,817,162 2,636,568
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year............ $ 9.7668 $ 6.2748 $ 5.3458

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing mode! using the following weighted-average assumptions for the periods indicated.
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Year Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001 March 31, 2001
Risk free interestrate...................... 3.45% - 5.16% 4.19% - 5.33% 4.89%
Volatility ....... ... 32.33% - 33.55% 26.68% - 39.68% 3091%
Expected dividend yield .................... 1.40% - 2.19% 1.66% - 1.75% 1.90%
Expected option life ....................... 6 years 6 years 6 years

The following table is a summary of the information concerning currently outstanding and exercisable
options as of December 31, 2002.

Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining Average
Contractual Options Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options Outstanding Life Exercisable Price
$ 0.0000 - $12.0000................. 273,454 6.0 196,854  $ 9.6995
$12.0001 - $16.0000................. 5,081,334 5.6 3,929,014 13.3138
$16.0001 - $22.0000................. 563,500 8.3 113,100 17.6824
$22.0001 - $28.0000................. 65,500 9.0 6,500 23.6243
$28.0001 - $31.5200................. 848,650 9.5 — —
6,832,438 6.3 4245468  $13.2784

16. Stockholders’ Equity

On September 28, 2001 the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized the ninth stock
repurchase plan for up to three million shares of the Company’s outstanding common shares. On October 25,
2002 the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized the tenth stock repurchase plan for up to
an additional three million shares of the Company’s outstanding common shares. The Company commenced
its ninth stock repurchase plan on January 3, 2002 and completed its ninth repurchase program and
commenced its tenth repurchase program on December 2, 2002. Repurchases will be made by the Company
from time to time in open-market transactions as, in the opinion of management, market conditions warrant.

The repurchased shares are held as treasury stock. A portion of such shares was utilized to fund the stock
portion of the merger consideration paid in two acquisitions of other financial institutions by the Company in
prior years as well as consideration paid in October 2002 to increase the Company’s minority equity
investment in Meridian, a New York-based mortgage brokerage firm. Treasury shares also are being used to
fund the Company’s stock benefit plans, in particular, the Option Plan, the Directors Fee Plan and the Stock
Incentive Plan which was approved by stockholders at the May 23, 2002 annual meeting, and for general
corporate purposes.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company repurchased 3,538,650 shares of its common
stock at a cost of $92.1 million. The Company also issued 1,414,988 shares of treasury stock, at a cost of
$21.1 million, in connection with the exercise of options, the Directors Fee Plan and the consideration paid to
increase the Company’s minority equity investment in Meridian. At December 31, 2002, the Company had
repurchased a total of 30,746,616 shares, or 40.4% of its common stock at a cost of $476.1 million and reissued
10,951,764 shares at a cost of $158.6 million.

17. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company concurrently adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”) and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -— an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133” on
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January 1, 2001. The Company’s derivative instruments at December 31, 2002, included interest rate swap
agreements designated as cash flow hedges of variable-rate FHLB borrowings, commitments to fund loans
held-for-sale and forward loan sale agreements.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

During 2002, the Company, entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements as part of its
interest rate risk management process to change the repricing characteristics of certain variable-rate
borrowings. At December 31, 2002, the Company had forward starting interest rate swap agreements
outstanding with aggregate notional values of $200.0 million. These agreements qualify as cash flow hedges of
anticipated interest payments relating to $200.0 million variable-rate FHLB borrowings that the Company
intends to draw down during 2003 to replace existing FHLB borrowings that will mature during 2003.

The Company’s use of derivative financial instruments creates exposure to credit risk. This credit
exposure relates to losses that would be recognized if the counterparties fail to perform their obligations under
the contracts. To mitigate its exposure to non-performance by the counterparties, the Company deals only
with counterparties of good credit standing and establishes counterparty credit limits.

The following table details the interest rate swaps outstanding as of December 31, 2002:

Notional Fixed Interest
{Dollars in Thousands). Amount Rate Variable Rate Index
Pay Fixed Swaps - Maturing:
July 2008 ... R $ 50,000 3.87% LIBOR
August 2008 ... 150,000 3.79% - 3.97% LIBOR
$200,000

These interest rate swap agreements require the Company to make periodic fixed-rate payments to the
swap counterparties, while receiving periodic variable-rate payments indexed to the three month LIBOR from
the swap counterparties based on a common notional amount and maturity date. As a result, the net impact of
the swaps will be to convert the variable interest payments on the $200.0 million FHLB borrowings to fixed
interest payments the Company will make to the swap counterparties. The notional amounts of derivatives do
not represent amounts exchanged by the parties and, thus, are not a measure of the Company’s exposure
through its use of derivatives. The amounts exchanged are determined by reference to the notional amounts
and the other terms of the derivatives.

These swaps have original maturities of up to 5 years and, as of December 31, 2002, had an unrealized
loss of $2.9 million and were reflected as a component of other liabilities and OCI within stockholders’ equity,
net of tax. The Company did not recognize any ineffective cash flow gains/ (losses) during 2002 and did not
reclassify any gains/ (losses) from OCI to current period earnings. These transactions did not affect the
Company’s Statement of Operations during 2002.

Loan Commitments for Loans Originated for Sale and Forward Loan Sale Agreements

In the third quarter of 2002, the Company adopted new accounting requirements relating to SFAS
No. 133 Implementation Issue C13 (“Issue C13”) issued by the Derivatives Implementation Group of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board. Issue C13 requires that mortgage loan commitments related to loans
originated for sale be accounted for as derivative instruments. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, derivative
instruments are recognized in the statement of financial condition at fair value and changes in the fair value
thereof are recognized in the statement of operations. The Company during fiscal 2002 originated sin-
gle-family and multi-family residential loans for sale pursuant to programs with Cendant and Fannie Mae.
Under the structure of the programs, at the time the Company initially issues a loan commitment in
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connection with such programs, it does not lock in a specific interest rate. At the time the interest rate is
locked in by the borrower, the Company concurrently enters into a forward loan sale agreement with respect to
the sale of such loan at a set price in an effort to manage the interest rate risk inherent in the locked loan
commitment. The forward loan sale agreement also meets the definition of a derivative instrument under
SFAS No. 133. Any change in the fair value of the loan commitment after the borrower locks in the interest
rate is substantially offset by the corresponding change in the fair value of the forward loan sale agreement
related to such loan. The period from the time the borrower locks in the interest rate to the time the Company
funds the loan and sells it to Fannie Mae or Cendant is generally 30 days. The fair value of each instrument
will rise or fall in response to changes in market interest rates subsequent to the dates the interest rate locks
and forward loan sale agreements are entered into. In the event that interest rates rise after the Company
enters into an interest rate lock, the fair value of the loan commitment will decline. However, the fair value of
the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan commitment should increase by substantially the same
amount, effectively eliminating the Company’s interest rate and price risk.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $311.0 million of loan commitments outstanding related to
loans being originated for sale. Of such amount, $78.5 million related to loan commitments for which the
borrowers had not entered into interest rate locks and $232.5 million which were subject to interest rate locks.
Due to the structure of these transactions, the Company concluded that the derivative instruments involving
its loans held for sale were not material to the consolidated statements of financial condition and operations of
the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002 since the Company does not bear any interest
rate or price risk with respect to such transactions.

18. Commitments and Contingencies
Off-Balance Sheet Risks

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal -course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements when and if proceeds associated with the commitments are disbursed. The exposure to
credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those
instruments. Management uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as
it does for on-balance sheet financial instruments.

Commitments to extend credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Management evaluates
each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary, upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty.

Standby and commercial letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Standby letiers of credit generally are contingent upon the failure
of the customer to perform according to the terms of the underlying contract with the third party, while
commercial letters of credit are issued -specifically to facilitate commerce and typically result in the
commitment being drawn on when the underlying transaction is consummated between the customer and the
third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers.
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The notional principal amount of the off-balance sheet financial instruments at December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2001 are as follows:
Contract or Amount

(Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2002  December 31, 2001
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit — mortgage loans................ $446,759 $144,415
Commitments to extend credit - commercial business loans . .. ... 295417 266,827
Commitments to extend credit — mortgage warchouse lines of
credit . . e 219,125 168,689
Commitments to extend credit — otherloans ................... 81,909 61,368
Standby letters of credit ...... ... ... .. ... 2,692 5,563
Commercial letters of credit. . ............... ... ............ 318 557
Total .. $1,046,220 $647,419

Retained Credit Exposure

The Company originates and sells multi-family residential mortgage loans in the secondary market to
Fannie Mae while retaining servicing. The Company underwrites these loans using its customary underwriting
standards, funds the loans, and sells the loans to Fannie Mae at agreed upon pricing. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Company originated for sale $1.17 billion and sold $1.07 billion of fixed-rate multi-
family residential loans in the secondary market with servicing retained by the Bank. Under the terms of the
sales program, the Company retains a portion of the associated credit risk. The Company has a 100% first loss
position on each multi-family residential loan sold to Fannie Mae under such program until the earlier to
occur of (i) the losses on the multi-family residential loans sold to Fannie Mae reaching the maximum loss
exposure for the portfolio or (ii) until all of the loans sold to Fannie Mae under this program are fully paid off.
The maximum loss exposure is available to satisfy any losses on loans sold in the program subject to the
foregoing limitations. Substantially all the loans sold to Fannie Mae under this program are newly originated
using the Company’s underwriting guidelines. At December 31, 2002, the Company serviced $1.97 billion of
loans for Fannie Mae under this program with a maximum potential loss exposure of $113.7 million.

The maximum loss exposure of the associated credit risk related to the loans sold to Fannie Mae under
this program is calculated pursuant to a review of each loan sold to Fannie Mae. A risk level is assigned to
each such loan based upon the loan product, debt service coverage ratio and loan to value ratio of the loan.
Each risk level has a corresponding sizing factor which, when applied to the original principal balance of the
loan sold, equates to a recourse balance for the loan. The sizing factors are periodically reviewed by Fannie
Mae based upon its continuing review of the performance of the loans sold to it pursuant to this special
program and are subject to adjustment as a result thereof. The total of the recourse balance per loan is
aggregated to create a maximum loss exposure for the entire portfolio at any given point in time. The
Company’s maximum loss exposure for the entire portfolio of sold loans is periodically reviewed and, based
upon factors such as amount, size, types of loans and loan performance, may be adjusted downward. Fannie
Mae is restricted from increasing the maximum loss exposure on loans previously sold to it under this program
as long as (i) the total borrower concentration (i.e., the total amount of loans extended to a particular
borrower or a group of related borrowers) as applied to all mortgage loans delivered to Fannie Mae since the
effective date of the sales program does not exceed 10% and (ii) the average principal balance per loan of all
mortgage loans delivered to Fannie Mae since the effective date of the sales program continues to be
$4.0 million or less.

During 2002, in a separate transaction, the Company sold from portfolio at par $257.6 million of fully
performing multi-family loans in exchange for Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities representing a 100%
interest in these loans. Such loans were sold with full recourse with the Company retaining servicing.
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Although all of the loans serviced for Fannie Mae (both loans originated for sale and loans sold from
portfolio) are currently fully performing, the Company has recorded a $4.5 million liability related to the fair
value of the retained credit exposure. This liability represents the amount that the Company would have to pay
a third party to assume the retained recourse obligation. The liability is based upon the present value of the
estimated losses that the portfolio is projected to incur based upon a standard Department of Housing and
Urban Development default curve using both low and high severity percentages of loss.

Lease Commitments

The Company has entered into noncancellable lease agreements with respect to Bank premises. The
minimum annual rental commitments under these operating leases, exclusive of taxes and other charges, are
summarized as follows:

(In Thousands) Amount

Year ended December 31:

2003 $ 5,358
2004 . 5,383
20005 5,009
2000 . 4,898
2007 and thereafter. . ... ... 33,770

The rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2002, nine months ended December 31, 2001 and the
year ended March 31, 2001 was $4.8 million, $3.3 million and $3.7 million, respectively.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding various legal proceedings, claims, commitments
and contingent liabilities. In the opinion of management, the financial position and results of operations of the
Company will not be affected materially by the outcome of such legal proceedings and claims.

19. Related Party Transactions

The Company engaged in certain activities with Meridian. Meridian is deemed to be a “related party” of
the Company as such term is defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 57. Such treatment
is triggered due to the Company’s accounting for the investment in Meridian using the equity method. The
Company has a 35% minority equity investment in Meridian, a New York-based mortgage brokerage firm.
Meridian refers borrowers seeking financing of their multi-family residential and/or commercial real estate
loans to the Company as well as to numerous other financial institutions.

All loans resulting from referrals from Meridian are underwritten by the Company using its loan
underwriting standards and procedures. Meridian receives a fee from the borrower upon the funding of the
loans by the Company. The Company generally has not paid any referral fees to Meridian. In the future, the
Company may consider paying such fees if it is deemed necessary for competitive reasons.

The loans originated by the Company resulting from referrals by Meridian account for a significant
portion of the Company’s total loan originations. For the year ended December 31, 2002, such loans accounted
for approximately 17.8% of the aggregate amount of loans originated for portfolio and for sale. With respect to
the loans which were originated for portfolio in 2002 (excluding mortgage warchouse lines of credit), loans
resulting from referrals from Meridian amounted to approximately 39.9% of such loans. In addition, referrals
from Meridian accounted for the majority of the loans originated for sale in 2002. The ability of the Company
to continue to originate multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans at the levels experienced in
the past may be a function of, among other things, maintaining the Meridian relationship.
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The Company has also entered into other transactions with Meridian in the normal course of business.
Meridian and several of its executive officers have depository relationships with the Bank. In addition, the

Bank has made five residential mortgage loans in the ordinary course of the Bank’s business to certain of the
individual executive officers of Meridian.

Meridian’s stock ownership in the Company amounted to approximately 0.96% of the issued and
outstanding shares of the Company’s stock at December 31, 2002.

20. Income Taxes

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,

{In Thousands) 2002 2001
Deferred tax assets: .
Contribution to the Foundation ........... ... . .............. $16,275 $28,269
Allowance for loan losses. . ...... .. i 37,810 32,348
Depreciation .. ... e 1,498 538
Deferred loan fees ... .. 6,930 5,711
Amortization of intangible assets ......... ... .. ... ... . ..., 10,853 9,331
Nonaccrual interest .. ...ttt e 1,514 1,497
Employee benefits ....... ... . 1,863 4,983
Other .o e e 2,068 1,242
Gross deferred tax assets . ... 78,811 83,919
Valuation allowance for contribution to Foundation.............. (5,182) (4,144)
Deferred tax assets, net of Qaluation allowance. ................... 73,629 79,775

Deferred tax liabilities:

Securities available-for-sale . ............ .. .. ... .. ... .. ... ... 4,311 5,149
Bad debt recapture under Section 593 ......... ... .. ... .. R 252 430
Change in subsidiary tax year........... ... ..., — 29,750
Deferred compensation .......... .. .. i (95) 160
OhET « .ottt e - 661
Gross deferred tax liabilities . ............ ... ... . . . 4,468 36,150
Net deferred tax assels .. ... ..ottt $69,161 $43,625

The Company has reported taxable income for federal, state and local income tax purposes in each of the
past two years and in management’s opinion, in view of the Company’s previous, current and projected future
earnings, such net deferred tax asset is expected to be fully realized with the exception of a portion related to
the Company’s contribution to the Foundation. Accordingly, no other valuation allowance was deemed
necessary for the net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001.

For federal, state and local income tax purposes, a subsidiary of the Company elected to change its
calendar tax year to a 52 - 53 week taxable year in 2001, as allowed under Federal statute and regulations. As a
result of this election, the Company had established a deferred tax liability of $29.8 million with respect to
income of the subsidiary that would be taxed in 2002. Due to Federal legislation enacted in 2002, the
subsidiary has reverted to a calendar tax year and therefore the deferred tax liability was fully recognized.
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Significant components of the provision for income taxes attributable to continuing operations are as
follows:

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Current:
Federal ......... .. . . . . e $ 86,421 $14,936 $42,439
Stateand local ....... ... i 8,644 3,054 3,930
95,065 17,990 46,369
Deferred:
Federal ...... ... ... ... . . . . . . . ... (19,536) 20,561 (760)
Stateand local ......... ... ... ... . ... ... (5,944) 2,348 (280)
(25,480) 22,909 (1,040)
Total ... $ 69,585 $40,899 $45,329

The table below presents a reconciliation between the reported tax provision and the tax provision
computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate to income before provision for income taxes:

Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Federal income tax provision at statutory rates ........ $67,195 $38,688 $37,578
Increase in tax resulting from: '
State and local taxes, net of Federal income tax effect 1,755 3,511 2,372
Amortization of goodwill. ........................ — — 5,021
Other ..o 635 (1,300) 358
$69,585 $40,899 $45,329

At December 31, 2002, the base year bad debt reserve for federal income tax purposes which is subject to
recapture as taxable income was approximately $30 million, for which deferred taxes are not required to be
recognized. Bad debt reserves maintained for New York State and New York City tax purposes as of
December 31, 2002 for which deferred taxes are not required to be recognized, amounted to approximately
$130 million. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities of approximately $15.9 million have not been recognized as
of December 31, 2002.

21. Regulatory Requirements

As a New York State-chartered stock form savings bank, the deposits of which are insured by the FDIC,
the Bank is subject to certain FDIC capital requirements. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possible discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.
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Based on its regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, the Bank is
categorized as “‘well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as “well capitalized” the Bank must maintain Tier I leverage, Tier I risk-based and minimum total
risk-based ratios as set forth in the following table.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the tables below as of December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2001:

To Be Well-
For Capital Capitalized
Adequacy Under FDIC
Actual Amounts Purposes at Guidelines
as of 12/31/02 12/31/02 at 12/31/02
{Dollars In Thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Tier I Leverage ................. $685,652 8.73% $314,069 4.00% $392,586 5.00%
Tier I Risk-Based ............... 685,652 10.14% 270,589 4.00% 405,884 6.00%
Total Risk-Based .. .............. 771,002 11.40% 541,179 8.00% 676,473 10.00%
To Be Well-
For Capital Capitalized
Adequacy Under FDIC
Actual Amounts Purposes at Guidelines
as of 12/31/01 12/31/01 at 12/31/01
(Dollars In Thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Tier I Leverage ................. $629,575 8.60% $292,915 4.00% $366,144 5.00%
Tier I Risk-Based ............... 629,575 10.85% 232,156 4.00% 348,233 6.00%
Total Risk-Based ................ 708,070  12.20% 464,311 8.00% 580,389  10.00%

22. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (“SFAS No. 107”) requires
disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the statements of
financial condition, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. In cases where quoted market prices are
not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those
techniques are significantly affected by assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future
cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument.
SFAS No. 107 requirements exclude certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its
disclosure requirements. Additionally, tax consequences related to the realization of the unrealized gains and
losses can have a potential effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in the estimates.
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the
Company.
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The book values and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are summarized as
follows:

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

{In Thousands) Book Value Fair Value Book Value - Fair Value

Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks .............. $ 199,057 $ 199,057 $§ 207,633 § 207,633
Securities available-for-sale............. 1,263,650 1,263,650 1,027,994 1,027,994
Loans available-for-sale................ 114,379 114,379 3,696 3,696
Mortgage loans on real estate........... 4,305,705 4,341,291 4,600,032 4,637,079
Commercial business loans . ............ 598,267 600,945 665,329 667,053
Mortgage warehouse lines of credit . .. ... 692,434 692,434 446,542 446,542
Otherloans .......................... 228,923 228,923 173,907 173,907
Accrued interest receivable . ............ 36,530 36,530 37,436 37,436
FHLB stock ......................... 101,578 101,578 85,435 85,435
Loan servicing assets . ................. 6,445 6,445 4,273 4,273

Financial Liabilities: :
Core deposits ..., 3,350,808 3,350,808 2,941,138 2,941,138
Certificates of deposit accounts ......... 1,589,252 1,615,691 1,853,637 1,871,186
Borrowings ............. ... 0. 1,931,550 2,101,984 1,682,788 1,645,112
Escrow and other deposits.............. 34,574 34,574 38,361 38,361
Trust Preferred Securities . ............. —_ — 11,067 11,067
Retained Credit Exposure.............. 4,453 4,453 — —
Interest rate swaps . ................... (2,935) (2,935) — —

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments:

The carrying values of cash and due from banks, loans available-for sale, federal funds sold, other loans,
mortgage warehouse lines of credit, accrued interest receivable, deposits and escrow and other deposits all
approximate their fair values primarily due to their liquidity and short-term nature.

Securities available-for-sale: The estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices.

Mortgage loans on real estate:  The Company’s mortgage loans on real estate were segregated into two
categories, residential and cooperative loans and commercial/ multi-family loans. These were stratified further
based upon historical delinquency and loan to value ratios. The fair value for each loan was then calculated by
discounting the projected mortgage cash flow to a yield target equal to a spread, which is commensurate with
the loan quality and type, over the U.S. Treasury curve at the average life of the cash flow.

Commercial business loans: The commercial business loan portfolio was priced using the same
methodology as the mortgage loans on real estate.

FHLB stock: The carrying amount approximates fair value because it is redeemable at cost, with the
issuer only.

Loan servicing assets: The fair value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using current
market rates for mortgage loan servicing with adjustments for market and credit risks.
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Certificates of deposit accounts: The estimated fair value for certificates of deposit is based on a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered by the Company to its
current deposit portfolio.

Borrowings: The estimated fair value of FHLB borrowings is based on the discounted value of their
contractual cash flows. The discount rate used in the present value computation is estimated by comparison to
the current interest rates charged by the FHLB for advances of similar remaining maturities.

Trust Preferred Securities: The estimated fair value for Trust Preferred Securities is based on a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies current interest rates for similar trust preferred securities.

Retained Credit Exposure: The fair value is based upon the present value of the estimated losses that
the portfolio is projected to incur based upon a standard Department of Housing and Urban Development
default curve.

Interest Rate Swaps: Fair values for interest rate swaps are based on securities dealers’ estimated
market values.

23. Asset and Dividend Restrictions

The Bank is required to maintain a reserve balance with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The
required reserve balance was $9.5 million, $9.5 million and $6.0 million at December 31, 2002, December 31,
2001 and March 31, 2001, respectively.

Limitations exist on the availability of the Bank’s undistributed earnings for the payment of dividends to
the Company without prior approval of the Bank’s regulatory authorities.

During 2002, the Bank requested and received approval of the distribution to the Company of an
aggregate of $100.0 million, of which $75.0 million was declared by the Bank and was funded during 2002 with
the remaining $25.0 million declared and funded in 2003. In December 2000, the Bank requested and received
approval of the distribution to the Company of an aggregate of $25.0 million, of whkich $6.0 million had been
distributed as of December 31, 2001, with the remainder distributed in 2002. The distributions were primarily
used by the Company to fund the Company’s open market stock repurchase programs, dividend payments and
the consideration paid in October 2002 to increase the Company’s minority investment in Meridian.
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24, Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31, 2002

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Interestincome ..............0 . ... oin.
Interest expense .. .......... .. ... ... ...

Net interest income . .. ......ooviinn.n..
Provision for loan losses . ..................

Net interest income after provision for loan
10SSES . v vt

Non-interest income . .....................
Total income . .......... ... ... ... .. .....

General and administrative expense .........
Amortization: of intangible assets............

Income before provision for income taxes . ...
Provision for income taxes .................

Netincome ............ccccviiiiiineenn..
Basic earnings per common share ...........
Diluted earnings per common share .........
Dividend declared per common share ........

Closing price per common share
High .......... ... .. . .

116

$120,804  $124,106  $121,678  $118,915
45,977 44,324 43,959 41,319
74,827 79,782 77,719 77,596
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
72,827 77,782 75,719 75,596
16,176 16,793 17,778 24,371
89,003 94,575 93,497 99,967
41,860 43,387 41,699 51,138
1,919 1,684 1,684 1,684
45,224 49,504 50,114 47,145
16,507 17,821 18,167 17,090

$ 28,717 $ 31,683 $ 31,947 $ 30,055
055 $ 061 $ 062 $ 058
052 $ 057 $ 059 $ 056
011 $ 012 $ 013 $ 0.4

$ 28.850 $ 34740 $ 32.280 S 26.640
$ 22500 $ 26350 $ 23280 $ 21.270
$ 28130 $ 29270 $ 25090 S 25.380
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Nine Months Ended December 31, 2001

{In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter
Interest income ..........c.oiiiinn. ... $119,399 $120,914 $121,893
Interest expense ... 61,101 59,099 52,426
Net interest inCome .. ...ovvviveennenenn... 58,298 61,815 69,467
Provision for loan losses ................... 1,875 3,000 3,000
Net interest income after provision for loan

JOSSES o o 56,423 58,815 66,467
Non-interest income ................ e 13,645 13,800 17,028
Totalincome .........c.oiiiviniininn.. 70,068 72,615 83,495
General and administrative expense ......... 35,815 35,930 38,135
Amortization of intangible assets............ 1,922 1,920 1,919
Income before provision for income taxes . ... 32,331 34,765 43,441
Provision for income taxes .. ... e . 12,137 12,689 16,073
Netincome. ..., $ 20,194 $ 22,076 $ 27,368
Basic earnings per common share ........... $ 038 § 042 § 052
Diluted earnings per common share ......... $§ 037 $ 040 $ 050
Dividend declared per common share ........ $ 008 § 009 § 0.0
Closing price per common share

High ... . o $ 19.890 § 25.180 $ 24.850

Low . oo $ 16.625 $ 17.000 $ 20.500

Endofperiod.......................... $ 19.740  § 21.730 $ 22.760

117




INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

25, Parent Company Disclosure

The following Condensed Statement of Financial Condition, as of December 31, 2002 and December 31,
2001 and Condensed Statement of Operations and Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2002, nine
months ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended March 31, 2001 should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto.

Condensed Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, December 31,
{In Thousands) 2002 2001
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. . ..... ... .., $ 5109 $ 6,690
Securities available-for-sale . .......... .. ... ... .. L. — 1,323
Investment in subsidiaries ... ....... . ... .. . . 879,024 837,105
Net deferred tax asset . ... oo i e 9,154 15,176
Dividends receivable . .. ... ... i — 19,000
Other aSSEtS . . oottt e 27,506 13,095
TOtAl ASSELS . ..o\ e st e e e e e $920,793 $892,389
Liabilities:
Subordinated debentures . ......... .. ... .. $ - $ 11,856
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .......................... 525 —
Total Habilities. . .. ... .. i i 525 11,856
Stockholders’ equity ........ ... 920,268 880,533
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity......................... $920,793 $892,389
Condensed Statement of Operations
Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
(In Thousands) 2002 2001 2001
Income:
INterest iNCOME . . oo vt e e e $ 227 $ 152 $ 685
Net gain on sales of securities ..................... 562 — 1,477
Other non-interest iNCOMe . ...........ccovvvrnen... 2,318 900 615
3,107 1,052 2,777
Expenses:
Shareholder expense . ........ ... .. ... ... .. ... 674 600 647
Other eXpense . ...t it 747 1,060 1,418
1,421 1,660 2,065
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes and ‘
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ............. 1,686 (608) 712
Provision for income taxes, net .................... 150 112 150
Income (loss) before undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries . ..........c.. . 1,536 (720) 562
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries. . ..... 120,866 70,358 61,474
Net inCome ...t e $122,402 $69,638 $62,036
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

{In Thousands)

Nine Months

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome ...t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Gain on sale of securities ..........................
Decrease in deferred income taxes ..................
Dividends received from subsidiary..................
(Increase) decrease in other assets..................
Redemption of subordinated debentures..............
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities ...............

Amortization of unearned compensation of ESOP and
Recognition Plan . ......... ... ... ... L.

Accelerated vesting of stock options . ................
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries................
Other, net. .. ... e

Net cash provided by operating activities.............

Cash flows from investing activities:

Decrease in investment in subsidiaries .. .............
Purchase of securities available-for-sale ..............
Proceeds on sales of securities . .....................

Net cash provided by investing activities .............

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds received on exercise of stock options ........
Repurchase of common stock ......................
Dividends paid . ......... ... . i

Net cash used in financing activities.................

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ..
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . . . ...

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . ..........

Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
2002 2001 2001
$ 122,402 $ 69,638 $ 62,036
(562) — (1,477)
4,984 4,855 459
94,000 20,000 95,000
(2,539) (6,856) 14,464
(11,856) — —
525 (8,209) 6,196
17,471 11,469 10,289
115 603 —
(120,866)  (70,358) (61,474)
56 274 (53D
103,730 21,416 124,962
— — 368
— — (433)
1,885 — 11,244
1,885 — 11,179
11,500 1,078 197
(92,147)  (18,352)  (113913)
(26,549)  (14,580) (17,378)
(107,196)  (31,854)  (131,094)
(1,581) (10,438) 5,047
6,690 17,128 12,081
5109 $ 669 § 17,128
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

None.

PART III
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to “Information With Respect to Nominees
for Director, Continuing Directors and Executive Officers” in the definitive proxy statement of the Company
for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 30, 2003, which will be filed with the SEC prior to
April 30, 2003 (“Definitive Proxy Statement”).

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to “Executive Compensation” in the
Definitive Proxy Statement. The reports of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee included in
the Definitive Proxy Statement should not be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into this filing or any
other filing by the Company under the Exchange Act or Securities Act of 1933 except to the extent the
Company specifically incorporates said reports herein or therein by reference thereto.

ITEM 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to “Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock
by Certain Owners and Management” in the Definitive Proxy Statement,

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2002 with respect to shares of Common
Stock that may be issued under the Company’s existing equity compensation plans which include the 1998
Stock Option Plan, 1998 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement and the 2002 Stock Incentive
Plan (collectively, the “Plans”). Each of the Plans have been approved by the Company’s stockholders.

The table does not include information with respect to shares of Common Stock subject to outstanding
options granted under equity compensation plans assumed by the Company in connection with mergers and
acquisitions of the companies which originally granted those options. Note 3 to the table sets forth the total
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of assumed options as of December 31, 2002
and the weighted average exercise price of those options. No additional options may be granted under those
assumed plans.

Number of
securities
remaining available
for future issuance

Number of
securities to be

issued upon

exercise of

outstanding
options, warrants

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options, warrants

under equity

compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected

and rights and rights in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ..................... 7,436,389 $15.771 2,254,422
Equity compensation (plans not approved
by security holders™ ... ... ... .. .. ... 5,000 12.94 —
Total ... 7,441,389 $15.77 2,254,422

(1) Included in such number are 747,205 shares which are subject to restricted stock grants which were not vested as of December 31,
2002. The weighted average exercise price excludes restricted stock grants.

(2) Does not take into account shares available for future issuance under the Directors’ Fee Plan, under which the $20,000 annual
retainer payable to each of the Company’s non-employee directors is payable in shares of Common Stock. Because the number of
shares of Common Stock issuable under the Directors’ Fee Plan is based on a formula and not a specific reserve amount, the number
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of shares which may be issued pursuant to this plan in the future is not determinable. This plan was approved by stockholders in May
2001. During the year ended December 31, 2002, a total of 9,728 shares were issued under this plan.

(3) The table does not include information for equity compensation plans assumed by the Company in connection with mergers and acquisitions
of the companies which originally established those plans. As of December 31, 2002, a total of 138,254 shares of Common Stock were
issuable upon exercise of outstanding options under those assumed plans and the weighted average exercise price of those outstanding
options was $8.99 per share.

{4) Consists of a single grant of options to a non-employee director upon appointment to the Board of Directors of the Company.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to “Executive Compensation — Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Definitive Proxy Statement.

1ITEM 14. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of the Company’s Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. Within the 90 days prior to the
date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of its “disclosure controls and procedures” (“Disclosure Controls”) in accordance with the
provisions of Rules 13a-14 and 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™). This
evaluation (“Controls Evaluation™) was done under the supervision and with the participation of manage-
ment, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”).

Disclosure Controls are the Company’s controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its CEO and
CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls. The Company’s management, including the CEO and
CFO, does not expect that its Disclosure Controls or its “internal controls and procedures. for financial
reporting” (“Internal Controls”) will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations
include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because
of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons,
by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of
controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be
no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions;
over time, control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control
system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Conclusions. Based upon the Controls Evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that, subject to
the limitations noted above, the Disclosure Controls are effective to timely alert management to material
information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, during the period for which its
periodic reports are being prepared.

In accordance with SEC requirements, the CEO and CFO note that, since the date of the Controls
Evaluation to the date of this Annual Report, there have been no significant changes in Internal Controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect Internal Controls, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Documents Filed as Part of this Report

(1) The following financial statements are incorporated by reference from Item 8 hereof:

Report of Independent Auditors
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001.

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2002, Nine Months
Ended December 31, 2001 and the Year Ended March 31, 2001.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity for the Year Ended December 31,
2002, Nine Months Ended December 31, 2001 and the Year Ended March 31, 2001.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2002, Nine Months
Ended December 31, 2001 and the Year Ended March 31, 2001.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are
omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required
information is included in the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto.

(3) The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K, and this list includes the Exhibit Index.

EXHIBIT INDEX

3.1 (1)
3.2
4_0(1)
10.1®

10.20

10.3M

10.4)

10.5%
10.6
10.7%
10.8¢
10.9%
10.10®
10.11®
10.12®
10.13®
10.147
10.157
10.16®
10.17®

10.18
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Certificate of Incorporation of Independence Community Bank Corp.
Bylaws, as amended, of Independence Community Bank Corp.
Specimen Stock Certificate of Independence Community Bank Corp.

Form of Change of Control Agreement entered into among Independence Community Bank
Corp., Independence Community Bank and certain senior executive officers of the Company
and the Bank.

Form of Change in Control Agreement entered into between Independence Community Bank
and certain officers thereof.

Form of Change of Control Agreement entered into among Independence Community Bank
Corp., Independence Community Bank and certain executive officers of the Company and the
Bank.

Form of Change of Control Agreement to be entered into between Independence Community
Bank and certain executive officers thereof.

Independence Community Bank Severance Plan.

1998 Stock Option Plan.

1998 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement.

Broad National Bancorporation Incentive Stock Option Plan.

1993 Broad National Incentive Stock Option Plan.

1995 Broad National Directors Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan.

1996 Broad National Incentive Stock Option Plan.

1996 Broad National Bancorporation Directors Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan.
1996 Statewide Financial Corporation Incentive Stock Option Plan.

Deferred Compensation Plan.

Directors Fiscal 2002 Stock Retainer Plan.

Directors Fee Plan.

Independence Community Bank Executive Management Incentive Compensation Plan
(April 1, 2001 — December 31, 2001).

Independence Community Bank Executive Management Incentive Compensation Plan, as
amended (January 1, 2002 — December 31, 2002), filed herein.




10,1949 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

11.0

21.0

23.1
99.1

99.2

(1)

(2)

(3)

4)

(3)

Statement re computation of per share earnings — Reference is made to Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” for the required information.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant — Reference is made to Item 2. “Business” for the required
information.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-30757) filed by
the Company with the SEC on July 3, 1997.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
filed by the Company with the SEC on November 14, 2002.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 filed
by the Company with the SEC on June 28, 1999.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed by the Company with the SEC on August 17,
1998.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-85981) filed by

. the Company with the SEC on August 26, 1999,

(6)

(7

~—

(8

~—

¢

—

(10)

Date

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-95767) filed by
the Company with the SEC on January 31, 2000.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 filed
by the Company with the SEC on June 22, 2001.

Incorporated herein by refcrence from the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed by the Company with the SEC on June 22,
2001.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KT for the transition period from April 1, 2001 to
December 31, 2001 filed by the Company with the SEC on March 28, 2002.

Incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed by the Company with the SEC on April 10,
2002.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The following Current Report on Form 8-K was filed during the quarter ended December 31, 2002.
Item and Description

December 16, 2002 9- On December 16, 2002, the Company announced that its President and Chief

Executive Officer had presented at The New York Society of Security Analysts’
4th Annual Banking Conference. In the Company’s presentation, Mr. Fishman,
among other things, confirmed that management was comfortable with the
current earnings consensus estimate of $2.25 per diluted share for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002.

(¢) The exhibits listed under (a) (3) of this Item 14 are filed herewith.
(d) Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INDEPENDENCE COMMUNITY BANK CORP.

/s/  ALAN H. FISHMAN

Alan H. Fishman
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 31, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Name Date
/s/ CHARLES J. HAMM Chairman of the Board March 31, 2003
Charles J. Hamm
/s/ DoNaLD M. KARP Vice Chairman of the Board March 31, 2003
Donald M. Karp
/s/  VICTOR M. RICHEL Vice Chairman of the Board March 31, 2003
Victor M. Richel
/s/  ALAN H. FISHMAN President and Chief Executive Officer March 31, 2003
Alan H. Fishman
/s/ JOHN B. ZURELL Executive Vice President, Chief March 31, 2003
John B. Zurell Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer
/s/  WILLARD N. ARCHIE Director March 31, 2003
Willard N. Archie
/s/ ROBERT B. CATELL Director March 31, 2003
Robert B. Catell
/s/  RoHIT M. DEsAI Director March 31, 2003
Rohit M. Desai
/s/ CHaiM Y. EDELSTEIN Director March 31, 2003
Chaim Y. Edelstein
/s/  DonNaLD H. ELLIOTT Director March 31, 2003
Donald H. Elliott
/s/ ROBERT W. GELFMAN Director March 31, 2003
Robert W. Gelfman
/s/  Scort M. HAND Director March 31, 2003

Scott M. Hand
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Name

Donald E. Kolowsky

/s/ JANINE LUKE

Janine Luke

/s/ MaLcoLM MacKay

Malcolm MacKay

/s/  JosSEPH S. MORGANO

Joseph S. Morgano

/s/  MARIA FIORINI RAMIREZ

Maria Fiorini Ramirez

/s/ WESLEY D. RATCLIFF

Wesley D. Ratcliff

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

March 31, 2003

March 31, 2003

March 31, 2003

March 31, 2003

March 31, 2003

March 31, 2003
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Alan H. Fishman, the President and Chief Executive Officer of Independence Community Bank Corp.,
certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Independence Community Bank Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a} all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and
have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and :

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/  ALAN H. FISHMAN

Alan H. Fishman
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 31, 2003
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John B. Zurell, the Executive Viece President, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer of
Independence Community Bank Corp., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Independence Community Bank Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have: ‘

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularty during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and
have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ JOHN B. ZURELL

John B. Zurell
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &
Principal Accounting Officer

Date: March 31, 2003
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